
 

Please Contact: Gaynor Hawthornthwaite 
E-Mail: gaynor.hawthornthwaite@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or 

request for further information 
Speakingatplanning@cheshireeast.gov.uk  to arrange to speak at the 
meeting 

  

Northern Planning Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Wednesday, 2nd October, 2024 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Council Chamber - Town Hall, Macclesfield, SK10 1EA 
 

 
Members of the public are requested to check the Council's website the week the 
Northern Planning Committee meeting is due to take place as Officers produce 
updates for some or all of the applications prior to the commencement of the 
meeting and after the agenda has been published. 
 

 
 

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and in the report. 
 
It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision-making meetings 
are audio recorded and the recordings are uploaded to the Council’s website. 
 

PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence   

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2.  Declarations of Interest/Pre Determination   
 
To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests, other registerable interests, and non-registerable interests in any item on the 
agenda and for Members to declare if they have a pre-determination in respect of any 
item on the agenda. 
 

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 21st August 2024 as a correct record. 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:gaynor.hawthornthwaite@cheshireeast.gov.uk
mailto:Speakingatplanning@cheshireeast.gov.uk


 

 

4.  Public Speaking   
 
A total period of 5 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the 
following: 
 

 Ward Councillors who are not members of the Planning Committee 

 The relevant Town/Parish Council 
 
A period of 3 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the following 
individuals/groups: 
 

 Members who are not members of the planning committee and are not the Ward 
Member 

 Objectors 

 Supporters 

 Applicants 
 

5.  24/1544M - Mac Multi Activity Centre, Goodall Street, Macclesfield SK11 7BD: 
Demolition of existing buildings and the construction of a care home (Class C2), 
with associated parking, landscaping, and infrastructure for Rigby, Cairnwell 
Developments  (Pages 9 - 40) 
 
To consider the above planning application. 
 

6.  23/0657M - Wilmslow Police Station, Hawthorn Street, Wilmslow, SK9 5HQ: Erection 
of Retirement Living housing (Category II type accommodation), communal 
facilities, landscaping and car parking following the demolition of the existing 
building for Chris McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Ltd  (Pages 41 - 86) 
 
To consider the above planning application. 
 

7.  24/0962M - Oaklands, Wilmslow Road, Alderley Edge SK9 7QW: Detailed planning 
application for the demolition of the existing dwellings and the construction of 14 
no. apartments with associated access, parking, landscaping and infrastructure for 
Mr Brian Spencer, North East Cheshire Developments Ltd  (Pages 87 - 118) 
 
To consider the above planning application. 
 

 
Membership:  Councillors M Beanland, T Dean, D Edwardes, K Edwards, A Harrison, 
S Holland, T Jackson, D Jefferay (Chair), N Mannion, J Smith, J Snowball and F Wilson 
(Vice-Chair) 
 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Northern Planning Committee 
held on Wednesday, 21st August, 2024 in the The Capesthorne Room - Town 

Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor D Jefferay (Chair) 
Councillor F Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors M Beanland, T Dean, D Edwardes, K Edwards, A Harrison, 
S Holland, T Jackson, N Mannion, J Smith and J Snowball 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 

 Robert Law, Principal Planning Officer 

 Sarah Bartoli, Senior Planning Officer 

 Nicky Folan, Planning Solicitor 

 Neil Jones, Principal Development Officer 

 Emma Hood, Senior Arboricultural Officer 

 Sam Jones, Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION  
 
In the interest of openness, Councillor D Edwardes declared that as there 
could be a perception of bias on his part, in respect of application 
24/2021M, he would leave the meeting for the duration of that item. 
 
Councillor D Jefferay declared that, on behalf of the Committee, the 
applicant for application 24/1796C was a Cheshire East Councillor who 
was known to Members.  
 

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 10th April 2024 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
That the public speaking procedure be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



5 23/4111M - AGDEN BROOK FARM, LYMM ROAD, AGDEN, CHESHIRE, 
WA14 4TE: CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING AGRICULTURAL 
BUILDINGS TO EMPLOYMENT USES, INCLUDING THE DEMOLITION 
OF ONE BUILDING FOR MR FRANK COOKSON  
 
Consideration was given to the above application. 
 
(Mr Eoin McLoone (Supporter) and Mr Ben Kettle (Agent) attended the 
meeting and spoke in respect of the application). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That contrary to Officers’ recommendation, the application be 
APPROVED, for the following reasons: 
 
The proposal is inappropriate development within the Green Belt. 
However, the Northern Planning Committee considered that there are very 
special circumstances which outweigh the conflict with policy and any 
additional harm by reason of: 
  

 The proposal would facilitate the retention, maintenance, and reuse 
of the existing buildings. 

 The proposal would retain the existing 15 employees on the site 
and would enable additional rural employment opportunities. 

 The proposal would comprise of a diversification of the existing farm 
business. 

 The openness of the Green Belt would be maintained, and the 
removal of a building would improve openness. 
 

The proposal is considered to comply with the relevant policies of the 
Development Plan including PG3, PG6 of the CELPS and RUR10 of the 
SADPD. Impacts on character and appearance are acceptable and the 
impact on residential amenity could be controlled by condition. 
 
And subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Standard 3-year time limit 
2. Accordance with approved plans 
3. Materials to be submitted, approved and implemented 
4. Visibility splays and access to be provided under a s278 agreement 

prior to first occupation and kept clear of obstructions. 
5. Travel Plan to be submitted and approved prior to the first 

occupation 
6. Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Plan to be submitted, 

approved and implemented prior to first occupation 
7. Cycle Storage Plan to be submitted, approved and implemented 

prior to first occupation 
8. Parking to be provided in accordance with the approved plans prior 

to first occupation and retained thereafter 

Page 4



9. Hours of use / deliveries restricted to between the hours of 08:00 – 
18:00 Monday – Friday and 09:00 – 16:00 on Saturdays with no 
working on Sundays and /or public holidays 

10. Biodiversity Net Gain Plan to submitted, approved and implemented 
11. Updated landscaping scheme to be submitted to show additional 

landscaping to the western boundary  
12. Implementation of approved landscaping scheme 
13. No external storage outside of the building to be permitted. 
14. Contaminated land investigations submitted, approved and 

implemented prior to commencement  
15. Verification of contaminated land prior to fist occupation 
16. Details of any unsuspected contamination found during 

development to be submitted and approved. 
17. Development hereby permitted restricted to Use Classes E(g)(ii) - 

Research and development of products or processes E(g)(iii) - 
Industrial processes B2 - General industrial - Use for industrial 
process other than one falling within class E(g) (previously class 
B1) (excluding incineration purposes, chemical treatment or landfill 
or hazardous waste) 

 
 
The Committee adjourned for a short break. 
 

6 24/1796C - FARRIERS COTTAGE, MOSS END LANE, SMALLWOOD, 
CHESHIRE, CW11 2XQ: CONVERSION OF EXISTING BUILDING TO 
ONE RESIDENTIAL DWELLING FOR J & E WRAY  
 
Consideration was given to the above application. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Commencement of development (3 years) 
2. Development in accord with approved plans 
3. Materials as application 
4. Removal of Permitted Development Rights for extensions, 

outbuildings and walls/fences 
5. Landscaping Scheme to be submitted  
6. Landscaping Scheme to be implemented 
7. Actions in evet of any unidentified contamination being identified 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



7 24/2021M - 1, ARBOUR CRESCENT, MACCLESFIELD, SK10 2JB: 2 
STOREY SIDE EXTENSION WITH SINGLE STOREY REAR 
EXTENSION TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL LIVING ACCOMMODATION 
FOR MR MATTHEW GUTTMANN  
 
(Prior to consideration of this application, Councillor D Edwardes, as 
stated in the Declarations of Interest/Pre Determination, left the meeting 
and returned following consideration of the application). 
 
Consideration was given to the above application. 
 
(Mr Matthew Guttmann (Applicant) attended the meeting and spoke in 
respect of the application). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Commencement of development (3 years)  
2. Development in accord with approved plans  
3. Materials as application  
4. Prevention of use of flat roof as balcony  
 

8 CHESHIRE EAST BOROUGH COUNCIL (MACCLESFIELD - 1 
KERSHAW GROVE) TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2024  
 
(Mr Allen Watts (Applicant) attended the meeting and spoke in respect of 
the Tree Preservation Order). 
 
The Committee considered the report on the background and issues 
surrounding the making of a Tree Preservation Order on 27th March 2024 
at 1 Kershaw Grove, Macclesfield and the considered representations 
made to the Council with regard to the content of the Tree Preservation 
Order. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Tree Preservation Order at 1 Kershaw Grove, Macclesfield be 
CONFIRMED with no modifications. 
 
 
During consideration of this item Councillor N Mannion declared that, in 
relation to Item 8, he used to live in the vicinity of the area.  
 
(Prior to consideration of the following item, Councillor Dean left the 
meeting and did not return) 
 
 
 

Page 6



9 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT PERFORMANCE UPDATE  
 
The Committee considered the report on the performance of planning 
enforcement during the last quarter of 2022/2023 and the year of 
2023/2024. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
(During consideration of this item Councillor Smith left the meeting and did 
not return.) 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 1.05 pm 
 

Councillor D Jefferay (Chair) 
 

 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
OFFICIAL 

 
   Application No: 24/1544M 

 
   Location: Mac Multi Activity Centre, GOODALL STREET, MACCLESFIELD, 

CHESHIRE, SK11 7BD 
 

   Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and the construction of a care home (Class 
C2), with associated parking, landscaping, and infrastructure 
 

   Applicant: 
 

Rigby, Cairnwell Developments 

   Expiry Date: 
 

04-Oct-2024 

 
 

 
Summary 
 
The proposals would create 2403sqm of gross new internal C2 Residential Institutions 
floorspace across 35no. bedrooms brought forward by Exemplar Health Care. 24no. parking 
spaces and associated bike stores, sheds, external plant equipment and external amenity bays 
with access are also proposed. The proposals are said once fully operational to provide up to 
100no. jobs, with 35no. employees on site to attend to 35no. residents at any one time.  
 
The principle of development concerning loss of a long-term vacant community and leisure 
facility is considered to be acceptable, as is the erection of a specialist care home facility within 
Macclesfield Principal Town settlement boundary where new residential developments are 
targeted towards. No concern is raised with regard to the level of car parking, the vehicular 
access, nature conservation and biodiversity gains, architectural design and materials palette 
as proposed.  
 
Notwithstanding this, it is considered that the proposals represent overdevelopment of a 
constrained site surrounded by existing dense mixed-use forms. The ratio of built form/hard 
landscaping to external amenity space does not reflect the immediate area, nor what would be 
expected in of terms of adequate levels of outside space/gardens to serve residents and visitors 
for a three-storey development of this size and intensity. The site layout fails to provide an 
ambulance/delivery/collection bay in an appropriate location to serve the development as 
required under HOU2 of the SADPD. The three-storey scale and bulk of the building, closer to 
eastern boundaries than existing buildings does not meet spatial distance standards for new 
development relating to existing development. It is considered that the development will result 
in detrimental impacts on residential amenity due to overbearing development, loss of privacy 
and sunlight to rear external amenity spaces and habitable rooms particularly to those on 
Swettenham Street and Pearson Street due to the height, volume, scale, siting and orientation 
of the proposals. Additionally, there is insufficient information relating to the impacts of 
development on off-site trees within neighbouring residential gardens to the north-east. Whilst 
a specialist care home facility within a settlement boundary is welcomed, as the Council can 
presently demonstrate a housing land supply of which C2 uses form a part of this supply, it is 
not considered that the nominal contribution as a windfall site outweighs the other policy 
conflicts as identified.  

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



 
OFFICIAL 

 
The proposals are therefore recommended for refusal as the development fails to comply with 
local and national planning policies and guidance concerning: design and character, trees and 
landscaping, residential amenity and highways arrangements. 
 
Summary Recommendation 
 
Refuse 
 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL 
 
This application is referred to the Northern Planning Committee as it both meets the automatic 

call-in for applications for Small Scale Major Development for residential developments of 20-

199 dwellings or between 1 and 4ha and also following successful call-in of the application by 

Councillor Warren. Councillor Warren sought the call-in for the following reasons ‘The proposal 

is too close to existing properties and their small gardens, over development of the site and 

loss of visual amenity’.  

 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The site comprises a vacant detached building last formerly used as an activity centre for 
children/parties which is said to have ceased in May 2018. The building is a detached unit 
constructed from red brick and metal profile sheeting sandwiched between recently developed 
housing/work units to the west. There is a large amount of tarmac hardstanding surrounding 
the site. The gross internal floorspace is stated as 1477sqm. The site is largely flat. There are 
17no. existing parking spaces. There are trees to the eastern boundaries of the site. The on-
site pre-development biodiversity value was calculated as 0.35ha. The site is bound to the north 
by Swettenham Street and to the west by Goodall Street where the existing access is taken. 
Goodall Street is a 30mph dual flow, single lane highway with pedestrian pavements either side 
and with uncontrolled on-street parking. Swettenham Street (section to north of site) is a single 
lane highway with no pedestrian pavements utilised more as a service/access road.  
 
The site is situated in a mixed-use area though predominantly surrounded by residential 
dwellings to the north, east and south. To the north is public house called The Wharf. To the 
south are residential properties on Jodrell Street and Pearson Street. To the west are a variety 
of employment/commercial enterprises and vehicle repair shops. Anderson House and Hardern 
House are recently completed offices and assisted living to the west in split massing form of 
two and three storeys finished in contemporary style of black/grey cladding, buff yellow mixed 
blend brick and matching grey fenestration. To the west is the Bollington Brewery tap house 
and distillery. Further to the east is the Macclesfield Canal and its Conservation Area. 
Neighbouring industrial buildings are generally two storeys and completed in a mixture of 
modern warehouse style or red brick 19th century warehouse building aesthetic. Residential 
developments are predominantly two storey in scale, semi-detached or terraced in nature and 
of typical generic material palettes of red brick, feature render, slate or tile roof and upvc 
fenestration. There is no overarching architectural theme to the area due to the sporadic infilling 
of the immediate locality over time and transition from industrial/commercial units to the west 
and more residential properties to north, east and south.  

Page 10



 
OFFICIAL 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
The proposed development description is ‘Demolition of existing buildings and the construction 
of a care home (Class C2), with associated parking, landscaping, and infrastructure’.  
 
The proposals would create 2403sqm of gross new internal C2 Residential Institutions 
floorspace across 35no. rooms. The proposals are brought forward as a specialist care home 
facility by Cairnwell Developments the development arm of Exemplar Health Care described in 
the submission as a national provider and operator of specialist care homes for those with acute 
care needs. The acute care needs covered are stated as: adults of all ages living with complex 
mental health needs, dementia, neuro-disabilities including brain injuries, Huntingtons disease, 
severe Autism, Parkinsons disease and physical disabilities including cerebral palsy, spinal 
injuries and musculoskeletal disorders. A letter supporting the application states 12no. full-time 
jobs will be created covering management and Head of Department jobs and up to 100no. job 
positions once fully at capacity though initially 40no. positions will be created mostly in nursing 
and health care assistant positions. It is stated 50% of the nursing and health care assistant 
positions will be full-time and the rest part-time. It is stated that nursing and health care staff 
will be on 2no. 12-hour shifts from 8am to 8pm and from 8pm to 8am with some other staff 
working ‘typical business hours’ and that management and head of department staff are on 
9am-5pm shifts. It is stated that when the home is at full capacity there will be 35no. colleagues 
on site during the day and 22no. colleagues during the night. The employment created will be 
in nursing, care, admin, management and maintenance positions. The building is proposed as 
a three storey, detached block in a gable and valley style with grey picture framing and flat roof 
dormer features.  
 
Internally the following accommodation is proposed: 
Ground floor – 2no. offices; various stores; drugs and nurses rooms; plant; various w/c’s; quite 
lounge; lounge; dining room; hub; 2no. lifts and 11no. bedrooms. 
First floor – kitchen; guest bedroom; 12no. bedrooms; lounge; quiet lounge; dining room; 
various w/c’s; changing area; sluice; hair and beauty room; drugs room; consult room and 
nurses room. 
Second floor – staff room; changing rooms training room; nurse manager office; drugs room; 
nurses room; sluice; laundry and ironing room; various w/c’s; quiet lounge; 2no. dayspace 
rooms and 12no. bedrooms.  
 
The application form indicates that external facing materials are stated as red and blue brick 
and wood panelling to walls, dark grey cladding panels to walls, grey framed upvc windows and 
doors and grey tiles to the roof. A new access road into the site from Goodall Street is to be 
created. 24no. parking spaces are proposed including 2no. disabled parking spaces. 2no. 
Sheffield Toast Rack cycle stands are proposed to the frontage alongside 4no. other Sheffield 
racks to the south.  A staff smoking shelter, garden shed, refuse store and external plant area 
are also proposed throughout the site though elevational details of these are not provided. It is 
proposed that photovoltaic panels will be installed to the southern roof area and heating will be 
via air source heat pumps. It is proposed that surface water will be drained via a sustainable 
drainage system and foul water will be disposed of via mains sewer. A general landscaping plan 
indicates various kitchen garden, seating, raised beds, hardstanding and fencing. It is stated 
there will be a biodiversity net gain of 69%.  
 

Page 11



 
OFFICIAL 

A pre-application enquiry was not made prior to the submission of this application for the 
proposed major development. 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
Application Site 
20/4698M – Full planning application for demolition of existing structures and construction of 
dwellinghouses and a building providing residential apartments (Use Class C3) with associated 
car parking, landscaping and access. – finally disposed of – 11th October 2023 
 
15/3499D - Discharge of Condition 6 on (14/2295M)Change of use to Community Activity and 
Climbing Centre. Glazed frontage behind roller shutter – approved – 24th February 2017 
 
14/2295M - Change of use to Community Activity and Climbing Centre. Glazed frontage behind 
roller shutter – approved with conditions – 1st August 2014 
 
47865P – single storey extension and change of use to sewing unit – approved – 28th January 
1987 
 
Site to the west – partially built out 
23/4516D - Discharge of conditions 4-8, 11 and 14 on application 23/1276M - Proposals for a 
mixed-use development comprising assisted care living (Class Use C2) and residential 
accommodation (Class Use C3) with associated parking and landscaping – part approved/part 
refused – 3rd April 2024 
 
23/1276M – proposals for a mixed use development comprising assisted care living (class Use 
C2) and residential accommodation (Class Use C3) with associated parking and landscaping 
– approved with conditions – 2nd October 2023 
 
22/3039M – Variation of condition 2 - approved plans on approved application 17/6028M – 
approved with conditions – 21st March 2023 
 
21/0949D - Discharge of conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 , 8 & 11 on approval 17/6028M – approved with 
conditions – 24th May 2022 
 
17/6028M – proposals for a mixed-use development comprising offices, assisted care living 
and residential – approved with conditions – 15th May 2018 
 
POLICIES 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS) 2017 
MP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
PG1 Overall Development Strategy 
PG2 Settlement Hierarchy 
PG7 Spatial Distribution of Development 
SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East 
SD2 Sustainable Development Principles 
IN1 Infrastructure 
IN2 Developer Contributions 

Page 12



 
OFFICIAL 

SC1 Leisure and Recreation 
SC3 Health and Well-being 
SC4 Residential Mix 
SE1 Design 
SE2 Efficient Use of Land 
SE3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SE4 The Landscape 
SE5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 
SE8 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 
SE9 Energy Efficient Development 
SE12 Pollution, Land Contamination and Land Instability 
SE13 Flood Risk and Water Management 
CO1 Sustainable Travel and Transport 
CO4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments 
Appendix C Parking Standards 
 
Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD) 2022 
PG9 Settlement Boundaries 
GEN1 Design principles 
ENV1 Ecological network 
ENV2 Ecological implementation 
ENV5 Landscaping 
ENV6 Trees, hedgerows and woodland implementation 
ENV7 Climate Change 
ENV12 Air quality 
ENV14 Light pollution 
ENV15 New development and existing uses 
ENV16 Surface water management and flood risk 
ENV17 Protecting water resources 
HOU2 Specialist housing provision 
HOU8 Space, accessibility and wheelchair housing standards 
HOU10 Backland development 
HOU11 Extension and alterations 
HOU12 Amenity 
HOU13 Residential standards 
HOU14 Housing density 
HOU16 Small and medium sized sites 
INF1 Cycleways, bridleways and footpaths 
INF3 Highways safety and access 
INF9 Utilities 
REC1 Open space protection 
REC2 Indoor sport and recreation implementation 
REC3 Open space implementation 
REC5 Community facilities 
 
Other material policy considerations 
National Planning Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
SuDS SPD 

Page 13



 
OFFICIAL 

Environmental Protection SPD 
Ecology and Biodiversity Net Gain SPD 
Developer Contributions SPD 
Cheshire East Design Guide SPD 
Housing SPD 
Housing Strategy 2013-2023 
Vulnerable and Older Persons’ Housing Strategy 2020-2024 
Nationally Described Spatial Standards 
 
CONSULTATIONS (External to Planning) 
 
Environmental Protection – object on the grounds of insufficient information regarding impact 
of the development on neighbouring residential dwellings regarding noise and cooking odours 
with regards to plant, equipment etc. relating to the kitchens proposed to serve the 
development.  
Otherwise recommend conditions and informatives relating to noise, disturbance air quality and 
contaminated land. 
 
Head of Strategic Transport – no objection to parking levels or use of existing access though 
asked for revised plan to secure an ambulances drop off, spaces for doctors etc. 
 
Canal and River Trust – made an observation with regards to their freehold of Macclesfield 
Marina to the east; seeks the Conservation Officer is consulted with regards to impact of 
development on the Conservation Area; that full drainage details are conditioned to ensure no 
negative impacts or drainage into the canal network; seel that the Trust are consulted when 
any Phase 2 contaminated land assessment is submitted to safeguard canal from 
contamination; seek submission of noise assessment to inform design/layout of the scheme 
and whether mitigation is required. 
Raised no objection following receipt of additional drainage information as the canal is not 
impacted due to the mains discharge.  
Confirmed no objections subject to conditions regarding the Noise Impacts concerning future 
occupations and surrounding areas. 
 
ANSA Greenspace Officer – no objections or seeking of planning obligations/developer 
contributions – whilst development triggers requirement for open space facilities as per SE6 of 
the CELPS the particular type of residents means this would not fairly and reasonably apply 
and as such contributions are not requested.  
 
Cheshire Fire and Rescue – made comments recommending inclusion of sprinklers to 
consider/reduce risks to: business continuity; sustainability; environmental impact; risk to fire 
fighters; risk to occupants and impacts on the wider community.  
 
Network Rail – no objections. 
 
Cadent Gas – no objections subject to informatives. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority – no objection subject to prior to commencement condition 
seeking submission of foul and surface drainage strategy with sufficient infiltration testing, 
confirmation of attenuation tank, glow rates and hydraulic modelling durations.  

Page 14



 
OFFICIAL 

 
United Utilities – no objection subject to condition: drainage implemented in accordance with 
Foul and Surface Water Drainage Design drawing as submitted dated 15th March 2024 and 
implementation on prior to occupation basis.  
 
Strategic Housing – no objection. Sought confirmation of this from Adult Social Care Officer. 
 
Adult Social Care – consulted however no comments were returned at time of report. 
 
Designing Out Crime Officer – no objections subject to additional details/ conditions to 
secure: secure gates/fencing at the site entrance to protect parking areas with CCTV or pin 
code access to prevent mis-use of car parking; re-consideration of close boarded fencing to 
parking areas 3-12 to allow for better natural surveillance instead using 1.8 bow top railings; 
exterior lighting plan submission; CCTV scheme externally and internally; refuse areas must be 
secured to reduce issues such as bin diving, dumping and arson and gates to garden areas 
should be lockable for security reasons. 
 
Macclesfield Town Council – support the proposals and feel it is a good location. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Macclesfield Civic Society – made observations as follows: 

- New development of care home would fit in with the mixed character of the locality and 

be a welcome addition to social care provision in the town.  

- The design and external appearance are well thought out. 

- The development may result in less impact on the area due to traffic generation or 

disturbance due to the nature of care to be provided. 

- Parking areas and manoeuvring areas are proposed back onto rear external amenity 

areas of existing residential development on Jodrell Street and Goodall Street which may 

lead to disturbance from light and noise, though perhaps dealt with by landscaping 

scheme submission of fencing/hard surfacing treatments.  

- Insufficient provision of disabled parking spaces for size of development. 

- Insufficient provision of space for ambulance or larger transit vehicle.  

 
 
14no. letter from the public was received objecting to the development summarised as follows: 

- Development would create additional traffic in a busy part of town before and after 

construction. 

- The new access onto the highway has insufficient visibility and may become dangerous 

due to limited space on exiting highway due to on-street parking issues. 

- The surrounding highway network is unsuitable for large vehicles or ambulances that 

may service the development due to narrow lanes and tight junctions and parked cars 

at Goodall Street, Brook Street and Turnock Street. 

- The development would detrimentally impact residential amenity of surrounding 

properties due to the three-storey height, scale and siting resulting in a loss of privacy, 

overbearing impacts and loss of natural light/overshadowing.  

Page 15



 
OFFICIAL 

- The development is not in keeping with the character and appearance of the local area 

in architectural style or material palette in particular black painted bricks.  

- The development has insufficient on-site parking considering 100no. jobs are said to be 

created and as a result will harm existing on-street parking issues experienced in the 

immediate area. 

- The application is unclear as to how many employees there will be at the site, one 

comment says 100no. full and part-time jobs. 

- The development results in the unjustified loss of mature trees without sufficient 

consideration or mitigation.  

- The development will result in the loss of biodiversity including common newt, great 

crested newt, birds and bats also due to loss of on-site trees. 

- The development would detrimentally impact the setting of nearby Conservation Areas 

due to it being oversized and representing overdevelopment.   

- The application has many errors such as comments that surrounding buildings are 

between 2 to 4 storeys in height when most are only 3 storeys.  

 
3 no. letters from the public were received making observations as follows: 

- Impact on residential amenity of surrounding properties from: noise from heat pumps, 

kitchens and air conditioning units. Mitigating acoustic fences may assist. 

- Impact on residential amenity of surrounding properties from: odours from refuse and 

kitchens. Mitigating ozone filters for odours may assist. 

- Impact of the development on parking on surrounding streets regarding parking, access 

and highways safety concerns.  

- A new care home would fit in with mixed character of the area and social care needs of 

the town. 

- Proximity of parking to shared boundaries may be problematic from a noise disturbance 

perspective. 

- The number of disabled bay spaces seems rather low with no parking or areas for 

ambulances or larger transit vehicles. 

 
1no. Letter from the public was received in support of the application:  

- The application brings jobs and a development which will be quiet in nature once built.  

- The removal of trees is concerning but may be mitigated by securing replacement 

planting. 

 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Principle of the development  
The site is located within the Macclesfield Principal Town settlement boundary area. In the 
defined settlement boundaries is where new developments including residential uses are 
targeted for due to their sustainable locations relative to existing infrastructure and services. It 
is also where leisure, retail, commerce and employment is targeted, due to the siting close to 
transport and other existing infrastructure and facilities.  
 
Concern was raised as to how much employment was to be generated at the site due to 
conflicting statements in the submission. This has been since clarified and is as reflected in the 
proposals section of this report. 

Page 16



 
OFFICIAL 

 
The proposals would result in the loss of a vacant leisure facility, most recently used as a 
Children’s Activity Centre. It is noted that this use ceased in around 2018 and since has sat 
vacant. Policy SC1 Leisure and Recreation of the CELPS seeks to protect and enhance existing 
leisure and recreation facilities unless a needs assessment has clearly proven them to be 
surplus to a local community needs or unless alternative provision of equivalent or better quality 
is to be made. This policy also seeks relative enhancements of such facilities will be supported 
and that applicable major development likely to impact such services will be expected to 
contribute towards them. Policy REC5 Community Facilities of the SADPD seeks that 
development proposals retain, enhance and maintain community facilities that make a positive 
contribution to the social or cultural life of a community. It notes that the particular benefits of 
any proposal that secures long-term retention of a community facility will be given positive 
weight in determining planning applications and any facility making a positive contribution to 
the social or cultural life of a community should be retained unless suitable alternative provision 
is made. 
 
Whilst the last use was for a leisure, recreation and community purpose, this private leisure 
establishment has been long ceased for over 8 years, as can be evidenced from TripAdvisor 
reviews that stop from May 2018 onwards, it is thus not considered sensible or just to seek an 
assessment of need or consideration of alternative provision on this occasion regarding SC1 of 
the CELPS. The site is also not listed as an asset of community value or otherwise. Though the 
loss of any leisure, recreation and community purpose is regrettable, due to the passage of 
time in this instance, it is considered that there would be a negligible impact on leisure, 
recreation and community facilities in Macclesfield when considering the settlement and other 
facilities available on the whole which justifies the loss in its entirety on this occasion. 
 
In terms of the need for a specialist care home facility in this location policy HOU2 Specialist 
housing provision of the SADPD is most relevant. This policy supports the delivery of specialist 
housing which meets an identified need that is designed to support a specific use or group 
intended for, this includes those for older people. The proposals would provide a rather large 
facility providing specialist care within a settlement boundary close to existing facilities and 
within a mixed-use area. The Councils current Housing Land Supply position is that the Council 
has deliverable supply in excess of the minimum of 5 years required under national planning 
policy. As a consequence of the decision by the Environment and Communities Committee on 
1 July 2022, to carry out an update of the Local Plan Strategy (LPS), from 27 July (the fifth 
anniversary of its adoption), the borough’s deliverable housing land supply is now calculated 
using the Council’s Local Housing Need figure. The latest published assessment of deliverable 
housing land supply can be found in the Cheshire East Housing Monitoring Update (base date 
31 March 2022) which confirms a deliverable five-year housing land supply of 11.6 years. 
 
The proposals would provide a nominal contribution as a windfall site to the Council’s 
demonstratable 11.2-year housing land supply of which C2 uses contribute to (bedrooms are 
counted as dwelling units). The proposals would also lead to job creation far exceeding those 
in place when the previous activity centre use was operational, again within a settlement 
boundary location where employment generation is targeted.  
 
It is therefore considered that the principle of the development is acceptable.  
 
Design, built heritage and local character 

Page 17



 
OFFICIAL 

Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that new development is of an appropriate 
size, scale and design that is commensurate to the character of the area in which it would be 
situated, whilst championing higher quality design to enhance and improve the wider borough. 
The proposals also seek to preserve and enhance built heritage assets and landscape 
character. 
 
Concern was raised during consultation at the architectural design, scale and siting of the 
development not being in keeping with the surrounding mixed-use area. Concern was raised 
that the proposals represent overdevelopment of the site in comparison to immediate form and 
that this may adversely impact the setting of the Conservation Area.  
 
The application is supported by a Design and Access Statement, Energy Statement and 
Planning Statement alongside several drawings.  
 
The proposed architectural design and material palette is not dissimilar to those recently 
implemented to immediate neighbouring developments along Goodall Street at Harden House, 
Anderson House and that immediately to the south. These neighbouring forms use brick, black 
accent panels, black/grey upvc fenestration arranged in an almost gable ended warehouse 
style reflecting the mixed use and semi-industrial original nature of this site and immediate area. 
No concern is raised as to the architectural design narrative nor indicated materials, though full 
details can be secured by condition. The NDSS standards for bedroom sizes appears to be met 
throughout the development. The development is also step free. The Conservation Officer 
supported the proposals not raising any concern as to impacts on the setting of nearby 
designated heritage assets.  
 
Notwithstanding this, it is considered that due to the increased height, bulk and volume of built 
form in comparison to what is insitu and the immediate neighbouring form, represents 
overdevelopment and over-intensification of a heavily constrained site. The site albeit in a built-
up area in comparison to that insitu and similar residential development appears overly dense. 
Whilst the new buildings on Goodall Street are of three storeys, as such there is some scale 
comparison there, when read in conjunction and in relation to the modest two storey residential 
properties to the north, east and south on Swettenham Street, Jodrell Street and Pearson Street 
will appear overly dominant, visually prominent and closer to shared boundaries. In addition, 
comparing the floorspace of the development with the plot size, it is clear as per ANSA 
Greenspace commentary that the ratio of built form to external amenity space serving a 
development of this size is an under-provision. The majority of external amenity areas are 
constrained by neighbouring development or the building planned and due to siting would likely 
be in shade for a large proportion of the day. The proposals lack meaningful and well-
considered outdoor space. In comparison to the original submission the amended layout due 
to the results of the Noise Impact Assessment to provide an area for external plant has further 
reduced the on-site external amenity areas for residents and visitors. This external plant area 
albeit mitigating for noise from plant from a 3.5m timber fence, the fence in itself would also 
present detrimental impacts on the character and appearance of the area due to its dominating 
height albeit on the back street portion of Swettenham Street would be visible from within the 
site itself and also from Goodall Street and rears of properties on Swettenham Street. Details 
such as shed, planting, storage, cycle stores, retaining walls etc. are noted on the drawings 
provided however specific details are not yet provided, though could be controlled via planning 
condition.  
 

Page 18



 
OFFICIAL 

Overall, the proposals are considered to be contrary to policies and guidance as follows 
concerning design and character: SD1, SD2, SE1, SE2 and SE4 of the CELPS, GEN1, ENV5, 
HOU2 and HOU10 of the SADPD and the CE Design Guide and Housing SPD.  
 
Living conditions 
Between them the listed policies and guidance seek to ensure all development is located and 
designed so as not to result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, surface water 
and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any other 
pollution which would unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or detrimentally 
affect amenity or cause harm. Developers will be expected to minimise and mitigate the effects 
of possible pollution arising from the development itself, or as a result of the development 
(including additional traffic) during both the construction and the life of the development. Where 
adequate mitigation cannot be provided, development will not normally be permitted.  
 
Concern was raised as to the impact on neighbouring properties amenity due to the siting and 
scale of the development proposed. Concern was raised that the proximity of parking spaces 
to the boundaries of properties on Goodall Street and Jodrell Street may result in detrimental 
impacts due to noise, damage and fumes from vehicle movements. Concern was also brought 
up regarding noise, vibration and discharge from associated plant for the development including 
ventilation from kitchens etc. 
 
Policies HOU12 and HOU13 set out that sufficient spatial distances between existing 
development and new development must be created to allow for natural light, mitigation of 
overshadowing, overbearing and dominant effects and to allow for privacy. Table 8.2 sets out 
these minimum standards as below: 
 

  
 

Page 19



 
OFFICIAL 

The average distance between habitable rear rooms of the two storey properties on 
Swettenham Street (East) and the rear elevation of the development is 21m. The distances 
between the new development and those on Swettenham Street (East) and Pearson Street 
falls short of the minimum 24m standard for three storey buildings back-to-back. The three-
storey rear elevation, with expanse of habitable room windows, is also positioned approximately 
5m from the rear garden boundaries of the properties on Swettenham Street.  As a result, it is 
considered that the development would cause detrimental impacts as a result of an overbearing 
effect on the neighbouring occupants and future occupants of extant permission for other new 
neighbouring residential development due to proximity and scale and also direct overlooking 
and loss of privacy into habitable rooms and rear garden areas from height. It is not considered 
that the levels difference between the site and Swettenham Street provides justification for 
space distance standards not to be met due to the height, mass and expanse of new 
development proposed. 
 
At the time of report writing there is also an extant permission ref: 23/1276M for immediate 
neighbouring development of a mixed C2/C3 development to the west on Goodall Street. The 
minimum distances appear to be met between that development and this, as is the case with 
the recently built assisted living and office developments Anderson House and Hardern House 
also to the west. With this said it does appear from site photos that that development has not 
been built out in total accordance with the approved plans, albeit due to distance standards 
being met it is not problematic for the current application.  
 
The development is considered to be contrary to policies and guidance concerning protection 
of residential amenity including SE1 of the CELPS, HOU10, HOU12 and HOU13 of the SADPD 
and the Cheshire East Design Guide SPD. 
 
In terms of contaminated land and pollution control, the application is supported by a Phase I 
and II Risk Assessments regarding contaminated land and a Noise Impact Assessment, 
following initial concerns raised by the Environmental Health Officers and the Canal and River 
Trust. 
 
The supporting Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) states that there will be installation of external 
plant including the following: 
• 3 no. Mitsubishi CAHV-R450YA-HPB heat pumps (71 dB(A) sound power level (per unit)) – 
to be installed to northern boundary of the site in an external plant compound. 
• 3 no. Toshiba MHP0604HS-E condensing units (71 dB(A) sound power level (per unit)) - to 
be installed to northern boundary of the site in an external plant compound. 
• 1 no. Toshiba SM304ATP-E condensing unit (62 dB(A) sound power level) – to be installed 
to southern boundary of the site. 
 
It is understood that the MHP0604HS-E condensing units can operate in low-noise mode during 
the night, which reduces noise levels by circa 4 dB(A). The kitchen is proposed to be served by 
intake and extract vents using Woods MaXfan Compac axial fans with silencers on the vent 
path to external louvres, noting the kitchen will only operate during daytime hours between 0700 
and 1800. Noise monitoring was undertaken on Swettenham Street. The NIA recommends the 
erection of a 3.5m high solid timber, double thickness, fence be installed around the external 
plant and further to this seeks that the condensing unit be mounted at ground level and 
screened by a 2m high solid timber, double thickness, fence. The NIA concludes that subject 

Page 20



 
OFFICIAL 

to this mitigation that there would be no negative impacts on residential amenity or the acoustic 
character of the area.  
 
The updated Phase I and II assessments have been submitted to the Environmental Health 
teams for consideration, in their response they note the reports submitted are simply updates 
of the original submitted Phase II report and did not address the issues in their previous 
response to include a Phase I that is conducted in line with the Land Contamination Risk 
Management (LCRM) and a site walkover with conceptual site model. In regards to the Phase 
II investigation they note this was also limited and did not cover investigation of the former depot 
area which is an area of potential contamination due to its past use. They therefore recommend 
prior to commencement conditions are used to secure this information alongside other 
conditions concerning verification reports, soil importation testing and reporting of previously 
undiscovered contamination.  
 
The Environmental Health officers also reviewed the supporting NIA and raise no objection to 
the development, further to use of planning conditions attached to any approval of the 
development, to secure implementation of the mitigation scheme within the NIA. The Canal and 
River Trust however made observation that they consider against paragraph 193 of the NPPF 
that the NIA did not adequately consider ensuring the ongoing operation activity at the Marina 
and potential noise of associated boating activity, maintenance and construction are recognised 
in the consideration of the application. Whilst the NIA does not refer to the canal/boating activity 
to the east on balance it is considered that the proposals are some 60m away from the edge of 
the basin and due to the presence of building and trees between these forms that it would be 
disproportionate to request this be incorporated into the NIA on this occasion. 
 
In terms of the electric vehicle charging and ultra-low emission boilers sought for inclusion by 
the Environmental Health Officers as this is covered under Building Regulations for new 
developments it would not meet the tests for the use of planning conditions to include it in any 
approval issued for this development. 
 
Highway safety and parking  
Between them the listed policies seek to deliver safe, sustainable, high quality, integrated 
transport systems that encourage a modal shift away from car travel to public transport, cycling 
and walking; supportive of the needs of residents and businesses and preparing for carbon free 
modes of transport. They also seek to protect and maintain public rights of way and enhance 
them where detrimental impacts require mitigation or allocations indicate.  
 
The proposals use a new access point of 5.5m wide from Goodall Street, an adopted 30pmh 
highway. The new access proposed no dedicated pedestrian infrastructure/pavements to 
connect with the existing infrastructure on Goodall Street.  
 
The proposals are accompanied by a Transport Statement. This states that 24no. vehicle 
spaces (including 2no. disabled spaces) and 4no. cycle spaces will be provided (though the 
plans show 5no.). The Transport Statement states that delivery and servicing will be as follows: 
refuse collection 1no. heavy goods vehicle per week; food delivery – maximum 3no. heavy 
goods vehicle per week; clinical waste collection – 1no. transit van per week; clinical equipment 
1no. transit van per week; incontinence products 1no. every 12 weeks transit van and 
medication 1no. small van per day. Swept path analysis supports the proposals also. The 
Transport Statement at Table 6.7 states a net vehicle trip generation contrasted against the 

Page 21



 
OFFICIAL 

existing use would be 4no. from 0800-0900 hours; -2no. trips 1700-1800 and between 0700-
1900 5no. trips.  
 
Appendix C Parking Standards highlights that for a C2 for a specialist care home use class 
‘residential homes and nursing homes’ land use as proposed that for residents 1no. space per 
three bedrooms and for staff 1no. per resident staff and 1no. per 2 non-resident staff are to be 
provided. This generates a requirement of 30no. Total spaces calculated as 35no. bedrooms/3 
= 11.6 rounded up to 12no. spaces and 35no. non-resident staff/2 = 17.5 rounded up to 18no. 
spaces. This shows an under-provision of on-site vehicular parking. With this said, the minimum 
standard parking space dimensions of 4.8m x 2.5m which all appear to be met across the site, 
as do the disabled parking bays and minimum car park aisle width for one-way routes. The 
cycle parking requirement generated from the development is 1no. space per 10 units equating 
to 3no. which is met by the proposals, subject to further details on their security, specification, 
colour and materials as this is not within the submission.  
 
The Transport Statement argues for the proposed 24no. spaces provision as: they consider 
that the recommended parking levels are met, that otherwise the parking survey carried out at 
an existing Exemplar Care Home in Leeds shows a parking standard significantly below the 
Council’s recommended standards could cater for the maximum parking demand at the site;  
other permitted/existing Exemplar sites shows the parking provision for Macclesfield is in line 
with the higher ratio for similar Exemplar sites. They also argue that there are bus services into 
Macclesfield and beyond within 1km of the site and also train links to Manchester and London 
in a similar distance resulting in the development being otherwise sustainably and well located 
with regard to public transport options.  
 
In addition to the parking requirements, HOU2 of the SADPD sets out in paragraph 3. ‘iv. the 
design of the proposal, including any individual units of accommodation, should be capable of 
meeting the specialist accommodation support and care needs of the occupier. This includes 
pick up and drop off facilities close to the principal entrance suitable for taxis (with appropriate 
kerbs), minibuses and ambulances and the ability to provide assistive technology and internet 
connectivity where relevant.’ 
The proposals do not provide any pick-up or drop off facilities. It is considered this policy does 
apply as the development is for all ages.  
 
This has been reviewed by the Highways Officer who raises no objection to the access or level 
of parking proposed noting only 35no. staff are proposed to be working at the site at any one 
time. It is also considered due to proximity to existing pedestrian infrastructure, public transport 
and wider area connections from the Town Centre a short walk away including train station 
renders the site a sustainable location regarding transport options. They do however raise 
concern at the lack of ambulance or medical etc. drop off bays for the development as sought 
for in policy. The Highways Officer seeks that 1no. ambulance bay of 9m (l) x 2.7m (w) is 
provided to the north of the entrance which will cater for a large size ambulance but also allow 
other visiting similar vehicles or drop-offs or deliveries/collection to be undertaken. Whilst this 
would remedy the HOU2 requirement it would inadvertently result in detrimental impacts on 
future occupants of the ground floor bedrooms on the western elevation due to vehicle noise, 
fumes and poor outlook and also result in loss of further external amenity areas where the ratio 
of this is already under that expected or deemed sensible for a development of this size. As 
this bay has not been provided the proposals are contrary to policies SD1 and SE1 of the 

Page 22



 
OFFICIAL 

CELPS and HOU2, HOU10 and INF3 of the SADPD and the Housing SPD as sufficient 
ambulance drop off/pick up bays have not been provided. 
 
Biodiversity and nature conservation 
The listed policies of the development plan and guidance seek that all development must aim 
to positively contribute to the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity 
and should not negatively affect these interests, instead planning for net gains. Where 
appropriate, conditions will be put in place to make sure appropriate monitoring is undertaken 
and make sure mitigation, compensation and offsetting is effective. Where such impacts are 
unavoidable, development proposals must satisfactorily demonstrate a new environmental gain 
by appropriate mitigation, compensation or offsetting. 
 
The application is supported by a Biodiversity Survey and Report, Assessment of Biodiversity 
Net Gain, Bat Roost Assessment and Bay Survey. The Nature Conservation Officer has 
reviewed the proposals and notes that as no bats were recorded during the bat survey efforts 
it is not reasonably likely that bats are present or will be affected by the development. The 
Nature Conservation Officer reviewed the Biodiversity Net Gain Metric and confirms that the 
development is likely to deliver a net gain on the site due to the increase in tree planting and 
grassland on the site thus complying with the Mitigation Hierarchy and Biodiversity Hierarchy. 
They also sought that additional ecological enhancements for urban birds such as house 
sparrow and swift be included to comply with policy SE3 requirements and protection of 
nesting/breeding birds during the construction period. The development is considered to be in 
compliance with policies and guidance covering nature conservation and biodiversity net gain 
subject to conditions.  
 
Trees and hedgerows: 
Between them the listed policies and guidance also seek to protect the continued health and 
life expectancy of trees, hedgerows or woodlands and where loss of or threat to them is 
proposed development will not normally be permitted unless there are clear overriding reasons 
for allowing development and that there are no suitable alternatives.  
 
The application is supported by a Tree Survey and Constraints Report (TS), Tree Protection 
Plan (TPP) and Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA). The majority of the on and off-site 
trees are to be retained with 3no. trees lost as a result of the development G2 Sycamore (1no. 
tree on-site); T16 Goat Willow and G1 Ash. To other areas in close proximity to off-site trees 
and within their root protection areas no dig surfacing is proposed. The Forestry Officer has 
reviewed the proposals and objected to the proposals due to the conflicts in the distances of 
the development from off-site trees to the north-east of the site which are providing visual relief 
and green screening from the development and existing neighbours to the east. The distances 
of development relative to these trees and their RPA is shown differently on supporting 
drawings and the proximity of the scheme and its drainage has not been adequately appraised 
in the supporting AIA, TPP or TS so it is not possible to understand the impact of the 
development on these trees required on a prior to determination basis. This was relayed to the 
applicants’ agent during the course of the application and whilst it was stated by the agent 
additional information to this regard was provided this has not been the case and to this end 
there is insufficient information regarding the impact of the development on trees. The 
proposals are considered to be contrary to policies SD1, SD2 and SE5 of CELPS and ENV6 of 
the SADPD. 
 

Page 23



 
OFFICIAL 

Water management and flood risk prevention 
The site is located in flood zone 1 where there is a low pluvial flood risk.  Between them the 
listed policies seek that developments must integrate measures for sustainable water 
management to reduce flood risk, avoid an impact on water quality and quantity within the 
borough and provide opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health and recreation. New 
development must be designed to be safe, taking into account the lifetime of the development 
and the need to adapt to climate change, seeking improvements to current surface water 
drainage network and be designed to manage surface water noting it is not sustainable to drain 
surface water to public sewers. New development should incorporate water efficiency 
measures. 
 
The application form states surface water will be handled via Sustainable Urban Drainage 
System and fouls via mains sewer. A detailed Flood Risk Assessment, United Utilities and 
CCTV Drainage Strategy and Drainage Strategy also supports the application which states for 
fouls the existing site discharges via a private network which discharges into the existing Untied 
Utilities combined sewer infrastructure 150mm diameter at the site entrance. The Surface 
Water drainage system will be SuDS based with a variety of perforated pipes and attenuation 
tanks under permeable paving areas which are proposed to connect to the existing UU 
combined network via 300mm diameter new pipework under the new access road. The foul 
drainage will also connect into existing infrastructure to the west. This has been reviewed by 
the LLFA Officer who does not object to the proposals however seeks that further information 
as to infiltration testing, connections and discharge rates be provided on a prior to 
commencement basis via appropriately worded planning condition. Despite this the applicants 
have provided additional information on this basis to which the Canal and River Trust raise no 
objection to the proposed drainage scheme as it does not connect directly into the canal 
network. The LLFA reviewed the additional calculations and amended drainage layout and 
sought that the following be considered and can be remedied appropriately by appropriately 
worded planning conditions, due to their being some additional calculations information 
regarding the SuDS to be provided to justify the design chosen.  
 
It is considered subject to the use of planning conditions that the proposals are in compliance 
with the listed policies and guidance concerning water management and flood risk prevention. 
 
Other material considerations 
Due to the major scale nature of the proposals the NHS, Education and ANSA Greenspace 
Officers were consulted on the application to understand whether developer contributions 
towards off-site projects were required as a result of additional pressures or needs generated 
on these existing infrastructures as a result of the development. Each confirmed that in this 
instance contributions were not required due to the type of resident destined to occupy the 
building and that their needs would be catered for within the building or site itself without having 
detrimental or additional impacts on existing infrastructure.  
 
Due to the Council’s demonstrable housing land supply, it is not considered that the nominal 
contribution of 35no. C2 units provides sufficient positive weight in which to outweigh the policy 
conflicts as highlighted, nor the job creation. Inclusion of solar/PV panels, air heat pumps etc. 
are also welcomed however are not considered to represent a scale or type of which is 
exceptional regarding use of climate change initiatives that exceed those general required in 
planning policy nor building regulations for this to provide substantial positive weight to 
outweigh highlighted issues. 

Page 24



 
OFFICIAL 

 
It is not considered material considerations have been presented that outweigh the conflicts 
with policies and guidance at local and national levels. 
 
Conclusion 
It is considered that on balance the proposals do not represent sustainable development and 
conflict with policies and guidance as highlighted concerning design/character, residential 
amenity, highways arrangements and trees.  
 
The proposals are therefore recommended for refusal for the following reasons:   
 

1. Due to the size, scale, bulk, siting and orientation of the proposed development it results 

in the overdevelopment of a heavily constrained site. The three-storey form, singular 

large massing and volume is considered to be visually prominent and overbearing in the 

wider area from Jodrell Street, Pearson Street and Swettenham Street vistas in particular 

in comparison to that insitu. The built form including hard-landscaping to external 

amenity space ratio does not reflect themes of similar residential developments in the 

area, nor the quantum of built development proposed and future needs of occupants, 

visitors and staff regarding provision of adequately proportioned and well-positioned, on-

site external amenity space. The mitigatory 3.5m timber screening for external plant to 

the north of the site would be prominent and unsightly and be detrimental to the character 

of the site and immediate area visible from Swettenham Street and Goodall Street. Dues 

to the scale of the development it fails to provide for 1no. ambulance/drop-off/pick-up 

bay to serve the development which includes specialist care for all ages including the 

elderly/older persons. The development is considered to be contrary to policies and 

guidance SD1, SD2, SE1, SE2 and SE4 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2017, 

GEN1, ENV5, HOU2, HOU10 and INF3 of the Site Allocations and Development Policies 

Document 2022, the Cheshire East Design Guide SPD and Housing SPD.  

 
2. The development is considered to result in overbearing impacts and loss of  privacy to 

rear habitable rooms and external amenity/garden areas of existing properties on 

Swettenham Street and Pearson Street due to the three-storey scale, siting and 

orientation of the proposed new building. The development is considered to be contrary 

to policies and guidance: SE12 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2017, ENV15, 

HOU2, HOU10, HOU12 and HOU13 of the Site Allocations and Development Policies 

Document 2022 and the Cheshire East Design Guide SPD. 

 
3. There is insufficient information to ascertain the impact of the development on off-site 

trees. The proposals are considered to be contrary to policies SD1, SD2 and SE5 of 

Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2017 and ENV6 of the Site Allocations and 

Development Policies Document 2022.  

 
 
In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee’s decision (such as 
to delete, vary or add Conditions and/or Informatives or reasons for approval prior to the 
decision being issued, the Head of Planning has delegated authority to do so in consultation 

Page 25



 
OFFICIAL 

with the Chair of the Northern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed 
the substantive nature of the Committee’s decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 26



 
OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

N 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

24/1544M 

Mac Multi Activity Centre, 

GOODALL STREET,  

MACCLESFIELD,  

SK11 7BD 

P
age 29



Page 30



P
age 31



33

23

41

45

Hardern

El Sub Sta

GOODALL STREET

House

House
Anderson

PEARSON STREET

ASSUMED RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT FOOTPRINT

Indicitave PV Area
(Design TBC by M&E)01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

+154.30

FFL+154.30

Smoking

Refuse

Shed

Ext Plant

BOUNDARY MARKER

KEY

SECURE PERIMETER FENCE
2.1m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED TIMBER FENCE.
BOARDING TO FACE INWARDS INTO SECURE AREA.
DOUBLE SIDED WHERE FACING PUBLIC SPACE

ESTATE ROAD/PARKING
BLACK MACADAM TO ENGINEER'S DETAILS

FOOTPATHS/ACCESS
BLACK MACADAM TO ENGINEER'S DETAILS

BOUNDARY FENCE
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED TIMBER FENCE.
BOARDING TO FACE INWARDS. DOUBLE SIDED
WHERE FACING PUBLIC SPACE

CONTROLLED ACCESS POINT
CONTROLLED ACCESS POINT

INTERNAL PATHS AND PATIOS
TOBERMORE MAYFAIR  SILVER PAVIORS 400x400x40mm

KITCHEN GARDEN
TOBERMORE MANHATTEN PAVO MIX, MANHATTEN SILVER.
MANHATTEN MID GREY & MANHATTEN SILVER TO
SUPPLIERS MIX RATIOS. PAVIORS 600x150x80mm.
GRAPHITE BAND TO PERIMETER

STANDARD KERB
PCC KERB 125x255x195. NATURAL

STANDARD TRANSITION KERB
PCC TRANSITION KERB 125-255x150x915. NATURAL.

STANDARD DROPPED KERB
PCC CENTRE DROPPED KERB 125x150x915. NATURAL.

EDGING KERB
PCC EDGING KERB 150x150x915. NATURAL.

GARDEN SEATING
3 SEATER TEAK. ARMREST & BACK REST

RAISED PLANTERS
VEG TRUG OUTDOOR MEDIUM PLANTER
1830mm (L) FSC CERTIFIED (CEDAR). NATURAL
FINISH. WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE

SERVICE USER SMOKING SHELTER
TOREGAL SMOKING SHELTER
2200(L)x1650(W)x2400(H). SOLAR LED LAMP, WASTE
BIN & ASHTRAY. MODEL-SBL 800 FRAME & ROOF
GALVANISED STEEL. 3 SIDES. POLYCARBONATE.
LIGHT,EMERGENCY CALL, E-CIG CHARGER, BENCH
GROUND FIXED

GARDEN SHED
DANCOVER LEAN TO SHED-ARROW
2.03(L)x1.24(W)x2.08(H)M. ANTHRACITE GALVANISED STEEL.
GROUND FIXED

ENTRANCE PAVING
TOBERMORE BRAEMAR BLOCK PAVING JURA GREY
GROUND. 200x100x80mm

GRAVEL INFILL
GREY PEA SHINGLE

BIKE STANDS
4 NO. SHEFFIELD TOAST RACK STANDS / GALVANISED.

STAFF SMOKING SHELTER
TOREGAL SMOKING SHELTER
2200(L)x1650(W)x2400(H). SOLAR LED LAMP, WASTE
BIN & ASHTRAY. MODEL-SBL 800 FRAME & ROOF
GALVANISED STEEL. 3 SIDES. POLYCARBONATE.

BOUNDARY MARKER

KEY

SECURE PERIMETER FENCE
2.1m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED TIMBER FENCE.
BOARDING TO FACE INWARDS INTO SECURE AREA.
DOUBLE SIDED WHERE FACING PUBLIC SPACE

ESTATE ROAD/PARKING
BLACK MACADAM TO ENGINEER'S DETAILS

FOOTPATHS/ACCESS
BLACK MACADAM TO ENGINEER'S DETAILS

BOUNDARY FENCE
1.8m HIGH CLOSE BOARDED TIMBER FENCE.
BOARDING TO FACE INWARDS. DOUBLE SIDED
WHERE FACING PUBLIC SPACE

CONTROLLED ACCESS POINT
CONTROLLED ACCESS POINT

INTERNAL PATHS AND PATIOS
TOBERMORE MAYFAIR  SILVER PAVIORS 400x400x40mm

KITCHEN GARDEN
TOBERMORE MANHATTEN PAVO MIX, MANHATTEN SILVER.
MANHATTEN MID GREY & MANHATTEN SILVER TO
SUPPLIERS MIX RATIOS. PAVIORS 600x150x80mm.
GRAPHITE BAND TO PERIMETER

STANDARD KERB
PCC KERB 125x255x195. NATURAL

STANDARD TRANSITION KERB
PCC TRANSITION KERB 125-255x150x915. NATURAL.

STANDARD DROPPED KERB
PCC CENTRE DROPPED KERB 125x150x915. NATURAL.

EDGING KERB
PCC EDGING KERB 150x150x915. NATURAL.

GARDEN SEATING
3 SEATER TEAK. ARMREST & BACK REST

RAISED PLANTERS
VEG TRUG OUTDOOR MEDIUM PLANTER
1830mm (L) FSC CERTIFIED (CEDAR). NATURAL
FINISH. WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE

SERVICE USER SMOKING SHELTER
TOREGAL SMOKING SHELTER
2200(L)x1650(W)x2400(H). SOLAR LED LAMP, WASTE
BIN & ASHTRAY. MODEL-SBL 800 FRAME & ROOF
GALVANISED STEEL. 3 SIDES. POLYCARBONATE.
LIGHT,EMERGENCY CALL, E-CIG CHARGER, BENCH
GROUND FIXED

GARDEN SHED
DANCOVER LEAN TO SHED-ARROW
2.03(L)x1.24(W)x2.08(H)M. ANTHRACITE GALVANISED STEEL.
GROUND FIXED

ENTRANCE PAVING
TOBERMORE BRAEMAR BLOCK PAVING JURA GREY
GROUND. 200x100x80mm

GRAVEL INFILL
GREY PEA SHINGLE

BIKE STANDS
4 NO. SHEFFIELD TOAST RACK STANDS / GALVANISED.

STAFF SMOKING SHELTER
TOREGAL SMOKING SHELTER
2200(L)x1650(W)x2400(H). SOLAR LED LAMP, WASTE
BIN & ASHTRAY. MODEL-SBL 800 FRAME & ROOF
GALVANISED STEEL. 3 SIDES. POLYCARBONATE.

Project:

Title:

Status:

Drawing  No.:

Scale: Size:

Drawn:First Issued:

1:200 A1

Comment
Willow Cottage, School Lane, Burdwarsley, CH3 9NX. 01829 770 075

NOTE:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
3. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being 

laid out.

Exemplar Health Care
Goodall Street Macclesfield

Hardworks & boundary
treatments

AT.24.11877.100r6

MARCH 24 AP

0 1010
SCALE 1 : 200

m m

NOTES
1. All to architect's and engineer's details.
2. All works to be DDA compliant.

r2 Amended to HIA comments 28/03/2024 AP

r3 Shared road amended 19/04/2024 AP

r4 Updated to architect's dwg 3687-HIA-01-00-DR-A-0102-P10
06/08/2024

AP

r5
Updated to architect's dwg
3687-HIA-01-00-DR-A-0102-D0-P11 15/08/2024 AP

r6
Updated to architect's dwg
3687-HIA-01-00-DR-A-0102-D0-P12 21/08/2024 AP

P
age 32



33

23

41

45

Hardern

El Sub Sta

GOODALL STREET

House

House
Anderson

PEARSON STREET

ASSUMED RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT FOOTPRINT

Indicitave PV Area
(Design TBC by M&E)01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

+154.30

FFL+154.30

Smoking

Refuse

Shed

13 No. S3

7 No. S6

7 No. S6

7 No. S6

14 No. S3
12 No. S2

12 No. S2

15 No. S1

SM1

7 No. S1

10 No. S3
7 No. S5
12 No. S4

10 No. S3
7 No. S5

7 No. S6
5 No. S7

25 No. S5

65 No. S2 25 No. S2

3 No. T2

65 No. S1

NH03

1 No. T3

3 No. T1

9 No. S6
17 No. S3
15 No. S2

5 No. S6

10 No. S2

7 No. S6
14 No. S3
12 No. S2

7 No. S6
14 No. S3
12 No. S2

14 No. S3
12 No. S2

14 No. S3
12 No. S2

14 No. S3
12 No. S2

7 No. S6

7 No. S6
14 No. S3
12 No. S2

45 No. S2

10 No. S3
7 No. S5
12 No. S4

12 No. S4

25 No. S2

185 No. S2

NH01

225 No. S2 25 No. S3

25 No. S6

1 No. T3

Ext Plant

3 No. T1

NH03NH02

TREE PLANTING
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

NATIVE HEDGE
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

SHRUB AND ORNAMENTAL GRASSES
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

WILDFLOWER
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

KEY

LAWN
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

TREE PLANTING
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

NATIVE HEDGE
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

SHRUB AND ORNAMENTAL GRASSES
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

WILDFLOWER
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

KEY

LAWN
REFER TO PLANT SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

Project:

Title:

Status:

Drawing  No.:

Scale: Size:

Drawn:First Issued:

1:200 A1

Comment
Willow Cottage, School Lane, Burdwarsley, CH3 9NX. 01829 770 075

NOTE:
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. All setting out, levels and dimensions to be agreed on site.
3. The dimensions of all materials must be checked on site before being 

laid out.

Exemplar Health Care
Goodall Street Macclesfield

Softworks & Planting Plan

AT.24.11877.101r6

MARCH 24 AP

0 1010
SCALE 1 : 200

m m

NOTES
1. All to architect's and engineer's details.
2. All works to be DDA compliant.

PLANTING SCHEDULE

PLANTING NOTES

1 - All planting shall be in accordance with BS.4428. 1989.S7.
2 - Trees shall conform to BS.3936-1.1992.
3 - Tree pits shall be 1200x1200x750mm.
4 - Backfill material 70% certified sandy loam / 30% Approved tree compost (by volume).
5 - No peat products permitted.
6- Staking as indicated in plant schedules.
7 - Install Greentech Mona watering systems to trees.
8 - Shrub planting : 450mm depth of free draining topsoil to BS.3882.
9 - Lawns : 150mm 450mm depth of free draining topsoil to BS.3882.
10 - Wildflower : Onto clean unimproved free draining subsoil to BS.8601.

r2 Amended to HIA comments 28/03/2024 AP

r3 Shared road amended. 15/04/2024 AP

r4 Multi stem shrubs omitted 19/04/2024 AP

r5 Updated to architect's dwg 3687-HIA-01-00-DR-A-0102-P10
06/08/2024

AP

r6
Updated to architect's dwg
3687-HIA-01-00-DR-A-0102-D0-P12 21/08/2024 AP

P
age 33



00

154300

01

157525

02

160750

00

154300

01

157525

02

160750

0301

2

0302

2

0301 1

0302

1

0303

2

03031

3102

1

Materials Key

Red Multi Brick

Grey uPVC windows 
and doors

Blue Brick

Dark Grey Cladding 
Panels

Grey Roof Tiles

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 

Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,

North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 

w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

As indicated

Proposed Care Home

Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Elevations - Sheet 3 of 3

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 XX DR A 0303

3687

SCALE 1:100  @ A1

10m2m 8m6m4m0m

1 : 100

East Elevation
1

1 : 100

South Elevation
2

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P4 28.03.24 For Planning Submission NR RMc

P5 02.04.24 Elevation tweaks NR RMc

P6 16.04.24 Drawings amended to suit
comments
South Elevation

CS RMc

P
age 34



00 Ground Floor

154300

01 First Floor

157525

02 Second Floor

160750

00 Ground Floor

154300

01 First Floor

157525

02 Second Floor

160750

0301

2

0302

2

0301 1

0302

1

0303

2

03031

3102

1

Materials Key

Red Multi Brick

Grey uPVC windows 
and doors

Blue Brick

Dark Grey Cladding 
Panels

Grey Roof Tiles

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 

Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,

North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 

w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

As indicated

Proposed Care Home

Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Elevations - Sheet 1 of 3

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 XX DR A 0301

3687

1 : 100

West Elevation
1

1 : 100

North West Elevation
2

SCALE 1:100  @ A1

10m2m 8m6m4m0m

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P5 02.04.24 Elevation tweaks NR RMc

P6 16.04.24 Resident smoking area omitted,
Canopy amended, Plant room
door moved to the South

Elevation

CS RMc

P
age 35



d0.37m

RICS
chartered

N
O
R
TH

In
di
ca
tiv
e

Note: .......
UTILITIES C

OMMENT B
OX

ABBREVIAT
IONS & SYM

BOLSUTILITIES &
 UNDERGR

OUND INVE
STIGATION

S

ELECTRIC C
ABLE(S)

OVERHEAD
 ELECTRIC 

CABLE(S)

OVERHEAD
 BT CABLE(

S)

COMMUNIC
ATIONS CA

BLE(S)BT CABLE(S
)

GAS MAIN

CABLE TV C
ABLE(S)

HOT WATER
 PIPE

FIBREOPTIC
 CABLE(S)

LIGHTING C
IRCUIT

WATER MA
IN

SURFACE W
ATER SEWE

R
FOUL SEWE

R

COMBINED
 SEWER

RISING MAI
N

WATER SER
VICE

SECURITY 
CABLING

INVESTIGA
TION EXTEN

TS

GROUND P
ENETRATIN

G RADAR (G
PR) TRACE

GAS SERVI
CE

1D 5C 1 Duc
t 5 Cables

CCC Circular Con
c Chamber

∅ Diameter

AR Assumed Ro
ute

BL Base Level

Concrete Be
nching

CB
CBC Circular Bric

k Chamber

DTW

DS

RBC Rectangular
 Brick Cham

ber

Depth To W
ater

Depth To Sil
t

CPC Circ Plastic C
hamberCL

CrL

DI

Cover Level

Depth To Inv
ert

Crown Leve
l

EOT

IL

SL

TFR

UTL
End Of Trac

e

Invert Level
Unable To L

ift

Silt Level

Taken From
 Records

RCC Rectangular
 Conc Cham

ber

UTT Unable To T
race

IBD Internal Bac
kdrop

DTB Depth To Ba
se

EBD External Bac
kdrop

DCr Depth To Cr
own

UTC Unable To C
CTVDTS Depth To Su

rcharge

PDR Poor Depth 
Response

SuL Surcharge L
evel

DEPTH TO 
SERVICE

FUEL PIPE(
S)

VISIBLE SC
ARRINGOIL PIPE(S)

AC Audible Con
nection

EMPTY DUC
T

EFFLUENT 
WATERCOMBINED
 WATER RIS

ING MAIN

SA Survey Aban
doned

RB Rest Bend

CU Camera Und
er Water

TRAFFIC SI
GNAL

FOUL WATE
R RISING M

AIN

SURFACE W
ATER RISIN

G MAIN

(GENERAL 
NOTES)

UNIDENTIF
IED SERVIC

E

RE Rodding Eye

UTDO Unab
le To Determ

ine Outfall

WL Water Level

SERVICE A
BOVE GRO

UND

SERVICE O
VERHEAD

UNIDENTIF
IED TRACE

CAMERA UN
DER WATER

TELECOM C
ABLE(S)

AG Above Grou
nd

OH Overhead
UTS Unable To S

urvey

AUDIBLE CO
NNECTION

DRAWING N
OTES

All below gro
und details s

hown have b
een identifie

d from above
 ground with

out

excavation. 
Survey Solu

tion use elec
tro-magnetic

 and/or grou
nd penetratin

g

radar (GPR)
 methods to 

investigate f
or undergrou

nd utilities, s
ervices and

features. Re
sults using th

ese methods
 are not infal

lible and we 
recommend 

trial

excavations 
are carried o

ut to confirm
 any  identifi

cations, pos
itions and de

pths.

Any areas o
n the drawin

g where serv
ices or featu

res have not
 been shown

 are

not necessa
rily clear of s

ervices or fe
atures but ar

e an indicati
on that no ite

ms

have been id
entified durin

g our investi
gations. All r

easonable c
are and norm

al

good practic
e should still

 be employe
d during des

ign and cons
truction proc

esses.

Certain type
s of services

 such as pla
stic or concr

ete pipes, so
me conduit a

nd

ducting whe
re direct acc

ess can not 
be achieved

 for tracing m
ay not be sh

own

and alternati
ve locating m

ethods shou
ld be used.

Survey Solu
tions has us

ed all reason
able care to 

research ava
ilable service

records  but 
the complete

ness or use 
of the servic

e records su
pplied to or b

y

Survey Solu
tions cannot

 be guarante
ed. Therefor

e Survey So
lutions cann

ot be

held respons
ible for any f

eatures anno
tated as 'tak

en from reco
rds' (TFR).

Depths obta
ined using e

lectro-magne
tic or GPR a

re effected b
y ground

conditions a
nd should be

 treated as in
dicative only

. Electro-ma
gnetic depth

s to

utilities and s
ervices are g

enerally take
n to the cent

re of a featu
re, GPR dep

ths

to the top of 
a feature an

d drainage d
epth shown 

to inverts, un
less otherwis

e

indicated.

Drainage pip
e sizes will b

e obtained w
ithout enterin

g the chamb
er and there

fore

should be tre
ated as appr

oximate. Pip
e dimension

s which have
 not been

obtained vis
ually will be 

taken from r
ecords when

 available.

All services,
 drainage an

d utilities rou
tes are assu

med straight
 between ac

cess

points, unles
s otherwise 

stated. The n
umbers of ca

bles in runs 
will not be sh

own

unless speci
fically reque

sted. All serv
ices are belo

w ground un
less indicate

d.

Services, uti
lities and fea

tures may no
t have been 

surveyed if o
bstructed or 

not

reasonably v
isible or acce

ssible at the
 time of surv

ey.

Survey Solu
tions accept

 no responsi
bility for the 

completenes
s or accurac

y of

either  the to
pographical 

survey or ba
se mapping 

on this proje
ct.

All critical dim
ensions and

 measureme
nts should b

e checked a
nd verified w

ith

any errors o
r discrepanc

ies notified t
o Survey So

lutions imme
diately. The

accuracy of 
the digital da

ta is the sam
e as the plot

ting scale im
plies. All

dimensions 
are in metre

s unless oth
erwise state

d.

The contract
or must chec

k and verify 
all site and b

uilding dime
nsions, level

s,

utilities and d
rainage deta

ils and conn
ections prior

 to commenc
ing work.

© Land Surv
ey Solutions

 Limited hold
 the copyrigh

t to all the in
formation

contained w
ithin this doc

ument and th
eir written co

nsent must b
e obtained b

efore

copying or u
sing the data

 other than f
or the purpo

se it was orig
inally supplie

d.

Do not scale
 from this dra

wing.

RICS
chartered

Chestnut Pa
ling Fence

Chain Link F
ence

Barbed Wire
 Fence

Close Board
 Fence

C/L

C/P

B/W

C/B

Floor Board 
Direction

FBD

DH Door Head H
eight

Air Valve

Bollard

Belisha Bea
con

Bed Level
Bore Hole

Arch Head H
eight

Bush

Ceiling Leve
l

Box (Utilities
)

Bus Stop
Brace Post

Column

Cover Level
Cill Height

Drainage Ch
annel

Drain

Eaves Level

Electric Pole

Down Pipe

AV

BL

BB
BH

BO

AH

BX

BU
BS
BrP

CH
CL

Col

DC

EL

DR

EP

DP

C-Lev

Cable RiserCR

Assumed Ro
ute

AR

Post & Rail F
ence

Panel Fence

Iron Railings

Pan

P/R

I/R

Post & Wire 
Fence

P/W

Overhead Li
ne (approx)

OHL

Foul WaterFW

Gas Valve

Flag Pole

Manhole
Lamp Post

Marker Post

Head Height

Kerb Outlet
Invert Level

Gully Grate

Floor Level

Inspection C
over

Road Sign

Partition Wa
ll

Ridge Level
Rodding Eye

Parking Met
er

Reflector Po
st

Name Board

FL

IC

FP

GG
GV
HH

LP
MH
MP

KO

IL

Post

P/Wall

PM

RE

PO

RS
RP
RL

NB

FH Fire Hydrant

PB Post Box

ABBREVIAT
IONS & SYM

BOLSTOPOGRAP
HICAL & ME

ASURED BU
ILDING SUR

VEYS

Surface Wat
er

SW

Floor to Ceil
ing Height

X.XX Floor to Fals
e Ceiling Ht

X.XXF/C

Survey Cont
rol Station

Sign Post
Arch Spring 

Point HeightSI
SP

Stop ValveSV

Cable Stay

Trial Pit
Telecom Co

ver

Threshold Le
vel

Tactile Pavin
g

Universal Be
amCable TV Co
ver

Telegraph P
oleTop of Wall

Traffic Light
TH
THL

SY
Tac
TC

UB

TP

TV

ToW
TL

Vent Pipe

Under Side B
eam

Unable To L
ift

Unknown Tr
ee

Wash Out
Water Meter
Weep Hole
Water Level
Waste Bin

UK

VP

USB
UTL

WM
WO

WH
WL

WB

Unknown Co
ver

UC

DRAWING N
OTES

Topographic
al Surveys

Trees are dr
awn to scale

 showing the
 average can

opy spread. 
Descriptions

 and

heights shou
ld be used a

s a guide on
ly.

All building n
ames, descr

iptions, num
ber of storey

s, constructi
on type inclu

ding

roof line deta
ils are indica

tive only and
 taken extern

ally from gro
und level.

All below gro
und details i

ncluding dra
inage, voids

 and service
s have been

identified fro
m above gro

und and ther
efore all deta

ils relating to
 these featur

es

including; siz
es, depth, de

scription etc
 will be appr

oximate only
. All critical

dimensions 
and connect

ions should 
be checked 

and verified 
prior to start

ing

work.

Detail, servic
es and featu

res may not 
have been s

urveyed if ob
structed or n

ot

reasonably v
isible at the 

time of the s
urvey.

Surveyed ph
ysical featur

es may not n
ecessarily re

present the l
egal bounda

ry

line.

Measured B
uilding Surve

ys

Measuremen
ts to internal

 walls are ta
ken to the w

all finishes a
t approx 1m

above the flo
or level and 

the wall assu
med to be ve

rtical.

Cill heights a
re measured

 as floor to th
e cill and he

ad heights a
re measured

from cill to th
e top of wind

ow.

General

The contract
or must chec

k and verify 
all site and b

uilding dime
nsions, level

s,

utilities and d
rainage deta

ils and conn
ections prior

 to commenc
ing work.  An

y

errors or dis
crepancies m

ust be notifie
d to Survey 

Solutions im
mediately.

The accurac
y of the digit

al data is the
 same as the

 plotting sca
le implies. A

ll

dimensions 
are in metre

s unless oth
erwise state

d.

The survey c
ontrol listed 

is only to be
 used for top

ographical s
urveys at the

stated scale
.  All control 

must be che
cked and ve

rified prior to
 use.

© Land Surv
ey Solutions

 Limited hold
s the copyrig

ht to all the i
nformation

contained w
ithin this doc

ument and th
eir written co

nsent must b
e obtained

before copyi
ng or using t

he data othe
r than for the

 purpose it w
as originally

supplied.

Do not scale
 from this dra

wing.

Traffic Signa
l Cover

TS

Electric Sup
ply Cover

EC

Air BrickA/B
Flower BedFB

Electric BoxEBx

Rolled Steel
 Joist

RSJ
Roller Shutte

r Door
RSD

EP+Transfo
rmer

ET
Earth RodER

Chicken Wir
e

C/W

Dil. Dilapidated

A IL 152.01

C
TV
 e
m
pt
y 
du
ct
 (Q
L-
D
)

Elec records

end here.

∅1.5" ST open cu
t

∅2" ST open cut

GS records

end here.

GS records

end here.

Chamber vis
ible

on CCTV foo
tage.

Approx. pos
ition.

Chamber vis
ible

on CCTV foo
tage.

Approx. pos
ition.

B

A

Chamber vis
ible

on CCTV foo
tage.

Approx. pos
ition.

UTL, private
 property.

d0
.6
0m

d0.
42m

d0.
50m

Possible WM

d0.70m

d0.90m

d0.90m

Note: No GS
 supply pres

ent

in building.

Note: No GS
 supply pres

ent

in building.

Note: No GS
 or WS supp

ly

present in bu
ilding.

IC
CL 153.26

UTL, traffic

managemen
t

required.

Note: All dra
inage routes

shown are ta
ken from

CCTV footag
e and should

be taken as 
approximate

positions.

Note: Untrac
eable private

services ma
y exist within

survey exten
ts. Take

care whilst e
xcavating.

Note: Untrac
eable private

services ma
y exist within

survey exten
ts. Take

care whilst e
xcavating.

Note: Untrac
eable private

services ma
y exist within

survey exten
ts. Take

care whilst e
xcavating.

Note: Untrac
eable private

services ma
y exist within

survey exten
ts. Take

care whilst e
xcavating.

Note: UTS a
rea,due

to dense veg
etation.

WS approx,

position.

UTT, PE

1"∅

WS
ST approx.

position.

UTT,PE.W
S 
(Q
L-
B4
)

MH1 (QL-A)

CL 154.22

IL 153.45
FW/RBC
X,D ∅150mm

A,B ∅100m
m

C ∅100mm

MH2 (QL-A)

CL 154.23

IL 153.41
FW/RBC
X,D ∅150mm

A,B ∅100m
m

C ∅100mm

MH3 (QL-A)

CL 154.20

IL 153.35
FW/RBC
X,C ∅150mm

A,B ∅100m
m

D ∅100mm

MH4 (QL-A)

CL 154.20

IL 153.05
CW/RBC
∅150mm

MH6 (QL-A)

CL 153.24

IL 151.91
CW/RBC
X,A ∅150m

m

B ∅150mm

C ∅100mm

C IL 152.56

MH7 (QL-A)

CL 153.22

IL 151.76
CW/RBC
∅150mm

RB
RB
RB

RB

RB
RB

RB

X
A

B
C

X
A

B
C
D

XA
B
C D

A

X

MH5 approx
.

position.

Chamber vis
ible

on CCTV foo
tage.

Unable to lo
cate,

buried.

X

Blocked.

A
B

CX

Obstruction.

Restricted

leverage.

X

B C

IC
CL 153.26

UTL, traffic

managemen
t

required.

MH8 (QL-A)

CL 153.52

IL 152.13
FW/RBC
∅100mm

Collapsed

pipe.
A

BC

Restricted

leverage.

X

Obstruction.

Blocked.

D

Gully visible
 on

CCTV footag
e.

Approx. pos
ition.

Blocked.

d0.60m
d0.48m

d0.60m d0.5
6m

d0.50m

d0.50m

d0.60m
d0.54m

d0
.6
0m

 E
 (Q
L-
B2
)

d0
.6
0m

C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B C/B

153.33 153.49 153.71 153.98 154.09 154.13 154.27 154.36 154.46 154.48

154.50 154.47 154.442.1H

CORNER

WALL 0.7H
FCB 2.0H O

N TOP

CORNER

CORNERCORNER

CORNER

CORNERCORNER

UNDER CO
NSTRUCT

1.8H

GAS

CORNERS

2.0H

CORNER

CORNER

FILLET

SUB STN

CORNER

CORNER

CORNER

1.9HOVERGROW
N

CORNER

CORNER

15
4.
55

15
4.
68

15
4.
67

15
4.
66

15
4.
68

THL 154.69

THL 154.21

THL 154.23

THL 154.20

THL 153.56

THL 154.57

L Conc
R Tar
154.20

154.18

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

DP

154.19

154.20

154.20

154.17

154.21

GG
154.16

GG

GG

GG

GGGG

GG
GG

GG

154.23

154.24

154.15

154.01154.02

153.42
153.41

153.44

GG
154.17

GG
154.16

GG
154.05

153.35
153.59

153.80
154.01

154.07 154.21 154.27

154.32
154.41 154.52

154.51
154.28

154.28 154.54

154.57

154.22

154.21
154.60

154.55
154.26

154.20

154.23

153.32
153.58

153.87

15
4.
09

15
4.
14

W
al
l

Wall

Wall

Wall

15
3.
77

153.99

153.76

153.52

153.27

15
4.
23

154.23154.23

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

Copy

EL 157.65

EL 157.69

EL 157.81EL 158.37

EL 159.35
EL 159.43

EL 158.70
EL 158.95

EL 159.18

EL 158.94EL 158.74

EL 158.36

EL 157.78

EL 157.80

EL 155.74

EL 161.63

EL 156.02

EL 159.33

EL 159.83

EL 157.62

EL 160.19

EL 158.40

EL 159.88

EL 161.40

EL 160.92

EL 156.87

EL 158.00

EL 156.57

EL 156.85

EL 158.24

EL 161.92

EL 160.21

EL 163.55

EL 160.16

EL 157.54

EL 158.21

EL 162.31

EL 162.43

EL 162.35

RL 162.41

RL 160.89
RL 161.88 RL 162.07

RL 161.52
RL 161.20 RL 161.43

RL 160.80 RL 161.01

RL 156.85

RL 162.96

RL 160.00

RL 161.89

RL 162.12

RL 162.45

RL 162.56

RL 164.04

RL 162.27

RL 157.30

RL 162.10

RL 165.42

RL 162.63

RL 165.04

RL 165.32

RL 165.14

Ker
b153.30

15
3.2
7

15
3.
24

15
3.
19

15
3.
19

15
3.
18

Ke
rb

15
3.
18

15
3.
16

15
3.
17

15
3.
18

153.19 153.22
153.25

15
3.
28

15
3.
28

15
3.
30

15
3.
28

15
3.
30

153.30

153.29

153.30

15
3.
32

15
3.
32

15
3.
35

15
3.
38

TC

LP

LP

153.30

153.37

TVCL 153.17

153.19

153.22

153.23

GG
153.19

SV

SV

SV

153.42

153.22

153.35

TVCL 153.39

Ke
rb

15
3.
24

15
3.
25

15
3.
23

15
3.
23

15
3.
21

15
3.2
5 153.34

153.54

15
3.
36

15
3.
40

15
3.
33

15
3.
30

15
3.
42

15
3.
42

15
3.
42

153.41

W
al
l

Wall

15
3.
41

153.32153.48
153.48153.49

IC
CL 153.41

IC
CL 153.43

C/B

C/B

C/B
C/B

153.42

153.41

153.41

153.41
153.32

Pipe

Pipe

153.40

154.90

15
3.
42

15
3.
41

155.
15

154
.70

154.
47

154.
20

154.13154
.14154.08154.

14

15
4.
01

154.03

15
3.
83

153.81

153.63153.41

153.31

Wall
Wall

W
al
l

153.27
153.55

15
3.
82
15
3.
86

UnknownUnknownUnknown
Unknown

Unknown

Unknown
Unknown
UnknownUnkn

own

Unknown

Unknown

Unknown

Unknown
Unknown

Unknown

Unknown

Unknown

153.74153.53153.46
153.32

154.93

154.90
154.86
155.12155.1

3

154.86

155.04

153.31
153.53 C/B

C/B
C/B

C
/B

C/B

153.51
153.78

154.03

15
4.
15

154.19
154.18

153.42153.42

15
3.
40

153.40
153.40

15
3.
43

I/RI/R
I/R

I/R
I/R

I/R

154.16154.16
15
4.1
6

154.17 154.17154.17 154.18

155.
21

154.
80

154
.59

154.
41

154.
22

154.11154.07R
 C
PS

154.16

154.1
6

154.1
9

R Co
nc154.
18

154.3
8

154.5
9

Wall

Wall

155.
24

154.
84

154.
46

154.
46

154.20

154.
17

154.19

154
.17

154
.01

Wall154.01153.91 153.91153.85

L Tar
R
 H
ardcore

154.15
154.15

W
all

Wall

TP
TC

155.77

155.59

155.57

154.86

154.75

Wall

W
all

W
all

W
all

W
all

155.04

155.00

155.01

155.05

154.24

15
4.
23

15
4.
23

154.18154.13

154.22

154.13
154.14

154.19

15
4.
27

154.26 15
4.
27

154.27 15
4.
46

154.
68

155.
12

155.42

15
4.
17

15
4.
21

15
4.
22

15
4.
24

15
4.
20

15
4.
21

15
4.
23

15
4.
24

154.24154.23

15
4.
23

154.23154.23

154.86

W
all

Wall

154.20

154.14

154.84

154.76

154.71

Kerb

154.18

154.30

154.49

154.62

154.77

154.91

154.99

155.11

155.01

154.85

154.74

154.56

154.37

154.33 154.67

154.88

155.09

155.19

155.35

155.42

Wall155.32155.32155.24

155.33

155.38

W
all

W
all

155.37

155.42

C/B

C/B

C/B

155.60

155.60

15
5.
29

15
5.
42

15
5.
32

TF 157.40

TF 157.82

ToW 156.62

373250

39
23
00

373300

Ordnance S
urvey, (c) Cr

own Copyrig
ht 2023. All r

ights reserve
d. Licence n

umber 1000
22432

157.0m

G
O
O
D
AL
L 
ST
R
EE
T

PE
AR
SO
N
 S
TR
EE
T

El Sub Sta

Hardern

PH

1

33

127

Centre

11

107

117

23

House

41

House

89

108

Multi Activity

45

Anderson

info@den.u
k.com

www.den.u
k.com

P:\3330 - G
oodall Stree

t, Macclesf
ield 3\0.00 

Drawings\0
.01 Project 

Drawings\3
330 -

Building Reg
s - Model 01

1.rvt

Copyright o
f this drawin

g remains t
he sole pro

perty of De
n Architect

ure Ltd

unless othe
rwise assign

ed in writing
. Do not sca

le from this 
drawing,

figured dim
ensions are

 to be work
ed in all ca

ses with any
 discrepanc

ies

reported to
 Den Archit

ecture Ltd p
rior to comm

encement 
of any work

.

Northpoint:

1200.0

Bedroom 03 1 Bed
1-01

Bedroom 04
1200.0

41.3 m²
444 ft²

Bedroom 08
Bedroom 07

1 Bed
2-01

41.3 m²
444 ft²

Rev

A

B

Obscure
Glass

1200.0

Obscure
Glass

DN

UP

Obscure
Glass

Platform
Lift

UP

DN

Platform
Lift

1 Bed
1-02

50.7 m²
546 ft²

Platform
Lift

Obscure
Glass

DN
DN

Platform
Lift

1 Bed
2-02

50.7 m²
546 ft²

C
D
E

F

G

Date
Amendmen

ts

20/01/23 Sc
heme ame

nded follow
ing client

comments

25/01/23 Dr
awing upda

ted to Clien
t comment

s

26/01/23 Dr
awing upda

ted to Clien
t comment

s.

15/02/23 Dr
awing upda

ted to Clien
t comment

s.

22/02/23 Dr
awing upda

ted to High
ways Consu

ltants'

comments.

20/03/23 Dr
awing upda

ted in line w
ith Biodivers

ity

Metric Repo
rt

23/03/23 Dr
awing upda

ted to Clien
t comment

s

By Chkd

JBW
ADP

HSS

HSS

HSS

HSS

LD

LD

ADP

ADP

ADP

ADP

HSS

HSS

Bedroom 01
Bedroom 02

1 Bed
1-03

41.3 m²
444 ft²

Bedroom 05
Bedroom 06

1 Bed
2-03

41.3 m²
444 ft²

1st Floor 1 : 
100

2nd Floor 1 
: 100

Level

Area Sched
ule (GIA)

Area

0 Ground F
loor 286.8 m

²

1st Floor

2nd Floor

275.7 m²

275.7 m²

838.2 m²

ft²

3087 ft²

2968 ft²

2968 ft²

9022 ft²

Existing Indu
strial buildin

g

Bike Store

8 Bike Capa
city

Amenity Are
a

Patio
Spandrel

Panel

Communal
 Lounge

Anderson H
ouse

Existing Offi
ces

Harden Hou
se

Existing

Assisted Ca
re

Living

ACL 1

1 Bed
G-02

Amenity Are
a

Communal

Kitchen/Din
ing

41.3 m²
444 ft²

Utility/Laund
ry

Store

WC
Office

0 1
5

10 M

Bike Store
8 Bike
Capacity

Store

Apartment

Entrance

Platform
Lift

W.C.

Communal
 Lounge Office

1 Bed
G-01

41.3 m²
444 ft² Bin Store

Project:

Spandrel

Panel

ACL 2
Apt 1

Apt 2
A.C.L.

Entrance

Client:

CKCS Prope
rties

Dwg Title:

Proposed P
lans

Date:

March 2023

Project No:

3330

Drawing Nu
mber:

Ground Flo
or 1 : 100

GOODALL S
TREET

3330-DEN-Z
Z-ZZ-DR-A-2

000

Scale:

1 : 100

Size:

A1

Status:

Building
Regulations Revision:

G

Drawn:

HSS

Checked:

ADPApt 3
Apt 4

Apt 5
Apt 6

Apt 7
Apt 8

Proposed R
esidential D

evelopmen
t,

Goodall Str
eet, Maccle

sfield

Platform
Lift 2000.0

Laundy Roo
m

8 Wharf Stre
et, Leeds, L

S2 7EQ

17 Grosven
or Street, Lo

ndon, W1K 
4QG

T: 0113 244 
5038

SW
EE
TE
N
HA
M
 S
TR
EE
T

12
00
.0

12
00
.0

25
07
.0

12
00
.0

Ri
se
r

Pl
an
t/
Ri
se
r

Ri
se
r/
St
or
e

RE
A
R 
O
F 
JO
RD
EL
L S
TR
EE
T

ø 1500

ø 1500

ø 1500

ø 1500

ø 1500

ø 1
500

Refuse

Ext Plant

Smoking

EV
Charger
Shared
between Bay

13 & 14

EV
Charger
Shared
between bot

h

disabled bay
s

39
23
00

Ordnance S
urvey, (c) Cr

own Copyrig
ht 2023. All r

ights reserve
d. Licence n

umber 1000
22432

157.0m

PH

1

127

11

107

117
23

89

108

45

Hardern

El Sub Sta

GOODALL STRE
ET

House

House
Anderson

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

09

08

10

11

12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

SHARED ACCES
S ROAD

ASSUMED RESI
DENTIAL

DEVELOPMENT
 FOOTPRINT

Ground Floor
154300

First Floor
157525

Second Floor
160750

158940

162070

160920

162560

164040

Ground Floor
154300

First Floor
157525

Second Floor
160750

162350

165040

161920

162960

A

A

B

B

C C

Ground Floor
154300

First Floor
157525

Second Floor
160750

163550

165420

163131

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other
relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 
and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 
Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,
North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 
e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 
w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

As indicated

Proposed Care Home
Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Site Sections

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 XX DR A 9101

3687

1 : 150
Site Section A

1

1 : 150
Site Section B

2

SCALE 1:150  @ A1

15m3m 12m9m6m0m

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P1 19.03.24 For Information NR RMc
P2 13.05.24 For Planning Submission NR RMc
P3 05.08.24 Additional Site Section Included NR RMc

1 : 150
Site Section C

3

P
age 36



00 Ground Floor

154300

01 First Floor

157525

02 Second Floor

160750

00 Ground Floor

154300

01 First Floor

157525

02 Second Floor

160750

0301

2

0302

2

0301 1

0302

1

0303

2

03031

3102

1

Materials Key

Red Multi Brick

Grey uPVC windows 
and doors

Blue Brick

Dark Grey Cladding 
Panels

Grey Roof Tiles

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 

Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,

North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 

w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

As indicated

Proposed Care Home

Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Elevations - Sheet 2 of 3

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 XX DR A 0302

3687

1 : 100

North Elevation
1

1 : 100

North East Elevation
2

SCALE 1:100  @ A1

10m2m 8m6m4m0m

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P1 07.03.24 For review and comment NR IH

P2 13.03.24 Updated following comment NR RMc

P3 18.03.24 Updates to elevation design NR RMc

P4 28.03.24 For Planning Submission NR RMc

P5 02.04.24 Elevation tweaks NR RMc

P
age 37



16 m²

Bedroom

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

15 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

18 m²

Bedroom

18 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

21 m²

Quiet Lounge

50 m²

Lounge

43 m²

Dining

38 m²

Hub

48 m²

Circulation

44 m²

Circulation

15 m²

Circulation

28 m²

Circulation

14 m²

Stair

14 m²

Stair

10 m²

Lobby

7 m²

Circulation

5 m²

Lift

5 m²

Lift

6 m²

Sluice

5 m²

Central Drugs

5 m²

Comms

18 m²

Office
24 m²

Office
28 m²

Plant

5 m²

WC

2 m²

Store

5 m²

WC

4 m²

Store

8 m²

Store

4 m²

Visitors WC

0301

2

0302

2

0301 1

0302

1

0303

2

03031

7 m²

Drugs

6 m²

Nurse

18 m²

Asissted Bathroom

16 m²

Circulation

2 m²

Store

4 m²

Store

A

0401
B

0402

C

0403

D

0404

D0-01

D0-02

D0-03

D0-04

D0-05

D0-06

D0-07

D0-08

D0-09

D0-10

D0-11

D0-12

D0-13

D0-14

D0-15

D0-16

D0-17
D0-18

D0-19

D0-20

D0-21

D0-22

D0-23

D0-24

D0-25

D0-26

D0-27

D0-28

D0-29

D0-30

D0-31

D0-32

D0-33

D0-35

D0-34

D0-36

D0-37

D0-38

D0-39

D0-40

D0-41

D0-43

D0-44

D0-45

D0-46

D0-47

D0-42

D0-48

D0-49

D0-50

ED0-01 ED0-02

ED0-04

ED0-05

ED0-06

ED0-07

ED0-08

ED0-09

ED0-10

ED0-11

ED0-12

ED0-13

ED0-14

ED0-15

ED0-16

ED0-17

ED0-18

ED0-19

ED0-20

ED0-21

ED0-22ED0-23

ED0-03
CW?

WG-01

C.+0

H.+2110

WG-02

C.+0

H.+2110

WG-03

C.+910

H.+2110

WG-04

C.+0

H.+2110

WG-05

C.+0

H.+2110

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 

Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,

North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 

w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

1 : 100

Proposed Care Home

Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 00 DR A 0201

3687

SCALE 1:100  @ A1

10m2m 8m6m4m0m

Schedule of Accommodation

Care Group 00A

11 Bedrooms

Quiet Lounge - 21 m²

Lounge - 50 m²

Dining - 43 m²

Total day space* = 114 m²

( 10.3 m² per resident)

Total Bedrooms = 35

Total GIA = 2403 m² ( 69 m² per resident)

* Dayspace calculation based upon rooms listed only

* Excludes communal spaces such as cafe, cinema and small seating areas

Ground Floor ( GIA = 807 m² )

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P4 28.03.24 For Planning Submission NR RMc

P5 16.04.24 Resident smoking area omitted,
Canopy amended, Plant room
door moved to the South

Elevation

CS RMc

P
age 38



16 m²

Bedroom

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite
5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

15 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

18 m²

Bedroom

18 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

21 m²

Quiet Lounge

50 m²

Lounge

42 m²

Dining

25 m²

Therapy

38 m²

Circulation

33 m²

Circulation

14 m²

Circulation

16 m²

Bedroom

14 m²

Stair

14 m²

Stair

15 m²

Circulation

36 m²

Kitchen

5 m²

Lift

5 m²

Lift

6 m²

Sluice

15 m²

Hair & Beauty

7 m²

Nurse

8 m²

Drugs

19 m²

Assisted Bathroom

5 m²

WC

2 m²

Store

5 m²

WC

11 m²

Consult

5 m²

WC

5 m²

Ensuite

0301

2

0302

2

0301 1

0302

1

0303

2

03031

19 m²

Guest Bedroom

5 m²

Guest Ensuite

4 m²

Store

5 m²

K. Change

20 m²

Circulation

2 m²

Store

8 m²

Circulation

22 m²

Circulation

1 m²

Store

A

0401

B

0402

C

0403

D

0404

D1-01

D1-51

D1-50

D1-49

D1-52

D1-47

D1-48

D1-46

D1-45

D1-44

D1-43

D1-42

D1-41

D1-40

D1-39

D1-38

D1-37

D1-36

D1-53

D1-34

D1-54

D1-55

D1-02

D1-04

D1-03

D1-35

D1-33

D1-32

D1-30

D1-31

D1-29

D1-05

D1-27

D1-28

D1-06

D1-25

D1-26

D1-24

D1-25

D1-22

D1-23

D1-07

D1-09

D1-10

D1-12

D1-11

D1-18

D1-20

D1-21

D1-23

D1-19

D1-17

D1-16

D1-13

D1-14
D1-15

D1-08

W1-01

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-02

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-03

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-04

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-05

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-06

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-07

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-08

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-09

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-10

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-11

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-12

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-13

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-14

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-15

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-16

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-17

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-18

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-19

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-20

C.+910

H.+2110

W1-21

C.+910

H.+2110

W1-22

C.+910

H.+2110

W1-23

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-24

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-25

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-26

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-27

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-28

C.+0

H.+2110

W1-29

C.+0

H.+2110

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 

Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,

North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 

w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

1 : 100

Proposed Care Home

Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Proposed First Floor Plan

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 01 DR A 0211

3687

SCALE 1:100  @ A1

10m2m 8m6m4m0m

Schedule of Accommodation

Care Group 01A

12 Bedrooms

Quiet Lounge - 21 m²

Lounge - 50 m²

Dining - 42 m²

Total day space* = 114 m²

( 9.5 m² per resident)

Total Bedrooms = 35

( GIA = 798 m² )

Total GIA = 2403 m² ( 69 m² per resident)

* Dayspace calculation based upon rooms listed only

* Excludes communal spaces such as cafe, cinema and small seating areas

First Floor

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P1 07.03.24 For review and comment NR IH

P2 13.03.24 Updated following comment NR RMc

P3 18.03.24 Updates to elevation design NR RMc

P4 28.03.24 For Planning Submission NR RMc

P
age 39



16 m²

Bedroom

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite
5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

5 m²

Ensuite

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

15 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

18 m²

Bedroom

18 m²

Bedroom

16 m²

Bedroom

21 m²

Quiet Lounge

50 m²

Dayspace

42 m²

Dayspace

25 m²

Training

38 m²

Circulation

33 m²

Circulation

14 m²

Circulation

16 m²

Bedroom

14 m²

Stair

14 m²

Stair

26 m²

Circulation

19 m²

Laundry

5 m²

Lift

5 m²

Lift

6 m²

Sluice

15 m²

F.Change

7 m²

Nurse

8 m²

Drugs

19 m²

Asissted Bathroom

5 m²

WC

2 m²

Store

5 m²

WC

11 m²

Nurse Manager

9 m²

M. Change

5 m²

Ensuite

16 m²

Iron

0301

2

0302

2

0301 1

0302

1

03031

24 m²

Staff

9 m²

Circulation

2 m²

Store

8 m²

Circulation

22 m²

Circulation

5 m²

WC

1 m²

Store

ROOF ACCESS 

HATCH (TBC)

A

0401

B

0402

C

0403

D

0404

D2-01

D2-02

D2-03

D2-04

D2-05

D2-06

D2-07

D2-08

D2-09

D2-10

D2-11

D2-13

D2-14

D2-15 D2-16

D2-17

D2-18

D2-19

D2-20

D2-21

D2-22

D2-23

D2-24

D2-25

D2-26

D2-27

D2-28

D2-29

D2-30

D2-31

D2-32

D2-33

D2-34

D2-36

D2-35

D2-37

D2-38

D2-39

D2-40

D2-41

D2-42D2-43

D2-44

D2-45

D2-46

D2-47

D2-48

D2-49

D2-50

D2-51

D2-52

D2-53

D2-54

W2-01

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-02

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-03

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-04

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-05

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-06

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-07

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-08

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-09

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-10

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-11

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-12

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-13

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-14

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-15

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-16

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-17

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-18

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-19

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-20

C.+910

H.+2110

W2-21

C.+910

H.+2110

W2-22

C.+910

H.+2110

W2-23

C.+910

H.+2110

W2-24

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-25

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-26

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-27

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-28

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-29

C.+0

H.+2110

W2-30

C.+0

H.+2110

NOTES

All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise.

Drawings are not to be scaled for Construction purposes.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other

relevant drawings and specifications.

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Harris Irwin Associates Ltd. 

and must not be copied or reproduced without the written consent of a 

Director.

Aske Stables, Aske, Richmond,

North Yorkshire. DL10 5HG

Project:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Suitability

Project

t: 01748 825675 

e: enquiries@harrisirwin.com 

w: www.harrisirwin.com

Originator Volume Level Type Role Number

- - - - - -

HIA Project Number Scale @ A1

For Planning Submission

1 : 100

Proposed Care Home

Goodall Street,
Macclesfield

Proposed Second Floor Plan

D0

3687

Exemplar Health Care

HIA 01 02 DR A 0221

3687

SCALE 1:100  @ A1

10m2m 8m6m4m0m

Schedule of Accommodation

( 9.5 m² per resident)

Total Bedrooms = 35

Total GIA = 2403 m² ( 69 m² per resident)

* Dayspace calculation based upon rooms listed only

* Excludes communal spaces such as cafe, cinema and small seating areas

Second Floor ( GIA = 798 m² )

Care Group 02A

12 Bedrooms

( 9.5 m² per resident)

Quiet Lounge - 21 m²

Dayspace - 50 m²

Dayspace - 42 m²

Total day space* = 114 m²

Rev Date Description Drawn
By

Checked
By

P1 07.03.24 For review and comment NR IH

P2 13.03.24 Updated following comment NR RMc

P3 18.03.24 Updates to elevation design NR RMc

P4 28.03.24 For Planning Submission NR RMc

P
age 40



 
OFFICIAL 

 
   Application No: 23/0657M 

 
   Location: Wilmslow Police Station, HAWTHORN STREET, WILMSLOW, SK9 5HQ 

 
   Proposal: Erection of Retirement Living housing (Category II type accommodation), 

communal facilities, landscaping and car parking following the demolition 
of the existing building 
 

   Applicant: 
 

Chris McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Ltd 

   Expiry Date: 
 

04-Oct-2024 

 
 

 
Summary 
 
The development of a 52no. C3 units retirement apartment complex for the over 55’s on a 
previously developed site on a key site identified for re-development in the Wilmslow 
Neighbourhood Plan, within the Wilmslow Key Service Centre settlement boundary and 
adjacent to the town centre boundary is considered to be acceptable in principle. The loss of 
the existing Police Station building and offices is considered to be acceptable noting the 
approved new Police Station within the wider site is currently under construction.  
 
The proposed mix of units is considered to meet local demands for downsizing for older 
residents in a sustainable settlement location. No issue is raised subject to the use of 
appropriate planning conditions as to the design, character, layout, parking, access, trees, 
nature conservation, biodiversity, trees, flood risk and water management and pollution control 
considerations concerning this development.  
 
The application was subject of a Viability Assessment which was independently evaluated and 
concluded that a sum of £1,115,000 is available for NHS, Outdoor Sport and recreation, Green 
Infrastructure, Allotments and Play space completely and off-site affordable housing. This is 
lower than the overall total financial contributions for these infrastructure, requirements, off-site 
affordable housing and services of £2,950,509.42. A provision of 16no. on-site affordable 
housing was not considered viable. 
 
On balance, the lack of policy compliant financial contributions and on-site affordable housing 
provision, is considered to be outweighed by the high-quality design of the scheme, 
redevelopment of a prominent and key brownfield site at the entrance to the town centre 
identified in the Wilmslow Neighbourhood Plan and the need for dwellings providing 
opportunities for downsizing in settlement boundary and town centre locations considered to 
form material considerations. Therefore, a recommendation of approval subject to conditions 
and securing an s106 is therefore made. 
 
Summary recommendation 
 
Approve subject to conditions and S106 agreement. 

Page 41 Agenda Item 6



 
OFFICIAL 

 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL 
 
This application is referred to the Northern Planning Committee as it is a small scale Major 
Development for residential developments of 20-199 dwellings or between 1 and 4ha. and 
therefore requires a committee decision under the terms of the Constitution. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 

The site is located within the settlement boundary of Wilmslow, a Key Service Centre. The 
boundary of Wilmslow Town Centre is to the eastern side of Hawthorn Street, with the site lying 
just opposite. The site is also located within the Wilmslow Neighbourhood Plan area. 
Immediately to the north of the site is Little Lindow a Local Green Space with recently enhanced 
public realm and children’s timber play area. 
 
The application site comprises the existing police station and hardstanding for vehicular 
parking. The existing building is split between single and double storey in height, constructed 
from red brick, slate with stone cills and upvc fenestration. Immediately surrounding the site are 
the Wilmslow Fire Station to the north-west, Wilmslow ambulance station to the west, residential 
dwellings to the east, south and west, a Shell petrol station and a variety of retail/cafes/take 
aways and restaurants to the north and east and Little Lindow green space with play area to 
the north. The vehicular access to the wider site is from Beech Lane via Hawthorn Street to the 
east with the A538 junction to the north-west of the site. Beech Lane and large portions of 
Hawthorn Street have controlled street parking via use of double yellow lines. Around the site 
edged red are hedgerows and trees. Hawthorn Street has a pedestrian pavement to the eastern 
side and Beech Lane has pedestrian pavements to the western side. The retail/town centre 
area for Wilmslow lies to the north-east of the site served by Altrincham Road/A538. The site 
appears largely flat in topography though there are some small levels differences between the 
site and the surrounding trees to the north forming part of the Lindow Green. The site is easily 
seen from the public realm though the views of it differ seasonally due to the deciduous tree 
screening from the north.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the ‘Erection of Retirement Living housing (Category II 
type accommodation), communal facilities, landscaping and car parking following the 
demolition of the existing building’.  
 
During the course of the application the proposals were amended, and the following appraisal 
is based on the plans as received on 8th July 2024 and the updated documents thereafter. 
 
The proposals are for market housing in the form of retirement apartments created following 
the demolition of the existing police station former headquarters (1506sqm floorspace loss). It 
is said that 1no. full time employee will be created as a result of the development, a house 
manager. It is proposed there will be 52no. apartments created as 27no. one-bedroom 
apartments and 25no. two-bedroom apartments, a total of 77no. bedrooms are created.  
 

Page 42



 
OFFICIAL 

It is proposed that all apartments will be sold at market level subject of a 999-year lease and 
that they are to be occupied by persons over 60 years of age and that in the case of a couple 
1no. occupant must be over 60 years old and the other over 55 years old. The Planning 
Statement also makes reference that in the case a couple has a much younger partner but they 
require need of special accommodation that they are flexible to some regard taking ‘a 
reasonable and caring approach to the limitation on the occupancy of retirement living housing’ 
(page 6). It is proposed that there will be a secure entrance lobby with CCTV link to individual 
apartments and an emergency help line available in each apartment with some in communal 
areas also. 
 
At ground level communal facilities as follows are proposed: communal room; guest bedroom 
with 2no. beds and en-suite; scooter store; entrance; general store; lift; bin store and plant 
room. At first, second and third floors there are also general store rooms. The proposals are 
presented as a single detached block over four storeys, with a gable and valley style roof, with 
various recessed and projecting elements which create balconies and external terraces for 
some of the apartments. External facing materials are indicated on supporting Proposed 
Elevations as: facing brickwork in red and light red bricks; roof – slate; windows – black upvc; 
Juliette balconies in black metal; double soldier course brick detailing to roof rake; single soldier 
course brick detail to facing brick; 25mm projecting brick snap header detail; stone effect cill 
detail and black metal railings to projecting balconies.   
 
Externally communal gardens/amenity space is proposed to the north and east with soft and 
hard landscaping with seating areas. There is also a smaller landscaped area to the south close 
to the main building entrance.  
 
The proposals would use the existing highways access off Beech Lane, itself accessed via 
Hawthorn Street, both of which are adopted highways with pedestrian infrastructure. The 
access to the site will be shared with the new police station which is the subject of permission 
23/0219M and requires 24-hour access. 36no. parking spaces are proposed which include 4no. 
disabled spaces to serve residents, visitors and the house manager. There are also 2no. 
delivery/drop off bays to the frontage. A new access to the existing sub-station is planned. 2no. 
pedestrian access to the site off existing pavements of Beech Lane is proposed.  
 
The application form indicates that surface water will be disposed of via sustainable drainage 
system and fouls by mains sewer. Private arrangements are proposed for waste and recycling 
collection. 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
24/2661M - Variation of conditions 2,4,5,8,9,12,14,15,16,17,18,20 and 21 on 23/0219M - 
Erection of a two storey new build police station with parking and associated soft and hard 
landscaping. – awaiting case officer assignment – site immediately south. 
 
24/1337M - Non-material amendment to application 23/0219M: Erection of a two storey new 
build police station with parking and associated soft and hard landscaping – refused – 13th May 
2024 
 

Page 43



 
OFFICIAL 

23/0219M - Erection of a two storey new build police station with parking and associated soft 
and hard landscaping – approved with conditions – 19th May 2023 – south of this proposal has 
commenced on site. 
 
12/1502M - The Installation of Solar Panels to the South Facing Roof of the Police Station 
Building – approved with conditions – 3rd July 2012 
 
96/1608P – office extension; conversion of dog kennels to toilet block and car parking 
modifications – approved with conditions – 16th October 1996 
 
96/1231P – three temporary portacabins – approved with conditions – 21st August 1996 
 
67585P – erection of notice board – approved – 12th July 1991 
 
19970P – 2000 gal underground petrol storage tank – approved – 8th January 1990 
 
53865P – sub divisional police station – approved – 31st July 1988 
 
53297P – incorporate land into gardens – approved – 25th May 1988 
 
44621P – sub divisional police headquarters – approved – 18th August 1986 
 
 
POLICIES 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy (CELPS) 2017 
MP1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
PG1 Overall Development Strategy 
PG2 Settlement Hierarchy 
PG7 Spatial Distribution of Development 
SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East 
SD2 Sustainable Development Principles 
IN1 Infrastructure 
IN2 Developer Contributions 
SC1 Leisure and recreation 
SC2 Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities 
SC3 Health and Well-being 
SC4 Residential Mix 
SC5 Affordable Homes 
SE1 Design 
SE2 Efficient Use of Land 
SE3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SE4 The Landscape 
SE5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 
SE8 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 
SE9 Energy Efficient Development 
SE12 Pollution, Land Contamination and Land Instability 
SE13 Flood Risk and Water Management 
CO1 Sustainable Travel and Transport 

Page 44



 
OFFICIAL 

CO3 Digital Connections 
CO4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments 
Appendix C Parking Standards 
 
Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD) 2022 
PG9 Settlement Boundaries 
GEN1 Design principles 
GEN5 Aerodrome safeguarding 
GEN7 Recovery of planning obligations reduced on viability grounds 
ENV1 Ecological network 
ENV2 Ecological implementation 
ENV5 Landscaping 
ENV6 Trees, hedgerows and woodland implementation 
ENV7 Climate Change 
ENV10 Solar energy 
ENV12 Air quality 
ENV14 Light pollution 
ENV15 New development and existing uses 
ENV16 Surface water management and flood risk 
ENV17 Protecting water resources 
HOU1 Housing Mix 
HOU2 Specialist Housing provision 
HOU8 Space, accessibility and wheelchair housing standards 
HOU10 Backland development 
HOU12 Amenity 
HOU13 Residential standards 
HOU14 Housing density 
HOU15 Housing delivery 
RET9 Environmental improvements, public realm and design in town centres  
INF3 Highways safety and access 
INF9 Utilities 
REC1 Open space protection 
REC2 Indoor sport and recreation implementation 
REC3 Open space implementation 
REC5 Community facilities 
 
Wilmslow Neighbourhood Plan (WNP): 
LSP1 Sustainable Construction 
LSP2 Sustainable Spaces 
LSP3 Sustainable Transport 
NE5 Biodiversity Conservation 
TH1 Gateways into Wilmslow 
TA1 Residential Parking Standards 
TA2 Congestion and Traffic Flow 
TA5 Cycling in Wilmslow 
CR1 Community Facilities 
CR2 Indoor Leisure Facilities 
CR3 Local Green Spaces 
CR4 Public Open Space 

Page 45



 
OFFICIAL 

CR5 Health Centres 
H2 Residential Design 
H3 Housing Mix 
E1 Reuse of Existing Employment Land 
PR1 Public Realm  
PR3 Pedestrian Movement in the Town Centre 
KS1 Key Sites 
KS2 Police, Fire and Ambulance Stations 
 
Other material planning policy considerations 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
SuDS SPD 
Housing SPD 
Environmental Protection SPD 
Developer Contributions SPD  
Cheshire East Design Guide SPD 
Ecology and Biodiversity Net Gain SPD 
Designing Out Crime SPD 
Nationally Described Space Standards (NDSS) 
 
CONSULTEES (EXTERNAL TO PLANNING) 
 
Original Scheme 
 
United Utilities – March 2023 - no objection - noted that submitted Drainage Drawing Ref: 
McC&S-HS-W-DEV-100-005, Rev B, Dated 28/07/2022 would not be acceptable regarding foul 
and surface water drainage however concluded this can be secured via use of prior to 
commencement style drainage strategy and management condition should approval be 
recommended. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority – March 2023 - object to the proposals  - due to major scale of 
the development insufficient information has been provided in which to ascertain the drainage 
strategy would provide adequate water management and flood risk mitigation/avoidance as per 
paragraph 165 of the NPPF. 
 
Strategic Housing Officer – March 2023 - no objections subject to independent review of the 
Viability Appraisal submitted which their comments are based on in which to secure funding for 
off-site affordable housing noting that no on-site affordable provision is planned – due to need 
for rented over 55 accommodation and Intermediate need for the over 55’s. If Viability Review 
concludes otherwise then affordable housing would need to be provided on site at 30% of the 
total number proposed as per the requirements of SC5 of the CELPS.  
 
Environmental Protection – April 2023 - no objections subject to the use of conditions and 
informatives to secure: 
Conditions: external lighting scheme submission on prior to installation basis; prior to 
commencement pile foundations scheme (if applicable); prior to commencement construction 
site specific dust management plan; electric vehicle charging points; ultra low emission boilers; 
prior to first occupation travel plan strategy; prior to commencement Phase I and II ground 

Page 46



 
OFFICIAL 

assessment submission; prior to commencement remediation strategy; prior to occupation 
verification report; testing of soils prior to importation; reporting of previously unidentified 
contaminated land. 
 
 
NHS Estates – no objections subject to provision of financial contributions to off-set impacts of 
development on their infrastructure. 
 
Wilmslow Town Council – object to the proposals for the following summarised reasons: 

 The proposals does not meet WNP policy KS2 in that it calls for provision of high-density 
residential development comprising a mix of starter homes, affordable housing and 
homes appropriate for those wishing to downsize; and 

 Overall masterplan to show how the appropriate mix of site uses responds to one 
another.   

 Still concern regarding parking provision and Transport Statement does not highlight 
provision on adjacent streets is extremely restricted and the demand should be assessed 
on local standards.  

 Concern over buildings siting, massing, elevational treatment and parking layout. 
 
Revised Scheme 
 
Head of Strategic Transport – no objection subject to conditions securing covered cycle 
parking and Travel Pack for sustainable transport options for each apartment on prior to 
occupation basis. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority Officer - holding objection seeking the submission of an FRA 
due to the major development size of the application, revised drainage strategy following SuDS 
considerations of biodiversity and amenity, attenuation tank maximum weight loading and 
depths and topographical map covering existing and proposed finished floor and ground levels 
for the development. 
 
Environmental Protection – no objection subject to use of conditions to cover the following: 
prior to commencement submission of an updated conceptual model, phase II ground 
investigation and risk assessment; prior to commencement remediation strategy if Phase II 
investigations indicate necessary; prior to occupation submission of Verification Report, prior 
to importation testing of soils (if applicable) and reporting of previously undiscovered 
contaminated land.  
 
Cheshire Constabulary – made an observation regarding use of 1.8m loop/bow top fence 
securing the site with regards to proximity to the public open space and that they encourage 
applicants to consider building the development to the Secured by Design standard. 
 
Manchester Airport – no objections subject to informative covering tall equipment and cranes 
licence and notification separate to planning required from them. 
 
ANSA Greenspace – object to the proposals summarised as follows: 

 The four-storey building will have an overbearing impact on the immediate greenspace 
to the north Little Lindow, sitting larger and taller than that insitu. 

Page 47



 
OFFICIAL 

 Concern the scale of the building will result in shade onto the greenspace and bring 
residential properties in close proximity to impact on future development plans for 
greenspace bringing conflict between residents and users. Some future development 
being that on south of the path through the greenspace. 

 The existing trees do not significantly buffer or screen the building and there is concern 
that the northern elevation proximity to them may cause conflict and put pressure on the 
social interaction of residents and these trees. Not appropriate to allow for screening 
from off-site trees. 

 There is limited private amenity space for residents to the north of the building which will 
be shaded by off-site trees, more of a landscape buffer than providing actual amenity or 
opportunity for residents.  It is a linear strip with narrow patio areas for ground floor 
apartments making it an uncomfortable space to walk through. The proposals need to 
meet on-site amenity space in line with SE6 of the CELPS and REC3 of the SADPD and 
Developer Contributions SPD. 

 Only way to address impact is through revised bulk and siting of the building.  

 Mitigation would be required via prior to commencement style conditions. 

 Lack of provision of Green Infrastructure on the site in a prominent location with a 
presumption for this to be on-site childrens play space, amenity green space though 
given nature of the development it would be acceptable for this to come forward as off-
site provision via financial contributions.  

 Off-site contributions would be secured via S106 agreement on a prior to 
commencement basis, used over a 20-year period to make additions, improvements and 
enhancements to existing open space as per the below and if possible for new facilities.  

 Play and amenity com sums are calculated on the basis of £1173.41 per bed space. 
To be used at Little Lindow, Lindow Common, Carnival Field and The Carrs. 

 Allotments are £293.35 per bed space to be used at allotments and community 
gardens within Wilmslow 

 GI connectivity is £586.70 per apartment to be used at Carnival Field, Lindow Common 
and The Carrs. 

 Recreation and outdoor sport is £782.25 per bed space to be used in line with the 
councils adopted Playing Fields and Outdoor Sports Strategy.  

 
Cllr Goldsmith – The building is out of keeping for the immediate area due to its height and 
scale. It is in a prominent ‘gateway’ position to the town and is overbearing and not in keeping 
with its proximity to the Little Lindow Park. The access to the car park is shared with the new 
proposed Police Station considered to be a safety issue for the elderly.  
 

Wilmslow Town Council – object to the proposals: 

 The previous comments on the original and other revisions of the scheme remain 
unaddressed. 

 The proposals are noted to have made efforts towards buildings siting, massing, 
elevational treatment and parking layout, however do not meet fundamental 
requirements within policy KS2 of the WNP to provide high-density residential 
development comprising a mix of starter homes, affordable housing and homes 
appropriate for those wishing to downsize. 
 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 

Page 48



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Original Scheme 
 
MP Ester McVey – objects to the proposals for the following summarised reasons: 

- The development is not in keeping with the character of the area and is much taller than 
the immediate buildings in the setting and does not follow characteristics on Water Lane, 
appearing more like industrial accommodation. 

- The proposals due to their siting and additional height and scale compared with the 
existing building will be overbearing on adjacent properties. 

- The development has insufficient on-site parking which will result in parking of vehicles 
on surrounding streets with the number of additional vehicle uplift considered to be 
under-represented in the Transport Plan/Statement taking into account local 
demands/usage. The applicants own Holly Road North where they have had to provide 
additional spaces on a subsequent application to meet demand where this is no possible 
here due to the road layout and clear access needed for the police station.  

- Concerns over highways safety of proposed elderly residents vs. emergency service 
vehicles visiting the police station, with residents more vulnerable and less quick to react 
to changes in the highways environment.  

- The development fails to provide a mixed tenure housing scheme as per KS2 of the 
WNP without an overall masterplan for the wider police, ambulance and fire station site.  

- The development should provide on-site affordable housing and not allow a financial 
contribution in this instance due to the needs in the area. 

 
11no. Letters of objection were received (including from Transition Wilmslow and Wilmslow 
Civic Trust) summarised as follows: 

- The application is contrary to policy KS2 of the WNP overall. 
- The proposals do not provide a mixture of residential accommodations covering starter 

homes, affordable housing or those wishing to downsize.  
- The principal frontage does not face onto the adjacent streets and open space and are 

bland and non-active onto Hawthorn Street. 
- The proposals result in the loss of mature trees to Hawthorn Street. 
- The proposals result in main parking areas not being hidden from street view. 
- The massing to Hawthorn Street is too much. 
- The proposals do not provide an overall masterplan evidencing how the overall 

masterplan for the wider police, ambulance and fire station site will be developed into 
appropriate mixes of uses. 

- How the site access will be shared with the proposed neighbouring Police Station is not 
noted. 

- The character and scale of the proposals including landscaping does not mirror the 
established character of the immediate area. 

- Consideration required as to joint landscaping and drainage proposals for this and 
adjacent new police station. 

- The proposals are contrary to policies SE1 and SD2 of the CELPS, GEN1, HOU10, 
HOU11, HOU12 and HOU13 of the SADPD also.  

- The development is not in keeping with the surrounding area character in size, scale, 
bulk, design and material palette which include neighbouring houses.  

- The development will result in detrimental impacts to residential amenity including loss 
of daylight/sunlight, overbearing impacts, loss of privacy, disturbing artificial lights etc. to 
existing properties on Hawthorn Street. 

Page 49



 
OFFICIAL 

- The development will create additional demand on struggling infrastructure such as more 
NHS patients at local doctors etc.  

- The development has an insufficient provision of on-site parking not just for residents, 
but for delivery vehicles, visitors and staff. 

- The development does not include drop-off or short stay bays for taxis or medical 
vehicles where other public transport is sparse and not very accessible.  

- The development will result in the intensification on local road networks due to the 
amount of development and new residents with vehicle trip uplifts, where there is already 
parking contrary to directions such as double yellow lines causing traffic issues. The 
calculations for vehicle trips and parking are based on data that is at least 6 years old 
and should be compared to Lawton Grange which is 2017 development with 34 spaces 
for 30 residents. 

- The development and wider area lacks a safe crossing point on Hawthorn Street 
adjacent to the proposed development to serve the proposed more senior residents with 
the closest crossing point on Water Lane a long walk from the site. 

- The development results in the loss of or damage to mature trees and hedgerows without 
sufficient justification or meaningful replacement planting.  

- The development does not provide a suitable mix of homes as per relevant 
neighbourhood policy.  

- The development represents overdevelopment as a culmination of all the above aspects.  
- The development is not clear on how biodiversity gains will be met and how nature is 

impacted.  
- The application provides inaccurate plans and information comparing the artists 

impression with the scale plans/elevations with regards to lawn areas and distances from 
fences/neighbouring structures. 

 
2no. letters of support was received summarised as follows: 

- The proposals have access to shops and facilities such as doctors/dentists and opticians 
which are benefits of the position of this new residential development.  

- Consider points made in the application are sincere and not overstated. 
 
Revised Scheme 
 
Residents of Wilmslow – object to the proposals as follows: 

 Insufficient provision of on-site parking. 

 Design of the proposals appears monolithic and does not break up the massing by use 
of 2no. brick tones and adding brickwork to balconies only increases the massing. This 
is contrary to KS2 of the WNP.  

 Lack of provision of on-site affordable housing. 
 
4no. letters of objection have been received summarised as follows: 

 The previous objections in terms of fundamental requirements for the site as set out in 
policy KS2 of the WNP have not been met for a mixed housing development.  

 The Transport Statement does not highlight that parking provision on adjacent streets is 
extremely restricted and the parking demand should be assessed on local standards. 
The same points were cited for a similar type of development under application 
ref:23/0853M and appeal APP/R0660/W/23/3317173. Insufficient on-site parking 
provision that will lead to impacts on surrounding highway network.  

Page 50



 
OFFICIAL 

 The scale and massing of the development is too much for this site at a key prominent 
location. 

 The proposals would be overbearing due to their scale and cause loss of light to 
habitable rooms and cause a loss of privacy to rooms and gardens of immediate 
neighbouring development to Hawthorn Street and Beech Lane. 

 Loss of trees adjacent to 27 Hawthorn Street is unacceptable due to loss of screening.  

 The proposals would increase demand on existing infrastructure and services without 
due compensation.  

 
1no. letters of observation were received summarised as follows: 

 Support the demolition of the police station and the erection of retirement living housing. 

 Would not support the proposals if trees or the park were detrimentally impacted as a 
result of the proposals.  

 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Principle of the development  
The site is located in Wilmslow, a Key Service Centre. Policy PG2 of the CELPS sets out that 
development of a scale, location and nature that recognises and reinforces the distinctiveness 
of each individual town will be supported to maintain their vitality and viability. Key Service 
Centres are where new development such as residential developments are directed towards 
due to the existence of existing infrastructure to support new uses. Policy KS2 of the WNP 
seeks the comprehensive redevelopment of these three neighbouring police, fire and 
ambulance stations including for residential development. The site lies just west of the 
Wilmslow Town Centre boundary immediately east across Hawthorn Street and as such is 
considered to be in a sustainable location suitable for residential development such as this, 
where multiple public transport facilities and services such as doctors, dentists and shopping 
exist in the immediate vicinity. It is considered that the principle of a new retirement/minimal 
support C3 residential use/development at this site is acceptable. The proposals would 
positively contribute to the demonstrable housing land supply as a site allocated in the 
neighbourhood plan as targeted for residential development. The loss of the existing building 
is considered acceptable noting the replacement Police Station within the wider site has been 
approved and is under construction. 
 
Housing mix 
Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that new residential development provide 
a mixture of homes that reflects the needs of the immediate location and allow for an ageing 
population and to create mixed communities.  
 
During the course of the application concern was raised at the lack of masterplan supporting 
the proposals showing the wider fire and ambulance sites and how this relates with this 
development and that recently approved for the neighbouring police station as per KS2 of the 
WNP. Concern was also raised that the proposals did not present a mixed housing scheme 
including starter and affordable homes as per KS2 of the WNP. 
 
The development is of major scale and as such an appropriate house type, tenure and mix is 
normally expected. Policy SC4 of the CELPS sets out the housing mix must mirror local needs 
and reflect the need to provide a variety of accommodations for differing life stages in 
sustainable area. HOU1 of the SADPD provides the following types/sizes/tenures of housing in 

Page 51



 
OFFICIAL 

Table 8.1 as a starting point for housing mix assessment.  Other relevant matters in the policy 
include a consideration of the local housing market and characteristics, character and design 
of the site and local area reflecting on the scheme's ability to accommodate a mix and range of 
housing. 
 

 
 
Further to this SC5 Affordable Homes is also relevant and requires 30% of all units to be 
affordable in a split of 65% affordable/social rent and 35% intermediate affordable tenure. Policy 
KS2 of the WNP seeks the ‘provision of a high-density residential development comprising a 
mix of starter homes, affordable housing and homes appropriate for those wishing to downsize’.  
 
The proposals are presented as a fully market scheme with a surplus of £58,530 to cover all 
s106 obligations including affordable housing (for off-site delivery according to the applicant’s 
Viability Appraisal). The proposals present a total of 52no. apartments: 27no. one-bedroom 
apartments and 25no. two-bedroom apartments. Taking this into account the affordable 
housing requirement for on-site provision would be 15.6no. units rounded up to 16no. units with 
a split of 10no. affordable/social rent and 6no. intermediate tenure units.  
 
The Strategic Housing Officer has reviewed the proposals and does not object to them. They 
note that according to the current number of those on the Cheshire Homechoice waiting list 
with Wilmslow as their first choice is 578 broken down as follows also highlighting the specific 
need for over 55 housing and preferences: 
  

How many bedrooms do you 

require? 

  

First Choice 1 2 3 4+ 
Grand 

Total 

Wilmslow 175 94 62 14 345 

 
Over 55 Intermediate Demand     
  

How many bedrooms do you 
require? 

  

First Choice 1 2 3 4 

Page 52



 
OFFICIAL 

Wilmslow 40 2 1 0 

Totals for each bedroom type. 40 2 1 0 

     
  What Type of Housing do you 

require? 

  

First Choice Flat/Bedsit Bungalow Maisonette House 

Wilmslow 32 33 12 23 

Totals for each bedroom type. 32 33 12 23 

 
Taking into account this information it is considered that the proposals would present a mixture 
of one and two-bedroom units highlighted as specifically being in need for this particular age 
group. Whilst the proposals do not propose on site affordable units the Strategic Housing Officer 
does not object on the basis of the viability information presented, subject to confirmation of the 
results through independent review otherwise noting that the proposals meet a specific need. 
 
In considering these points whilst the proposals do not present a complete mixture affordable 
or starter homes as per the KS2 policy they do provide homes for those wishing to downsize 
and also it is noted with regards to masterplanning that this is not possible given the different 
ownerships of the site. Cheshire Homechoice details represent the most up to date information 
regarding affordable home tenure demands in terms of these considerations. While the 
proposals would provide housing for the over 55’s or those wishing to downsize in line with 
market mixture/type needs for the area, they fail to provide on-site affordable housing in line 
with policy requirements and therefore the proposals are contrary to H3 and KS2 of the WNP, 
HOU1 of the SADPD and SC5 of the CELPS, Housing SPD and Developer Contributions SPD. 
 
Design and character 
Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that new development is of an appropriate 
size, scale and design that is commensurate to the character of the area in which it would be 
situated, whilst championing higher quality design to enhance and improve the wider borough.  
 
During the course of the application concerns were raised as to the siting, scale and design of 
the proposals being out of keeping with the character of the immediate area, too tall at three 
and four storeys and not reflecting the design brief within WNP policy KS2. Concern was raised 
that the proposals would be overdevelopment and read as too prominent when considered 
against buildings on Hawthorn Street and Little Lindow play area/green space to the frontage. 
Issue was also raised at the siting and amount of hardstanding for parking being placed in a 
position too close to Little Lindow green space and being too visible from Altrincham Road. 
Concern was raised as to the connection to Beech Lane / Hawthorn Street and the site for 
pedestrians.   
 
HOU8 of the SADPD expects that new dwellings meet the NDSS, which is confirmed to be the 
case for this development, in most instances with the minimum spatial figures exceeded. 
 
KS2 of the WNP sets out that this site is an important gateway along Altrincham Road towards 
the town centre core. In terms of design this policy specifically requests: the building line along 
Hawthorn Street and Beech Lane; that the site levels are respected; the principal frontage fronts 
onto the adjacent streets and Little Lindow open space; landscaping and perimeter curtilages 

Page 53



 
OFFICIAL 

complete street frontages; preservation of all mature trees and parking hidden from Little 
Lindow views. In the paragraphs supporting this policy it states for building heights two to three 
storey dwellings along Hawthorn Street and three to four storey dwellings fronting Little Lindow 
and within main body of site complementing existing properties on Altrincham Road would be 
appropriate.  
 
The proposals have been amended and the siting of the parking is now situated to the south of 
the proposed new building and is screened by the building itself, landscaping and existing 
ambulance station, as such addresses the issues with visibility from Little Lindow green and 
Altrincham Road. There is also an additional set-off of the building from the trees on Little 
Lindow green to the north allowing more space for the development to breathe and still retaining 
this existing natural screening. The site layout now accommodates 2no. pedestrian entry points 
from Beech Lane and Hawthorn Street leading to the entrance of the building and the new 
Police Station. The proposals have also incorporated adequate bin/recycling storage and plant 
storage within the main building with suitable vehicular pull in access both from its southern 
elevation via the car park, resulting in minimal additional built clutter in the wider site. The layout 
provides a good level of on-site external amenity space, whilst not impacting Little Lindow green 
space and play area immediately to the north. Site levels as per elevations and sections appear 
suitable though exact finished floor and ground levels can be secured via planning condition 
attached to any approval issued. 
 
The building lines proposed are considered acceptable noting the stepped forward nature of 
existing police station building elevation along Hawthorn Street. The proposals also present a 
dual principal frontage to both the north and south elevations which have positive impacts to 
both the car park and Little Lindow frontages. The elevations are also of stepped four storeys 
with a relief in the elevations presenting three storey staggered bays allowing the fourth storey 
to be less dominant and consistent with the requirements of scale of policy KS2. The indicated 
materials on the elevations provided appear acceptable, though exact specifications of these 
including for railings and balconies will be subject to planning conditions should approval be 
recommended, also to include relevant sections of windows/doors reveals etc. 
 
The Design Officer was consulted on the proposals and stated that revised scheme has 
resolved majority of previous design concerns regarding character and context covering 
materiality, scale, similarities or references to the proportions and ornamentation of 
neighbouring Victorian properties, its siting, orientation and use of features such as metal 
railings and recessed/projecting elements to break up form. 
 
The Design and Highways Officers originally raised concern at the lack of legible 1.4m 
pedestrian pathway to serve this development from Beech Lane and also to provide a 
pedestrian route via this shared access to the neighbouring new Police Station (currently 
subject of a s73 variation of condition application).  The revised site layouts for both of these 
neighbouring developments shows this route has now been provided at the expected standards 
using two tone and differing materials to assist with site navigation and safety noting the 
pathway runs across parking for the new retirement complex. The provision of this path on a 
prior to first occupation of the development basis will form a condition attached to any approval 
issued.  
 
Other matters raised by the Design Officer were lack of consideration of green roofs/walls for 
the scheme as per LPS of the WNP and details of materials including use of metal framed 

Page 54



 
OFFICIAL 

window to improve sustainability of the building. It is considered that this can be secured via 
use of planning condition attached to any approval issued. 
 
As per policy EN7 of the SADPD for major residential developments at least 10% of energy 
needs should be provided via low carbon or renewable generation unless the applicant can 
clearly demonstrate having regards to design/type of development this is not feasible. In this 
instance it is considered feasible and therefore a condition is recommended to require the 
submission of this detail.  
 
Taking into account the aforementioned points it is considered the proposals are in compliance 
with the listed policies and guidance regarding design and local character, subject to conditions. 
 
Living conditions 
Between them the listed policies and guidance seek to ensure all development is located and 
designed so as not to result in a harmful or cumulative impact upon air quality, surface water 
and groundwater, noise, smell, dust, vibration, soil contamination, light pollution or any other 
pollution which would unacceptably affect the natural and built environment, or detrimentally 
affect amenity or cause harm in terms of loss of privacy, sunlight and daylight, overbearing 
effect and traffic generation. Developers will be expected to minimise and mitigate the effects 
of possible pollution arising from the development itself, or as a result of the development 
(including additional traffic) during both the construction and the life of the development. Where 
adequate mitigation cannot be provided, development will not normally be permitted.  
 
During the course of the application concern was raised that the development due to its siting, 
scale and orientation that it would detrimentally impact residential amenity with regards to 
overbearing impacts, privacy and overlooking for existing properties on Beech Grove, Hawthorn 
Street and Alma Lane.  
 
The three-storey eastern elevation of the building is over 39m to existing house frontages on 
Hawthorn Street.  There is 20m from its three storey southern elevation to existing side 
elevations on houses on Beech Lane, and a minimum of 47m from its fourth storey elevation to 
existing rear elevations of houses on Beech Grove and 50m from rear elevations on existing 
houses on Alma Lane. These all meet the minimum recommended spatial distance standards 
between development highlighted in policy HOU13 of the SADPD to ensure privacy, outlook, 
light and amenity is protected for existing neighbours. In terms of amenity impacts on future 
occupants of the building all distance standards are met there also, including for the extant 
permission for the new police station to the south, plus the existing ambulance and fire stations. 
Due to the set off of the building from surrounding form it is not considered it would cause 
overshadowing or loss of light. 
 
In terms of contaminated land the application is supported by a Phase I assessment. 
Environmental Health Officers raised no objection subject to conditions. Whilst conditions were 
historically requested from Environmental Health Officers to secure ultra-low emission boilers 
and electric vehicle (car) charging points, as these are now secured separately to the planning 
process due to amendments to Building Regulations, they no longer meet the tests for the use 
of planning conditions to include these as part of any approval issued. To ensure amenity 
protection regarding odour, details of the bin stores will be secured via condition. 
 

Page 55



 
OFFICIAL 

Subject to conditions it is considered that the development is in compliance with policies and 
guidance covering living conditions and pollution protection.  
 
Highway safety and parking  
Between them the listed policies seek to deliver safe, sustainable, high quality, integrated 
transport systems that encourage a modal shift away from car travel to public transport, cycling 
and walking; supportive of the needs of residents and businesses and preparing for carbon free 
modes of transport. They also seek to secure safe access and protect and maintain public rights 
of way and enhance them where detrimental impacts require mitigation or allocations indicate.  
 
During the course of the application objections were received from local groups and the public 
with regards to detrimental impacts as a result of the development on highways safety and 
parking as a result of the parking and access proposed to service the site, which was 
considered to be in an area which is reported to experience existing issues regarding both 
topics. 
 
The site is within Wilmslow, a Key Service Centre location as defined in policy PG2 of the 
CELPS. Appendix C of the CELPS states for C3 use in a Key Service Centre that for one-
bedroom units 1no. parking space and for two-bedroom units 2no. spaces are required, with 
the dimension of spaces to be at least 4.8m x 2.5m. 1no. secure cycle parking space per 
dwelling would also be required. Appendix C also lists that good circulation in car parks is an 
important factor in ensuring the safety of pedestrians moving to and from their vehicles, as such 
aisle widths should be set at a minimum of 6.9m for two-way routes and one-way routes 6m, to 
allow ease of movement to/from spaces without unnecessarily impeding pedestrians and other 
vehicles.  
 
Taking into consideration the recommended parking standards this development would 
generate a requirement of 77no. vehicular parking spaces (27no. for the one-bedroom units 
and 50no. for the two-bedroom units) and 57no. secure cycle parking spaces. The development 
includes 36no. vehicular parking spaces, an under-provision when assessed against Appendix 
C recommended requirements. The proposals also include use of the existing site access off 
Beech Lane and introduction of pedestrian pavement connection to the existing infrastructure. 
It is considered that secure cycle parking for the development can be secured by planning 
condition.  
 
The application is supported by a Transport Statement. This statement has not been updated 
since the original submission as such refers to incorrect levels of on-site parking provision now 
proposed. Notwithstanding this their statement concludes that based on similar retirement living 
schemes a traffic generation of 1.54 trips per apartment were recorded for a standard 12-hour 
day (7am-7pm) with approximately 43 arrivals and departures during this period, around 14no. 
trips per hour two-way. In Table 8.1 of the Transport Statement for their surveyed retirement 
complexes a peak parking demand per apartment was 0.47 spaces. For a ratio of 52no. 
proposed apartments served by a proposed 36no. parking spaces the proposed parking 
provision ratio for this scheme is 0.69 spaces per apartments, which the applicant suggests 
demonstrates that the under-provision against policy is justified given real life examples of 
similar schemes that have been successful and provided appropriate parking less than 
recommended standards. The Transport Statement also argues that as people get older, car 
ownership drops with a clear link between entering sheltered housing and giving up car 
ownership. They also cite the close proximity of existing bus stops on Altrincham Road and 

Page 56



 
OFFICIAL 

Water Lane within walking distance of the site to provide good opportunities for sustainable 
transport uptake and otherwise stating the site to be sustainably located for access to existing 
facilities on foot to the east within Wilmslow town centre. The Statement includes an example 
of Travel Pack to be issued to future residents of the development to encourage and highlight 
sustainable transport options in the vicinity.  
 
This has been reviewed by the Highways Officer who raises no objections to the development. 
They consider that there is no objection to the use of the existing access off Beech Lane.  
However, they note that the dual access for the Police Station is not good practice due to 
number of daily movements to and from the station through the single access but acknowledge 
that the redesigned layout minimises this conflict between the residential car park as the 
majority of parking spaces for this development are to the west of the new Police Station 
access. The Officer also notes that there will be a separate footway on the southern side of the 
access providing access to the Police Station entrance. They comment that whilst they do not 
consider the dual access for the two neighbouring uses to be good design there are no technical 
highway reasons to object to the proposed access arrangements and as such, they raise no 
objections. They also raise no objections to the parking provision proposed noting similar 
reduced provisions have been accepted on a case-by-case basis for such development as 
argued for and accepted here. They seek the provision of secure covered cycle parking to meet 
recommended Council standards and a Travel Pack for residents of each apartment 
highlighting transport options and routes nearby covering sustainable transport modes to be 
submitted for review on a prior to occupation basis.  
 
Subject to conditions it is considered that the proposals are in compliance with the policies and 
guidance covering highways safety and parking.  
 
Trees and hedgerows 
Between them the listed policies and guidance also seek to protect the continued health and 
life expectancy of trees, hedgerows or woodlands and where loss of or threat to them is 
proposed development will not normally be permitted unless there are clear overriding reasons 
for allowing development and that there are no suitable alternatives. These policies and 
guidance also seek to protect and enhance landscape character. Where such impacts are 
unavoidable, development proposals must satisfactorily demonstrate a new environmental gain 
by appropriate mitigation, compensation or offsetting. 
 
During the course of the application concern was raised that the siting of the building would 
cause damage to or loss of the mature trees to Little Lindow green.  
 

The application is supported by a Tree Protection Plan which indicates that 8no. trees to the 
east and south of the development are to be lost to facilitate the development, these include a 
group of Cherry trees, 2no. Norway Maple and 3no. Silver Birch. In comparison to the original 
scheme the proposals have been set back away from the canopy and root protection areas of 
the English Oak, Norway Maples, Sycamore, Limes, Rowans and Beech trees to the north of 
the site beyond the red edge on Little Lindow. This allows for less immediate and future conflict 
between the trees and new development in terms of pressures to prune/crown lift etc. with 
regards to leaf littering/loss of light in respect of residential amenity of future occupants and the 
ongoing preservation of these key trees both in landscape, visual amenity and nature 
conservation terms.     

Page 57



 
OFFICIAL 

The Forestry Officer has reviewed the proposals and notes that compared with the original 
layout where concern was raised at the proximity of the building and its hard landscaping with 
the key character/quality trees off site to the north forming part of Little Lindow open space, that 
the current layout is an improvement. The new layout provides increased separation from these 
trees. In terms of the impact of the development on other trees they note Section 7.3 of the 
Impact Assessment states that; services and utility installation can be sited remote from trees 
but if they do need to be located within root protection areas specialist measures can be 
deployed for their installation to minimise harm to retained trees. It is noted that the revised 
proposed drainage layout (rev P02 dated 22/76/2024) suggests that conflicts will arise with 
trees shown for retention in particular with regard to the east side of the scheme where the 
Proposed Foul Water Drainage will pass directly between, and through the RPAs of trees T7, 
T8 and T9. The drainage plan also indicates a sewer diversion to the south of the site edged 
red of this application which appears to present conflicts with off-site trees shown for retention 
with approved application 23/0219M. The submitted Landscape Layout (2859-03-LA-4296-101-
E) suggests that tree T7 will be removed to accommodate new hard standing. The landscape 
plan does show the location of new footpaths and hard standing and is annotated to indicate 
areas where no dig construction will be required, however this level of detail should also feature 
on the tree protection plan. At this time, they consider there to be conflicting information to 
understand the impact on trees given the discrepancies between the plans listed and as such 
this should be addressed, and an appraisal carried out regarding the feasibility of their retention.  
 
Further to this the applicants’ agent has confirmed that T7 will be lost to facilitate the works 
however T8 and 9 will be retained. Notwithstanding this the updated Tree Protection Plan, Tree 
Survey, Landscape Layout and Drainage Layouts still have conflicting information with no 
additional clarification provided to satisfy the concerns as raised by the Tree Officer as to the 
loss of T7 in totality and potential RPA impacts of T8 and T9. Though the trees are not formally 
protected they add visual interest and green screening to the site and their retention and re-
consideration of drainage layout should be thoroughly investigated as trees are a finite resource 
and as retention of them is preferrable to mitigatory new planting which takes time to re-
establish. It is considered that conditions to secure this information and related updated 
drainage/landscaping layouts is an appropriate way forward. Subject conditions it is considered 
that the development is in compliance with the relevant tree and hedgerow policies of the 
development plan.  
 
Landscape character and open space 
The listed policies and guidance seek that all development conserve the landscape character 
and quality and should where possible, enhance and effectively manage the historic, natural 
and man-made landscape features that contribute to local distinctiveness. In terms of open 
space and green infrastructure these policies also seek that all major development should 
provide open space as a matter of good design and to support health and well-being. The 
provision of open space will be sought on a site-by-site basis, taking account of the location, 
type and scale of development, with the presumption for residential development that this be 
provided on-site, though off-site provision may be acceptable in limited instances where this 
meets the needs of the development and achieves a better outcome in terms of open space 
delivery. This would involve payment of a commuted sum to the council and would involve long 
term delivery, maintenance and management scheme over a 20-year period.  
 
Concern was raised during the course of the application that the development constituted 
overdevelopment with a lack of on-site provision of private amenity space and had a 

Page 58



 
OFFICIAL 

landscaping scheme that did not reflect the character of the area and the location next to the 
Little Lindow open space. This included concerns from the ANSA Greenspace about the impact 
of the scale and siting of the building close to the recently enhanced Little Lindow greenspace 
in terms of amenity impacts on residents from use of the play spaces/kick about and in terms 
of social pressures on the characterful row of trees within the space off-site and interaction with 
the occupants who would occupy this northern elevation. Concern was also raised at the siting 
of the private amenity areas to the north in a shaded position and that pathways and routes 
through the site were narrow and did not reflect needs of likely residents.  
 
During the course of the application the scheme has been revised multiple times and has 
significantly reduced the massing, size and scale of the building which is now considered to be 
commensurate with other buildings in the area and reflects the KS2 allocation in the WNP on 
this basis. The siting of the building and locations of patios, pathways etc. has also been revised 
to address objections originally raised by the Forestry Officer in terms of physical siting of the 
northern elevation and associated foundation works/topographical differences which did conflict 
with root protection areas. The layout has much improved this relationship between the building 
and this row of northern off-site trees within the Little Lindow green space and is considered to 
no longer create physical conflict (subject to recommendations for tree protection during 
demolition/construction as highlighted) and due to the additional set off of nearly 10m from 
trunks of these trees and northern elevation. This now has much reduced potential for social 
conflicts of future residents’ concerns regarding shading, leaf litter and obstruction of view 
(albeit this is not a planning matter). To this end, it is not considered there are social or 
functional relationship concerns regarding the siting or scale of the building on the existing 
open/green space Little Lindow.  
 
The site provides approximately 1298sqm of combined on-site amenity space with some of this 
private ground floor terrace areas serving ground floor apartments. This offers a linear pathway 
with new planting, hedgerows, shade tolerant wild-life garden seating areas and pergola with 
green roof, growing area and replacement trees. It is not considered further amendments to the 
layout are necessary noting vast improvements have been made taking into account other 
aspects of the allocation policy KS2 to ensure hardstanding for parking does not front Little 
Lindow or Altrincham Road and to ensure privacy amenity distances from neighbouring 
properties. Notwithstanding the comments from the ANSA Greenspace Officer it is considered 
that the on-site space and siting reflects the context and needs of residents, and noting that the 
site is also suitably located immediately adjacent to an existing area of open space. In this 
instance off-site provision of open space, outdoor sport, allotments and green infrastructure to 
supplement that on site is considered appropriate via means of financial contributions 
discussed in the coming section of this report. The landscaping scheme appears generally 
appropriate from that indicated on plans including planting, hardstanding and boundary 
treatments, however taking into account comments from the Design Officer and some elements 
of specifications such as pergolas, growing areas, fencing and gates not being provided and 
outstanding clarification on tree retention/planting mitigation conditions are recommended to 
secure these additional details.  
 
To this end the proposals are not in compliance with policies SD1, SD2, IN1, IN2, SC1, SC2, 
SC3, SE1 and SE2 of the CELPS, GEN1, REC2, REC3 of the SADPD, LPS2, CR4, KS1 and 
KS2 of the WNP.  
 
Nature conservation and biodiversity 

Page 59



 
OFFICIAL 

The listed policies of the development plan and guidance seek that all development must aim 
to positively contribute to the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity 
and should not negatively affect these interests, instead planning for net gains. Where 
appropriate, conditions will be put in place to make sure appropriate monitoring is undertaken 
and make sure mitigation, compensation and offsetting is effective. 
 
The proposals are supported by Preliminary Ecological Assessments, Bat Survey and 
Biodiversity Enhancement Gain Metrics etc. In terms of bats the findings concluded that the 
existing building did not record bats roosting at the survey time, but that the building had 
moderate roosting potential for them. The habitats on site provide negligible quality habitat for 
foraging and commuting bats however there are suitable habitats in the immediate vicinity to 
the north of the site. In terms of biodiversity net gain it is stated that the development currently 
results in a gain of 0.16 biodiversity area units a total net gain of 28.54% biodiversity area units. 
The development is said to have zero terrestrial habitat linear units but is proposed to create 
an additional 0.85 units. Their statements recommend that the proposals include integrated bat 
and bird boxes, insect hotels, log piles and hedgehog houses to further improve biodiversity 
within the proposed development. They also conclude that a landscape/ecological 
management plan should be produced with details of how habitats will be created, enhanced, 
maintained and monitored following the completion of the development covering a period of 30 
years post development.  
 
This has been reviewed by the Nature Conservation Officer who raises no objections subject 
to conditions. Subject to these conditions it is considered the proposals are in compliance with 
listed policies and guidance covering nature conservation and biodiversity. 
 
Flood risk and water management 
Between them the listed policies and guidance seek that developments must integrate 
measures for sustainable water management to reduce flood risk, avoid an impact on water 
quality and quantity within the borough and provide opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health 
and recreation. New development must be designed to be safe, taking into account the lifetime 
of the development and the need to adapt to climate change, seeking improvements to current 
surface water drainage network and be designed to manage surface water noting it is not 
sustainable to drain surface water to public sewers. New development should incorporate water 
efficiency measures. 
 
The site is not located within an existing area known for surface or fluvial flood risk - both noted 
as very low risk on gov.uk flood risk mapping, it is Flood Zone 1. 225mm and 300mm diameter 
surface water sewers pass south through the site discharging at the south-west corner of the 
site as outflow into a culverted watercourse. Surface water from the wider Ambulance and 
existing Police station is said to discharge into the culvert at an unrestricted rate.  
 
The proposals include a Drainage Layout which includes the diversion of the existing public 
sewer through the site running north to south close to the western boundary with easements 
either side, new foul water drainage connecting to the combined sewer on Hawthorn Street and 
the surface water drainage is proposed to collect through a series of new pipes, cellular crate 
storage under the car park that connects to the new police station drainage system which then 
discharges towards existing watercourse. It appears the foul connection leads to loss of at least 
one or two trees marked as retained elsewhere in tree survey information in group T7-T9 and 
thus would require future update and explanation. It is noted that between this scheme and that 

Page 60



 
OFFICIAL 

as approved for the new Police Station to the south that these no longer match one another, an 
important factor given they are proposed to connect to one another at least for surface water 
drainage and the movement of an existing culverted watercourse. It is advised that n S73 
variation of condition application ref: 24/2661M for the new Police Station, has been submitted 
seeking alternative consideration of a drainage scheme for that site.  
 
The application has been reviewed by the LLFA who originally raised a holding objection 
seeking the submission of an FRA due to the major development size of the application, revised 
drainage strategy following SuDS considerations of biodiversity and amenity, attenuation tank 
maximum weight loading and depths and topographical map covering existing and proposed 
finished floor and ground levels for the development. The applicant has provided updated 
Drainage Layouts and associated calculations which have been forwarded to the LLFA for 
review and their comments will be reported as an update.  
 
It is noted that whilst United Utilities have not responded to the revised scheme, they had no 
objection to the larger original scheme subject to conditions to secure further detailed drainage 
considerations. As there are discrepancies between the plans in this submission, uncertain 
impacts on trees and also that of the wider connection to the neighbouring new Police Station 
site, subject to LLFA updated comments conditions are likely to be suitable to secure a coherent 
set of drainage information taking into account related elements such as landscaping/tree 
protection and retention.  
 
Infrastructure and planning obligations  
The proposals are of major scale and due to its size and type of development will result in 
impacts to existing infrastructure such as NHS facilities, affordable housing, open space, 
outdoor recreation and sport, allotments and green infrastructure asset out in the Developer 
Contributions SPD and related policies as listed in the local plan.  
 

 Play and amenity com sums are calculated on the basis of £1173.41 per bed space 
(up to a maximum of 2no. bedspaces). To be used at Little Lindow, Lindow Common, 
Carnival Field and The Carrs. Totalling – 27 x one bedroom apartments @ £31,682.07 
and 25no x two bedroom apartments @ £58,670.50 = £90,352.57 

 Allotments are £293.35 per apartment to be used at allotments and community 
gardens within Wilmslow. Totalling  - 52no. apartments = £15,254.20 

 Green Infrastructure connectivity is £586.70 per apartment to be used at Carnival 
Field, Lindow Common and The Carrs. Totalling – 52no. apartments = £30,508.40 

 Recreation and outdoor sport is £782.25 per bed space (up to a maximum of 2no. 
bedspaces).  to be used in line with the councils adopted Playing Fields and Outdoor 
Sports Strategy. Totalling – 27 x one bedroom apartments @ £21,120.75 + 25 x two 
bedroom apartments @ £39,112.50 = £60,233.25 

 NHS Estates financial contributions towards Wilmslow Health Centre improvement 
covering: creation of clinical/administrative space internally from previous void spaces; 
basement conversion for creation of clinical rooms and/or admin space and minor 
extension to car park. £612 per one bedroom unit and £875 per two bedroom unit. 
£612 x 27 = £16,524 + £875 x 25 = £21,875 totalling £38,399.  

 Affordable housing totalling 16no. units (on site) with a split of 10no. affordable/social 
rent and 6no. intermediate tenure units highlighted as Social Rented or Affordable 
Rented, 4x 1-bed flats, 3x 2-bed houses, 2x 3-bed houses, 1x 4-bed house and 

Page 61



 
OFFICIAL 

Intermediate - 1x 1-bed flat, 3x 2-bed houses and 2x 3-bed houses or financial 
contribution towards off-site affordable housing projects of £2,715,757. 

 Total overall financial contributions/planning obligations £234,752.42 and 16no. 
on-site affordable units or off-site provision of £2,715,757 towards affordable 
units.  

 Total financial contribution of £2,950,509.42.  
 
Viability  
The applicants have submitted a Financial Viability Appraisal (FVA) by Alder King dated August 
2023 which has been supplemented by additional evidence following the revisions to the 
scheme in July 2024. The surplus or residual monies from this are what the applicants seek to 
use towards off-site affordable housing, outdoor sports, open space, recreation, green 
infrastructure, allotments and NHS facilities requirements generated as a result of the 
development.  
 
This has been independently reviewed on behalf of the LPA by Keppie Massie. Keppie Massie 
noted that the FVA suggested the application scheme was only sufficiently viable to support a 
total s106/affordable housing contribution of £58,350. They noted that in the FVA there were 
three main areas of difference between the applicants and the reviewers’ calculations theses 
covered: Benchmark Land Value, construction costs and debit rate. Discussions were held 
between the applicant’s valuers and Keppie Massie and agreements were reached to form a 
reasonable position in viability terms regarding the quantum of s106/Affordable Housing 
Contribution that could be supported by the application scheme. The result is that a total sum 
of £1,115,000 is available from the applicant for all s106/Affordable Housing Contributions. 
Keppie Massie conclude that if all other s106 contributions were paid (table 1.1 of their 
assessment) at £234,752.42 this would leave a balance of £915,247 for affordable housing, 
which would equate to an affordable housing provision of 10.11%. Keppie Massie highlight that 
if the entire contribution were used for affordable housing then the percentage provision would 
increase to 12.32% against a policy requirement of 30%. It should be noted that there will be a 
clawback arrangement within any s106 if approval is recommended and subsequently issued, 
in accordance with the Development Contributions SPD and other related policies such as 
GEN7 of the SADPD. This is to enable any surplus funds to be recovered and so increase the 
final affordable housing contribution.  
 
Taking into account the results of viability appraisals the development fails to be in compliance 
with policies and guidance covering planning obligations and financial contributions to off-set 
impacts of the development on provision of services, affordable housing and infrastructure, as 
it does not cover the full extent of the obligations/contributions generated.  
 
Other material considerations: 
Whilst the Council can presently demonstrate a housing land supply of 11.2 years, the 
development would support the re-use of a previously developed/brownfield site immediately 
adjacent to the Wilmslow Town Centre boundary in a sustainable location on a key site for 
redevelopment as highlighted in the WNP. Further to this the Strategic Housing Officer notes 
that there is a need for one and two-bedroom homes as proposed for older persons wishing to 
downsize within the settlement boundary of Wilmslow. In their response they note that subject 
to conclusion of viability review that it were not possible to provide the 16no. mixed tenure and 
type of housing as highlighted, they would not object on this basis. In addition, the proposals 
are considered to be well-designed responding to the immediate context and would form a good 

Page 62



 
OFFICIAL 

relationship with the wider new Police Station development it directly links with. On balance 
given these points and as in excess of £1.1m of financial contributions can be secured to 
support all s106 contributions covering NHS, Outdoor Sport and recreation, Green 
Infrastructure, Allotments and Play space completely and the remaining amount towards off-
site affordable housing securing a 10.1% provision, that there are material considerations 
weighing in favour of supporting and recommending the approval of the development in this 
instance. On this occasion it is considered best to secure all of the other s106 contributions 
noting the impacts on these infrastructure/services were highlighted as areas of concern for the 
community alongside affordable housing provision, thus splitting it as recommended would 
secure the most widely felt benefits to the community should the scheme be approved. This 
would also be subject to securing a S106 agreement with a clause to cover the requirements 
of policy GEN7 Recovery of planning obligations reduced on viability grounds of the SADPD as 
highlighted by Keppie Massie in their report. 
 
Heads of Terms  
In the event of an approval, an s106 agreement will be required to secure the following: 

 A financial contribution to secure play and amenity space improvements totalling 
£90,352.57 to be used at Little Lindow, Lindow Common, Carnival Field and The Carrs.  

 A financial contribution to secure improvements to Allotments of £15,254.20 to be used 
at allotments and community gardens within Wilmslow.  

 A financial contribution to secure Green Infrastructure connectivity totalling £30,508.40 
to be used at Carnival Field, Lindow Common and The Carrs.  

 A financial contribution to secure Recreation and outdoor sport improvements totalling 
£60,233.25 to be used in line with the councils adopted Playing Fields and Outdoor 
Sports Strategy.  

 A financial contribution for NHS Estates totalling £38,399 towards Wilmslow Health 
Centre improvements covering: creation of clinical/administrative space internally from 
previous void spaces; basement conversion for creation of clinical rooms and/or admin 
space and minor extension to car park.  

 A financial contribution for off-site affordable housing totalling £915,247. 

 A clawback arrangement in accordance with the Development Contributions SPD and 
other related policies such as GEN7 of the SADPD to enable any surplus funds to be 
recovered and so increase the final affordable housing contribution.  

 
 
CIL Regulations 
In order to comply with the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 it is 

necessary for planning applications with legal agreements to consider the issue of whether the 

requirements within the S106 satisfy the following: 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

(b) directly related to the development; and 

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

This scheme, via planning policy triggers the requirement to provide play and amenity space 
improvements, allotments improvements, green infrastructure improvements, recreation and 
outdoor sport improvements, NHS estates facilities improvements and as a result of the 

Page 63



 
OFFICIAL 

conclusion of viability appraisal works financial contributions towards off-site affordable 
housing. 
 
As these provisions relate to either policy provision and / or identified need, it is considered that 
these requirements are necessary, fair and reasonable in relation to the development. The s106 
recommendation is therefore considered to be compliant with the CIL regulations 2010. 
 
Conclusion 
Whilst the proposals would not comply with policy SC5 Affordable Homes of the CELPS as no 
on-site affordable housing is to be provided, on balance, following the conclusion of viability 
appraisals and review of material considerations, it is therefore recommended the application 
is approved subject to conditions and a s106 agreement to secure all NHS, Outdoor Sport and 
recreation, Green Infrastructure, Allotments and Play space and reduced financial contributions 
towards off-site affordable housing provision and a review of the viability of the scheme.  
 
Approve subject to prior completion of a s106 agreement to secure the  following: 

 A financial contribution to secure play and amenity space improvements totalling 
£90,352.57 to be used at Little Lindow, Lindow Common, Carnival Field and The Carrs.  

 A financial contribution to secure improvements to Allotments of £15,254.20 to be used 
at allotments and community gardens within Wilmslow.  

 A financial contribution to secure Green Infrastructure connectivity totalling £30,508.40 
to be used at Carnival Field, Lindow Common and The Carrs.  

 A financial contribution to secure Recreation and outdoor sport improvements totalling 
£60,233.25 to be used in line with the councils adopted Playing Fields and Outdoor 
Sports Strategy.  

 A financial contribution for NHS Estates totalling £38,399 towards Wilmslow Health 
Centre improvements covering: creation of clinical/administrative space internally from 
previous void spaces; basement conversion for creation of clinical rooms and/or admin 
space and minor extension to car park.  

 A financial contribution for off-site affordable housing totalling £915,247. 

 A clawback arrangement in accordance with the Development Contributions SPD and 
other related policies such as GEN7 of the SADPD to enable any surplus funds to be 
recovered and so increase the final affordable housing contribution.  

 
 
And the following conditions: 
 

1. 3 year implementation 
2. Development in accordance with approved plans 
3. Materials to be submitted on a prior to erection of walls above ground level basis 

including: walls; roof; balcony railings; windows; doors; cladding; rainwater goods etc. 
4. Sectional details of windows and doors to be provided. 
5. Sectional details of brick courses and detailing to elevations. 
6. Details of 10% energy efficiency/generation scheme to be submitted  
7. PD removal of means of enclosure, access and hardstanding. 
8. Details of external lighting to be submitted 
9. Secure cycle parking spaces details for 52no. cycles to be submitted. 
10. Vehicular parking and secure cycle parking spaces to be provided. 
11. Travel Plan and Travel Pack for sustainable transport options to be submitted  

Page 64



 
OFFICIAL 

12. Construction management plan to be submitted. 
13. Phase II ground assessment submission and remediation strategy;  
14. Verification report to be submitted;  
15. Testing of soils prior to importation;  
16. Reporting of previously unidentified contaminated land. 
17. 1.4m wide minimum pedestrian route from Beech Lane serving this and neighbouring 

site to be provided. 
18. Updated Tree Survey and Tree Protection Plan submission to mirror removed trees 

and drainage/landscaping layouts to be submitted. 
19. Landscaping scheme to be submitted including boundary treatments and sub-station 

details. 
20. Landscaping implementation  
21. Biodiversity enhancement strategy to be submitted  
22. Protection of nesting and breeding birds during season. 
23. 30-year landscape and ecological management plan to be submitted 
24. Detailed drainage strategy to link with the new police station to the south to be submitted 

and implemented. 
 
 
In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee’s decision (such as 
to delete, vary or add Conditions and/or Informatives or reasons for approval prior to the 
decision being issued, the Head of Planning has delegated authority to do so in consultation 
with the Chair of the Northern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed 
the substantive nature of the Committee’s decision. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 65



 
OFFICIAL 

 
 

N 

P
age 66



 

 

23/0657M 

Wilmslow Police Station, 
HAWTHORN STREET,  

WILMSLOW,  

SK9 5HQ 

P
age 67



BRICK WALL

GRASS

PA
VI

O
R

S

PAVIORS

BW

BRIC
K W

ALL

BRICK WALL

BW

BW

BW

BW

I\R
I\R

I\R

BRICK WALL

CW

BW

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

C
O

N
C

 W
AL

L

C\
B

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

CONC

CONC

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

BW

BW

BRICK WALL

C
\B

PAVIORS
GRASS

PAVIORS

PAVING

BRICK WALL

C
\B

CW

BW

check wall

check wall

check wall

BT
LP

G1.0

G1.0

G1.0

IC

IC

IC

G0.9

NP

G0.6

G1.0

G0.8

LP

G1.0

IC

LP

G1.0G0.8
SAP

CB

MG

G0.7

LP

LP
G0.8

G0.7

LP

G

IC

LP

G

G

LP

G0.8

G

G

G

LP

OP
0.0Ø

OP
0.0Ø

ER

IC

7.000OFFSET

BEARING

7.000OFFSET

BEARING

Z

Z

Z

Z

CB
CB

CBCB
CBCBCB

IC

IC

LP

CB

CB

IC

IC

IC

IC

CB

IC

CB

UTS

BE
EC

H 
LA

NE

C
ottage

N
orth Black Box

27a BEECH GROVE

Beech Lane

29

17

1

BEECH LANE

27b

8

31

House

15

27

10

2
18

8a
8b

8

Court
Lawdon

51

4

KENSINGTON COURT

19

63

Pembroke

2

1 to 4

House

4

39

14

15

2

15

1 to 3

11

22

1

1

7

ST JAMES' DRIVE

6

6

20

5

Play Area

1 to 8

2630

AL
M

A 
LA

NE

Ambulance Station

9

28

Fire Station

15

32

ALTRINCHAM ROAD

32

14
20

3

34

2

11

2
1

THE PARK

TCB

4

3

16

Little Lindow

HA
W

TH
O

RN
 S

TR
EE

T

15c

11

71

15b

106

23

4

15d

35

16

86
84

51

Hawthorn Square

2

1

98

57
67

18

98
A

88

15a

Aerial View (NTS)

Dixon
Architecture

www.dixonarchitecture.co.uk
Tel: 0333 123 5115 ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE, WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY.

REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT AT ONCE BEFORE PROCEEDING

1:500@A1
PD

22.06.2022
.

Retirement Living Apartments
Beech Lane
Wilmslow

Site Location Plan

NO-2859-3-AC-0001   -

© McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited
All rights reserved.  The reproduction of all or any part of this

drawing/document and/or construction of any building or part of a building
or structure to which this drawing/document relates without the written

permission of the copyright owner is prohibited.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE, WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY.
REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT AT ONCE BEFORE PROCEEDING

-- - -

Site Location 1:500

0 10 20 10050

P
age 68

AutoCAD SHX Text
384100E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
384150E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
384200E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
381000N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
381000N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
381050N

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Rev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Scale   

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Project Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Division

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Project No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Stage

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Discipline

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Note.



FALL

C6

Play Area

4

4
2

Ambulance Station

BE
EC

H 
LA

NE

Drop Kerb

Cycle Store

Bin Store

Drop Kerb

8

9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
2 3

4 5 6

7SE
AT

IN
G

AR
EA

34
35

36
37

38

39

1:108.7

TK

FFL77.950

1:108.7

1
:
4
0

1:97.5

1
:
8
8

1:
43

1
:
2
5

EXFL77.610

10m CREST CURVE

125mm KERB CHECK

FFL77.950

F
F
L

7
7
.
9
5
0

TK

DC

TK

DC

DC

DC

DC

1
:
4
0

1
:
4
0

1
:
6
6

FFL77.350

10m SAG CURVE

1
:
4
0

TK

DC TK

1:33.9

1
:
4
0

1
:
4
0

10m SAG CURVE

1
:
2
0 DC

B
W
K
7
5
-
1
5
0

BWK225-75R
W
3
7
5

RW375

FFL77.950

F
F
L

7
7
.
9
5
0

1:97.5

1:150

1:
57

1
:
2
1

1
:
2
7

1
:
2
0

1
:
2
0

1:143
1:97.5

1:143

1:143

1
:
2
0

RW675

RW500

RW225

RW225

10m CREST CURVE

1:33.9

1:33.9

RW375

1
:
2
0

1
:
2
0

RW225

RW525

1:30

1:30

1
:
4
0

1:40

1
:
4
0

1
:
1
5
0

1
:
1
5
0

1:150

10m CREST CURVE

1
:
1
2
2

1
:
8
6

1
:
1
5
0

B
W
K
1
5
0
-
7
5

1
:
2
0

BWK225

B
W
K
7
5
-
2
2
5R
W
3
7
5

RW225-375

RW375

FALL

C6

Play Area

4
2

Ambulance Station

BE
EC

H 
LA

NE

Drop Kerb

Cycle Store

Bin Store

Drop Kerb

8

9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
2

3
4 5 6

7SE
AT

IN
G

AR
EA

34
35

36
37

38

39

1
:
1
5
0

TK

TK
DC

TK

TK

A 28-07-2022 DMSIssued for review.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE, WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY.
REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT AT ONCE BEFORE PROCEEDING

.

© McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited
All rights reserved.  The reproduction of all or any part of this

drawing/document and/or construction of any building or part of a building
or structure to which this drawing/document relates without the written

permission of the copyright owner is prohibited.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE, WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY.
REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT AT ONCE BEFORE PROCEEDING

SITE LAYOUT: SCALE 1:200
Post Code: SK9 5HQ
Easting:      384185
Northing:    381041

PLAN LAYOUT: SCALE 1:1250
Post Code: SK9 5HQ
Easting:      384185
Northing:    381041

28 July 2022

Proposed External Levels
                Layout

Wilmslow Police Station
Hawthorn Street
Wilmslow
Cheshire
SK9 5HQ

McC&S-HS-W-DEV-100-001          E

DMS

1:200@A1

B 20-07-2023 DMSVarious level amendments due to revised
site layout.

HATCHED AREA DENOTES EXTENT OF EXSTING
PUBLIC FOOTPATH TO BE REPLACED, REL-ALIGNED
& RE-LAID TO LEVELS TO SUIT BOTH EXISTING
PUBLIC FOOTPATH AND TACTILE PAVING, ALONG
WTH THE PRIVATE FOOTPATH FROM THE
DEVELOPMENT UNDER THE ANTICIPATED SECTION
278 HIGHWAY WORKS WITH CHESHIRE EAST
COUNCIL HIGHWAYS.

ALL PROPOSED LEVELS IN THIS VACINITY HAVE
BEEN BASED ON EXISTING LEVELS TO THE
EXISTING SUB-STATION/DOORS AND BUILD
SURROUND. NO CHANGE TO THESE ARE TO BE
MADE WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT APPROVAL OF THE
DESIGN ENGINEER.

LATEST POLICE ESTATES SITE LAYOUT
AS OF 08 AUGUST 2024

KEY:

Proposed Level

Proposed Gradient

78.000

1:100

Proposed Finished Floor
Level - Apartments

Site Boundary 0.453Ha

Dropped Crossing

Taper Kerb

DC

TK

Additional Brickwork
and height

BWK75mm

59.000Existing Contours

Proposed Batter

ACO ChannelDrainage Channel

77.950
FFL

Retaining Wall above
ground level

RW600

C 04-09-2023 DMSVarious level amendments due to revised
site layout.

12-08-2024 DMSVarious level amendments due to revised
site layout.

D

20-09-2024 DMSVarious level amendments due to revised
site layout.

E

P
age 69

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
77.830

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
77.784

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
77.740

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
77.605

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
77.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
77.695

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
77.754

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
77.650

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
77.270

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
78.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
78.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
78.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
78.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
78.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
78.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
78.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
78.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
78.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
78.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
78.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
78.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
78.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
78.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
78.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
78.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
78.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
78.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
78.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
78.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
78.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
78.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
77.700

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
77.600

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
77.500

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
77.400

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
77.300

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
77.200

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
77.100

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
77.000

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
76.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
76.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
78.025

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
77.750

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
77.875

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
77.713

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
77.838

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
EX77.420

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
EX77.580

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
78.017

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
77.980

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
77.855

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
77.806

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
77.816

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
77.853

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
77.674

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
77.684

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
77.761

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
77.831

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
77.821

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
77.629

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
77.654

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
77.691

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
77.716

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
77.776

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
77.786

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
77.584

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
77.609

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
77.646

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
77.900

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
77.550

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
77.564

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
77.539

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
77.758

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
77.633

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
77.680

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
77.730

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
77.094

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
77.014

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
76.981

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
77.061

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
77.131

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
77.213

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
77.071

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
77.155

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
77.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
76.861

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
76.986

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
76.611

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
76.736

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
76.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
77.022

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
77.169

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
77.316

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
77.463

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
77.610

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
77.576

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
77.541

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
77.506

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
77.471

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
77.728

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
77.654

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
77.529

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
77.667

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
77.607

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
77.794

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
77.757

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
77.632

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
77.473

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
77.438

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
77.403

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
77.368

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
77.278

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
77.153

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
77.118

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
77.243

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
77.223

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
77.348

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
77.188

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
77.313

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
77.235

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
77.110

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
77.275

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
77.382

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
76.941

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
76.816

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
77.088

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
76.963

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
77.066

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
77.213

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
77.360

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
77.507

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
77.769

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
77.644

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
77.297

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
77.479

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
77.030

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
77.382

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
77.147

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
77.313

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
77.479

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
77.305

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
77.471

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
77.180

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
77.346

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
78.060

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
77.875

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
77.570

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
77.744

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
77.770

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
77.850

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
77.829

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
77.792

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
77.800

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
77.950

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
77.920

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
77.250

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
77.375

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
77.290

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
77.415

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
77.452

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
77.465

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
77.386

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
77.765

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
77.603

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
77.721

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
77.618

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
77.671

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
77.797

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
77.833

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
77.554

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
77.503

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
77.452

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
77.782

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
77.745

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
77.620

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
77.488

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
77.513

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
77.540

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
77.731

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
77.694

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
77.569

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
77.441

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
77.466

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
77.503

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
77.401

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
77.402

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
77.277

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
77.629

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
77.592

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
77.467

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
77.429

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
77.304

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
77.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
77.436

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
77.664

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
77.627

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
77.502

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
77.691

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
77.572

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
77.849

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
77.539

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
77.620

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
77.554

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
77.642

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
77.767

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
77.811

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
77.686

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
77.619

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
77.587

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
77.669

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
77.794

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
77.554

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
77.388

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
77.056

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
77.222

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
76.920

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
77.120

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
76.995

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
77.512

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
77.637

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
76.847

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
76.972

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
77.141

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
77.016

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
77.070

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
77.195

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
77.045

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
77.680

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
77.643

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
77.518

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
77.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
77.848

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
77.333

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
77.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
77.820

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
77.695

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
77.780

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
77.820

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
76.936

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
77.139

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
76.969

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
77.790

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
77.665

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
77.088

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
77.030

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
77.580

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
76.919

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
77.450

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
77.110

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
77.235

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
77.360

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
77.485

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
77.350

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Rev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
Scale   

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
Project Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
Division

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
Project No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Stage

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
Discipline

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
REVISIONS



UP

FALL

C6

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

C10

C9

2

Ambulance Station

8

9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
2

3
4 5

6

7

1

10

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

34
35

36
37

38

39 UP

FALL

C6

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

C10

C9

Drop Kerb

Cycle Store

Bin Store

Drop Kerb

8

9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
2

3
4 5

6

7SE
AT

IN
G

AR
EA

1

10

37

35

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

34
35

36
37

38

39

Landscaping by others

10nr EjWS

10nr BcgS

7nr Pot fG

1nr PYW

1nr PYW
1nr PYW

1nr ThjAN

1nr PcC

16nr Pot fG

11nr BcgS
9nr FMP

15nr Sh

14nr SjR

16nr PjLH

1nr HpL

1nr HpL

1nr HpL

1nr HpL1nr HpL

1nr HpL

1nr HpL

8nr CoSa

12nr CoSa

19nr HmBW

10nr HmBW

7nr RB

16nr RB

13nr FMP

15nr FMP

14nr RoMJ

17nr Sh

7nr Sh

14nr HKLP

17nr HKLP

13nr HmBW
15nr Pot fG

1nr Liq sty

1nr Liq sty

1nr Liq sty

19nr Prns ls

112nr Prns ls

Native Hedgerow Mix A
68nr Acr cm
338nr Crtg mn
68nr Cryls av
68nr Il aq
135nr Prns sp

1nr HpL

16nr FMP

18nr HaRE

3nr HaRE

10nr HaRE

11nr CmID

17nr CmID

9nr CmID

10nr Sh

20nr HmBW

140nr Prns ls

296nr Prns ls

75nr EjJH

103nr EjJH

TPM Native Shrub Mix A
61nr Crtg mn
61nr Il aq
61nr Prns sp
61nr Rs cn
61nr Vb op

3nr PaP

5nr CmID

11nr Sk KG

4nr LaH

10nr LaH

8nr LaH

5nr LaH

6nr LaH

6nr LaH

9nr RoMJ

7nr RoMJ

10nr RoMJ

8nr FMP

9nr HaRE

5nr HaRE

4nr HaRE

7nr HaRE

6nr HaRE

5nr EjWS

6nr EjWS

10nr Hb AG

8nr HKLP

5nr Hb AG

8nr Hb AG

7nr Hb AG

9nr SjR

9nr SjR

9nr SjR

6nr Sh

7nr Sh

7nr Sh
7nr SjR

7nr PjD

7nr PjD

5nr PjD

10nr PjD

6nr Sk KG

8nr Sk KG

7nr Sk KG

8nr Sk KG

10nr Sk KG

8nr Sk KG

7nr EjWS

6nr Ct

10nr BcgS

7nr BcgS

4nr GJB

8nr Sk KG
7nr BtAN

4nr BtAN

6nr Pot fG

7nr Pot fG
7nr Hb AG

6nr Sk KG

7nr Sk KG

8nr HaRE

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

5nr BcgS

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr PYW

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

1nr PYW

1nr HpL

1nr HpL

1nr ThjAN

1nr ThjAN

6nr GJB

1nr Bp

2nr Sa (18-20)

1nr Tl cr

1nr Cb

2nr Ctlp N

2nr Ctlp N

1nr Mg S

1nr Mg S

1nr Mg S

1nr Mg S

1nr Mg S

17nr CmID

21nr CmID

19nr Brgn cr

20nr Brgn cr

20nr Brgn cr

21nr Brgn cr

23nr CmID

21nr CmID

16nr CmID

19nr Clln vl

19nr Clln vl

21nr Clln vl

22nr Clln vl

20nr Hll or WL

19nr Hll or WL

19nr Hll or WL

20nr Hll or WL

9nr PjD

8nr Sh

9nr CoSa

6nr CoSa
9nr BtAN

6nr BcgS

8nr Sh

1nr PYW
1nr PYW

2nr Mg S

1nr Mg S

110nr Nrc IF

127nr Nrc IF

119nr Nrc IF

51nr EjJH
3nr LJH

3nr LJH

1nr Mg S

6nr Ct

17nr Prns ls

1nr Mg S

53nr Nrc IF

92nr Nrc IF

Existing Trees and Hedges to be Retained
Trees to be retained and protected in line with
BS5837:2012. Please refer to Arboricultural Survey for
more information.

SOFT LANDSCAPE

Existing Trees and Hedges to be Removed
To avoid disturbance to breeding birds, any
woody vegetation will be removed prior to the
bird-breeding season (March to August inclusive). If this is
not possible, the site will be checked prior to removal or
other ground works that may disturb breeding species (e.g.
dunnocks in hedgerows) by an experienced ecologist. If
active nests are found, areas will be left untouched and
suitably buffered from works until all birds have fledged.
Specific advice will be provided prior to undertaking the
clearance.

Proposed Pergola with Living Roof

Proposed Large Trees
To be 18-20cm girth, Advanced Nursery Stock, 4-5m high
trees set in soft landscaping

Proposed Replacement Tree
To be 20-25cm girth, Semi-Mature, 4-5m high replacement
Birch trees to mitigate for the loss of the two trees near the
development entrance

Proposed small ornamental tree
Large shrub/ small trees, multi-stems in 75L containers with
minimum 3 leaders.

Proposed Ornamental Planting
Proposed shrubs and flowering herbaceous to be planted as
3-5L pots at 3-5 per sq.m. and enhanced by feature
specimens in 10-20L pots. Planting beds to receive 75mm
depth ornamental bark mulch.

Proposed Native Low Shrub Mix
Bare root stock, 60-80cm, planted at 2m2, in groups of 3-5.
Plants to be protected with spiral guards where necessary.

Proposed Grass
To be turf.

Proposed Woodland Bulbs
To provide seasonal interest.

Proposed Native Hedgerow
Native hedgerows to be planted as bare root or 3L
containers in a double staggered row.

Proposed  Evergreen Hedge
Evergreen hedge, 100-120cm high, to be
planted in 10L containers at 3nr plants per lin.m.

Proposed  Evergreen Low Hedge
Evergreen hedge, 0.5m high, to be
planted in 10L containers at 3nr plants per lin.m.

Planting Schedule (Individual)

Climber

Nr Code Plant Name Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

6 LJH Lonicera japonica 'Halliana' 80-100cm C 5L Several shoots

Hedge

Nr Code Plant Name Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

229 EjJH Euonymus japonicus 'Jean Hughes' 60-80cm 2x C 5-7.5L 3.00

584 Prns ls Prunus lusitanica 80-100cm C 10-15L Bushy 3.00

Herbaceous

Nr Code Plant Name Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

80 Brgn cr Bergenia cordifolia 20-25cm C 4L 4.00

140 CmID Carex morrowii 'Ice Dance' 25-30cm C 3L 4.00

10 GJB Geranium 'Johnson's Blue' 30-40cm C 3L 4.00

78 Hll or WL Helleborus orientalis 'White Lady' 25-30cm C 4L 4.00

501 Nrc IF Narcissus 'Ice Follies' 10-15cm Bulb 11.00

Shrub

Nr Code Plant Name Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

49 BcgS Brachyglottis 'Sunshine' 40-60cm C 3L Branched 4.00

20 BtAN Berberis thunbergii 'Atropurpurea Nana' 30-40cm C 3L 4.00

81 Clln vl Calluna vulgaris 30-40cm C 3L 4.00

35 CoSa Cornus sanguinea 40-60cm C 3L Branched 3.00

12 Ct Choisya ternata 40-60cm C 3L Bushy 3.00

28 EjWS Euonymus japonicus 'White Spire' 30-40cm 1/1 C 3L 4.00

61 FMP Fuchsia 'Mrs Popple' 30-40cm C 3L Bushy 4.00

70 HaRE Hebe albicans 'Red Edge' 30-40cm C 3L 4.00

37 Hb AG Hebe 'Autumn Glory' 30-40cm C 3L 4.00

39 HKLP Heuchera 'Key Lime Pie' 15-20cm C 1L Bushy 4.00

62 HmBW Hydrangea macrophylla 'Blue Wave' 30-40cm C 3L 4.00

10 HpL Hydrangea panicula  'Limelight' 60-80cm C 10-15L

39 LaH Lavandula angustifolia 'Hidcote' 30-40cm C 3L Bushy 4.00

38 PjD Pieris japonica 'Debutante' 30-40cm C 3L Bushy 4.00

16 PjLH Pieris japonica 'Little Heath' 20-25cm C 5L Bushy 4.00

51 Pot fG Potentilla fruticosa 'Goldfinger' 30-40cm(D) C 5L Bushy 4.00

16 PYW Phormium 'Yellow Wave' 60-80cm C 10L

23 RB Rosa 'Bonica' 40-60cm C 3L Bushy 3.00

40 RoMJ Rosmarinus officinalis 'Miss Jessopp's
Upright' 30-40cm C 3L Bushy 4.00

85 Sh Sarcococca humilis 20-25cm C 5L 4.00

48 SjR Skimmia japonica 'Rubella' 30-40cm C 3L Bushy 4.00

79 Sk KG Skimmia confusa 'Kew Green' 30-40cm C 3L Bushy 4.00

15 ThjAN Thuja orientalis 'Aurea Nana' 60-80cm 1/2 C 20L Transplant

Tree

Tree

Nr Code Plant Name Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

1 Bp Betula pendula min 600cm 20-25cm 4x RB
Standard
(Semi-mature)

1 Cb Carpinus betulus 450-500cm 18-20cm 3x RB Advanced Nursery
Stock

4 Ctlp N Catalpa bignonioides 'Nana' 300-350cm 10-12cm 2x RB Selected Standard

3 Liq sty Liquidambar styraciflua (40-45cm) 400-500cm 18-20cm 2x RB Advanced Nursery
Stock

10 Mg S Magnolia 'Susan' 250-300cm 10-12cm RB Selected Standard

3 PaP Prunus avium 'Plena' 450-500cm 18-20cm 3x RB Advanced Nursery
Stock

1 PcC Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer' 450-500cm 18-20cm 3x RB Advanced Nursery
Stock

2 Sa (18-20) Sorbus aucuparia 450-500cm 18-20cm 3x RB Advanced Nursery
Stock

1 Tl cr Tilia cordata 450-500cm 18-20cm RB Advanced Nursery
Stock

Planting Schedule (Mix)

Native Hedgerow Mix A

Nr Code Plant Name Mix% Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

68 Acr cm Acer campestre 10.00 % 300-350cm 12-14cm 1/1 B Transplant 3.00

338 Crtg mn Crataegus monogyna 50.00 % 40-60cm 1/0 B Seedling 3.00

68 Cryls av Corylus avellana 10.00 % 60-80cm C 3L Branched 3.00

68 Il aq Ilex aquifolium 10.00 % 60-80cm C 4L Leader/Laterals 3.00

135 Prns sp Prunus spinosa 20.00 % 60-80cm 1/1 B Branched 3.00

TPM Native Shrub Mix A

Nr Code Plant Name Mix% Height/Spread/Grade Girth Age Root Container Habit Form Density/m2

61 Crtg mn Crataegus monogyna 20.00 % 40-60cm 1/0 B Seedling 2.00

61 Il aq Ilex aquifolium 20.00 % 60-80cm C 3L Leader with
laterals 2.00

61 Prns sp Prunus spinosa 20.00 % 60-80cm 1/1 B Branched 2.00

61 Rs cn Rosa canina 20.00 % 40-60cm B 2.00

61 Vb op Viburnum opulus 20.00 % 60-80cm 1/1 B Branched 2.00

Planted in
double
staggered
row at
40cm
apart

Scale @ A1

Status

Description

Drawing number

Drawn Checked

Client

Project

4296

1:200

For Approval

TS CW

Planting Plan

McCarthy and Stone

address: 4th Floor Studio 10 Little Lever St Manchester M1 1HR
tel: 0161 235 0600   fax 0601    email info@tpmlandscape.co.uk

chartered landscape architects

Date

05.01.23
Job number

N

LEGEND

Rev

A EO 04/09/23Updated in line with landscape layout

By Description Date

REVISION  NOTES

GENERAL  NOTES

1. This drawing is the copyright of TPM Landscape Ltd and cannot be reproduced in any
form without the consent of the company.

2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with detail landscape drawings, details and
specification.

3. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant Architects', Engineer's,
Specialists, Bills of Quantities and Specifications.

4. The insertion of any firm or proprietary brand on this drawing is an indication of the
class or quality required and does not exclude the use of alternative materials that are
equal in performance, quality and appearance, provided that they have been
approved in writing by the Landscape Architect.

5. The Contractor is responsible for accurately ascertaining the position of underground
services and responding to all relevant service easement requirements.

6. All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise, for the purposes of
construction this drawing must not be scaled and only written dimensions used.
Written and scaled dimensions to be checked on site, any discrepancies reported
prior to work commencing. IF IN DOUBT PLEASE ASK.

7. All work and materials are to be in accordance with the relevant British Standards and
Code of Practice.

8. All Proprietary products are to be used strictly in accordance with the manufacturer's
instructions and details.

Retirement Living Apartment, Wilmslow

NOTES ON PLANTING  

1. Topsoil / Subsoil: Topsoil shall be spread to min 450mm depth
over planting beds and 150mm depth over turf areas and graded
to fall. Topsoil should be in accordance with BS3882:2015 and
where subsoil is required, to be in line with BS8601:2013. It is
recommended that samples are tested with Certification and
Analysis Reports with a concise analysis. To be provided to the
landscape Architect / Client for approval. If the soil doesn't meet
the BS standard specialist advise should be received to see if the
soil can be improved.

2. Herbicide and Cultivation: Topsoil to be treated with an
application of herbicide prior to planting, where necessary,
strictly in accordance with the Control of Pesticides Regulations
1986 (or otherwise updated / superceded legislation), and
following manufacturers instructions and undertaken by
qualified staff. The topsoil shall then be cultivated to 150mm
depth)
  
3. Container Grown Shrubs, Transplants and Whips: Shrubs and
transplants shall comply with the National Plant Specification.
Shrubs shall be planted in pits 300 x 300 x 200mm depth, and the
backfill shall include 3 litres Peat Free Tree and Shrub Compost.
Specimen plants to be planted in a pit 400 x 400 x250mm depth
with 5 litres Tree and Shrub Compost. BR whips should be notch
planted as required and healed into position. All whips to be
protected by a spiral bound shrub guard secured into place with
a timber cane. When in public locations it may be necessary to
have caps to the canes. Native Hedgerow planting to be planted
in a double staggered row at 400mm centres.  

4. Herbicide: Spot treat with herbicide throughout the
maintenance period in accordance with the manufacturer's
instructions.  

5. Bark Mulch: All Ornamental Planting beds to receive 75mm
depth pulverised ornamental bark mulch.  

6. Position of Plants: Final position of trees and shrubs subject to
confirmation of service location and approval of statutory
undertakers.  

7. On excavation of the tree pit a bucket test should be
undertaken to review the water infiltration. Certain species of
trees will decline if the ground drainage is poor. Monitor the
water egress. If water sits for long periods or doesn't drain the
pit may require further works to break up the ground. A clean

stone drainage layer may assist to ensure that the root ball isn't
sat within standing water.

TREES - STANDARDS Tree pits for heavy standards and standards
to be 600x600x600mm backfilled with sub soil and 300mm
topsoil. Stakes to be 65mm diameter treated softwood driven
firmly into the ground. Stakes to be 600mm above ground level
and fixed to tree with suitable rubber tree tie.

8. Watering: Plant only into moist soil and water thoroughly to
the full depth of soil immediately after planting. Water regularly
through the establishment period (minimum 3 months) to
prevent dehydration. The trees should be watered through the
irrigation pipe to ensure that the water gets down to
the rootball. These trees should be watered regularly throughout
spring-summer during the first 2 years to ensure that the tree
root system establish well.  
  
9. Grass Seeding: Sow late summer to mid autumn. Prepare
ground by removing any existing vegetation, large stones and
roughly levelling. An application of non-residual systemic
glyphosate containing weedkiller may be required. Grass seed
should be spread at 50g per metre squared
After sowing, lightly rake over area and water. 

10. Turf: Complete ground preparations before turf is delivered
to site to avoid turf drying out. Turf should be laid immediately
on delivery. Remove all existing vegetation from area to be
turfed and spread 150mm depth of top soil. Dig over or rotavate
soil before laying turf if soil is compacted. Rake, lightly compact,
and water soil. Stagger the joins when laying the turf. Water turf
after laying and every day for the next 2-3 days, especially in
periods of low rainfall. 
 
12. Soil compaction is likely to have occurred during construction
on site. A site inspection should be carried out by a landscape
professional to assess the level of soil compaction, including
drainage testing to see if the ground is likely to become
waterlogged. If the ground is deemed to be too compacted for
plant growth and to drain adequately then remediation works
should be carried out. This could include rotavation of the soil
using a push along rotavator and/or ground being broken up
with spades or small machinery. A second site inspection should
then take place to ensure that the soil is fit for purpose. 

13. Tree species selected subject to soil conditions and NHBC
guidance. Root barriers may be required subject to findings from
soil analysis and engineer's details.

NW_2859_03_LA_4296_201
Rev

E

B TS 22/07/24Revised in line with landscape layout
C TS 24/07/24Updated in line with landscape layout
D EO 09/09/24Updated in line with landscape layout
E EO 11/09/24Updated in line with landscape layout

P
age 70



UP

FALL

C6

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

C10

C9

1

10

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

34
35

36
37

38

39

BRICK WALL

GRASS

PA
VI

O
R

S

PAVIORS

BW

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

BRICK WALL

BW

BW

BW

BW

I\R
I\R

I\R

BRICK WALL

CW

BW

C\
B

GRASS

GRASS

CONC

CONC

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

BW

BW

BRICK WALL

C
\B

PAVIORS
GRASS

PAVIORS

PAVING

BRICK WALL

C
\B

CW

BW

check wall

check wall

check wall

78
.0

7
78

.0
7

78
.1

3

G

BT
LP

78
.5

2

78
.5

6
78

.5
7

78
.33

78
.29

78.25

78.44
78

.48

78
.52

78
.6

7

78
.5

6

78.36

78.10

78.01

78.06

77.9077.93

77.74

77.70

77.83

77.88

77.94

78.08

78.30

78.67

78
.6

8

78
.62

78
.53

78
.48

78
.41

78.38
78.30

78.22 78.33

78
.36

78
.38

78
.43

78
.42

78
.5

3

78.40

78.11

77
.7

8

DR

FL77.83

77.68

77
.6

7

77
.6

9

77.68

77.65

77
.6

9

77.68

77
.7

0

77.72

77.95

78.29

77.86

78.35

78.28

78.28

78.13

78.10

PT

IC
CL78.01

78
.29

78
.21

77.91

77.89

77.85

77.80

77.75
77.74

77.71

77
.5

2
77

.7
0

77.78

78.24 78.28

78.30

78
.51

78
.56

BOL

BOL

BOL 78
.38

78
.29

78.54

78.4578
.4

5

IC
CL78.32

WST

WST

FH

MH
CL77.70

MH
CL77.71

IC
CL78.53

DR

DR
FL77.82

DR

78.23

77.76

NP
PT

78.01
FL77.86

78
.71

78
.61

78
.49

78
.40

78
.31

78
.30

77.98
77.9177.90

78.00 77.90 78.09

77.82

77
.5

8
77

.6
3

77.75
77.85

77
.6

6
77

.6
8

77
.6

2

77
.7

4

77.73

77.70
77.67

77
.6

2

77.54

77.46

77.43

78
.18

78.21

78.19

PT

LP

77.76

MH
CL77.72

77
.5

1

77.61
77.66 77.66

77
.5

8

77.42 DR

DR

77.44

77.29

77.27

FL77.61

77.58
77.5677.65 77.67

77.61
77.60

77
.6

0

77
.5

3

77.52
77.49

77.48

DR

77.58

77.50

77.63

77
.6

5

77
.6

9

77.69

77.67 DR

PTPT

77
.5

8

77.58
77.56

77.60 77
.5

9

77
.5

2

77.47

BOL
BOL

BOL
BOL

BOL

IC
CL77.65

PT

DR

77.57

77.68

77.50

77.59

77.76

DR77.45

77.42
77.55

77.55

MH

MH

CL77.43

CL77.44

DR

FL77.82
FL77.90

77.60

77.52
77.62

77.68
77.57

77.50

77.56

77.51

77
.4

8

77
.3

7

LPDR 77.56

77.51

77
.4

8

77.34
77.31

76.69

76.7576.86

76.82

77.41 77.49

77
.5

8

77.61
77.65

77.43

FL77.38

FL77.56

DR

DR

DR

77.55

77.64

DR

FL77.57

FL77.70

FL77.85
77.71

DR

DR

DR
DR MH

CL77.63

77.65

77.27

77.00

76.96

76.75

76.77

76.81

76.81

76.81

76.75

76.97

77.20

77.25

77.34

77.47

77.57

77.20

MH
CL77.33

DR

DR

DR

DR

FL77.76

FL77.75

77.44

77
.7

3

77
.4

7

77
.4

4
77

.5
1CB

77.46
77.45

77.41 77.69

77
.4

8

77
.4

5

77.24

77.35

77.43

77.47

77
.4

7

LP DR

MH

MH

MH

MH

CL76.71

CL76.72

CL76.72

CL76.71

DR

G
76.74

MH
CL76.81

IC
CL76.76

LP

G

G

76.98

76.93

77.24

77.25

77.00

77.15

77.16

76.93

77.34

77.34

77.11

77.24

77.25

77.07

76.92

76.90

76.77

76.77

77.01

76.88

76.88
77.00

76.76

76
.8

2
76

.8
1

76.81

76.83

76
.8

6

76
.8

4

76
.8

7

76.87

76.79

76
.7

8

77
.1

5

77.28

DR

LP

PT

PT

PT

77
.3

6

77
.2

8

77.37

77.44

77.48

76
.9

8

76.99

76.95

76.92

76
.9

2
76

.9
1

76
.7

6

76
.7

6

76
.7

7

76
.7

7

76.75

76
.8

0

76.81

76.75

76.76

76.80

76
.8

0

76.77

76
.7

7

G

G

G

76.76

76.79

76.80

LP

77.15

76.89

76.78

76.78

76.78

76.78

76.90

77.16

77.25

77.00

76.87

76.89
76.89

76.87

77.01

77.25

77.1677
.1

4

77
.1

4

77.42 FL77.44MH
CL77.43

77.42

77.21
77.05

76.74

77.41

77.20

77
.2

0

77
.1

7
77

.1
7

77
.1

8
77

.1
9

77
.1

9

77
.2

0

77.27

77.73

77.73 77.74 77.72

77.70

77.71

77.71

77
.7

1

77.69

77.71

77.70

77
.7

1

77
.7

1

77.70

77.7277
.7

1

77
.7

0
77

.6
9

77.69

77
.7

0

77.71

77
.7

1

77
.7

177.70

77.68

77
.6

5

77
.6

4

77.71

77.68

77.71

77.64

77.57

77
.5

7

77
.4

9

77.38

77.43

77.70

77.49

DR

FL77.19

DR

FL77.23

OP
0.0Ø

OP
0.0Ø

IL77.18

IL77.12
ER

IC
CL77.08

77.43

MH
CL77.19

7.000OFFSET

BEARING

7.000OFFSET

BEARING

Z

Z

Z

Z

77.67

77
.7

5

77.67

77.68

77.69

77.36

77
.2

2

77.34

77.34

77
.3

1

FL77.26

77.67

77.68

77.68

77.70

DR

DR

DR

DR

CB
CB

CBCB
CBCBCB

MH
CL77.72

IC

IC

CL77.74

CL77.73

MH
CL77.73

77.80

77.77

77.69

77.72

77.65

77.68

77.6977
.5

6

LP

CB

CB

FL77.83
DR

DR

DR

IC

IC

IC

IC

CL77.72

CL77.71

CL77.72

CL77.73

MH
CL77.69

77.72

CB

IC
CL77.71

CB

77
.6

9

77.70DR

KM1

KM2

KM3

KM4

KM4A

KM4B

KM5

KM6

KM7

KM7A

IL76.72

IL75.88

SUMP74.97

SUMP74.88

SUMP74.87

IL76.78

IL76.13

IL76.50

IL76.93

IL75.83

IL76.76

IL61.26

IL76.70
IL76.65

IL76.52

IL76.82 IL76.51

IL76.43

IL76.32

23

22
21

20
19

18 17 16
15 14

13 12
11

10

9
8

7

6
5

4

32

1

Barrier erected after demolition
to protect root protection area

Ground protection laid
to permit demolition

Rev Description Date

0 Preliminary issue 19.12.22

1. This tree survey information has been prepared for planning purposes
only. Additional detail will be needed for foundation design.

2. The original of this drawing was produced in colour - a monochrome
copy should not be relied upon.

3. Scale for planning purposes only.
4. All dimensions to be checked on site.
5. The copyright of this document resides with Keen Consultants unless

assigned in writing by the company.
6. Details shown on this drawing are devised with reference to

BS5837:2012:Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction -
Recommendations.

7. Check if Tree Preservation Order or Conservation Area protection
applies to trees before undertaking tree works.

8. Utility Survey based on Survey Operations drawing number
21L044/001.

9. Where trees were not identified on the topographical survey they
have been plotted by eye.

10.Proposed Site Plan based on AEW Drawing No. NO-2859-3-AC-0505
Rev P09.

5m 10m 20m0

NOTES

KEY

KEY TO TREE SCHEDULE
Column Heading      Explanation
Tree No.      Unique number corresponding with number on plan
Species      English names
Ht (m)      Height in metres
Branch Spread      Crown radius in metres to cardinal points of the compass
Stem Dia      All measurements conform to Annex C of BS 5837:2012

     Single stem - Stem diameter in centimetres measured at
     1.5m above ground level.
     Multi-stemmed tree with 2 to 5 stems - Diameter of each
     stem
     Multi-stemmed tree with more than 5 stems - Average 
     stem diameter and number of stems

Height of crown clearance      Height in metres between the ground and underside of
      canopy

Height of first major      Height from ground level to base of first major 
branch and direction      branch and the approximate direction of growth
of growth
Abbreviations as suffix to       Suffix 'e' denotes an estimated dimension
a dimension      Suffix 'av' denotes an average dimension
Age Class      Age Class definitions:      

       Y = Young  S = Semi-mature E = Early mature
       M = Mature O = Over mature

Category grading and      Summary of BS 5837: 2012 categorisation:
Estimated remaining
Contribution (yrs)      1. Trees unsuitable for retention:

U = those in such a condition that they cannot 
realistically be retained as living trees in the context of
the current land use for longer that 10 years

     2. Trees to be considered for retention:
A1, 2 or 3 = trees of high quality (substantial 
contribution >40 yrs)
B1, 2 or 3 = trees of moderate quality (significant 
contribution >20 yrs)
C1, 2 or 3 = trees of low quality (but adequate, ie >10
yrs or young trees - until new planting can be 
established)

Estimated remaining      Note: Useful estimated remaining contribution of the tree
contribution      or tree group based on figures stated in  BS5837:2012
Condition      Brief description including physiological and structural 

     defects
Tree Works      Works required to be undertaken to the trees to facilitate

     the construction of remediate a defect encountered 
     during the survey

Root Protection Radius      Radius of minimum root protection area in metres 
     calculated from section 4.6 and Annex D of BS5837:2012

Root Protection Area      Total area of minimum root protection area extrapolated
     from root protection radius

NORTH

Client

Project

Title

Drawing Number

Drawn by Checked by

LAND AT WILMSLOW POLICE STATION,
BEECH LANE, WILMSLOW

McCARTHY STONE

Date Scale
DEC 2022 1:250@A1

ML JTK

1999-KC-XX-YTREE-TPP01RevG

TREE PROTECTION PLAN

Figure 1: Example of a protective barrier

c Keen Consultants

1

2

3

4

5

1. Steel mesh panel
2. Connectors fitted to secure panels
3. Diagonal strut
4. Block feet to avoid driven scaffold poles
5. Block tray weighted with blocks

Section of ground protection detail

Plan  of ground protection detail

Figure 2: Typical ground protection detail

c Keen Consultants

1. Existing ground
2. Geotextile membrane eg. Terram 1000 or similar
3. Compression-resistant layer

     (e.g.100mm depth of woodchip)
4. Robust sheets (timber, steel, recycled plastic)

overlying Terram 1000 or similar
5. Where wider than one sheet stagger joints

5
4 4

444

1

2 34

The Studio, Timbers,
Gables Road, Church Crookham

Fleet, Hampshire
GU52 6QY

T 01252 850096
mail@keenconsultants.co.uk

keenconsultants.co.uk

Keen Consultants is a trading name of Keen (Europe) Limited. Registered No.: 12641584
Registered office: 4 Sudley Road, Bognor Regis, West Sussex, PO21 1EU

Existing site features

Proposed structures

Trees for removal

2.0m high barrier as detail in Figure 1

Area of ground protection as detail in Figure 2

(Red-coloured dash line indicates extent of canopy)

Trees retained
(Green-coloured line indicates extent of canopy)

overlay
A Tree survey updated & latest layout 07.02.23
B Latest layout overlay 20.07.23
C Tree 7 retained 16.08.23
D Latest layout overlay 06.09.23
E Latest layout overlay 22.07.24
F Latest layout overlay 12.09.24
G Tree 7 shown for removal 20.09.24

P
age 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
384100E

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
384150E

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
384200E

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
381000N

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
381000N

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
381050N

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
381050N



Growing Area

Shade tolerant
wildlife garden

Feature pergola
with green roof

Timber pergola
walkway with climbers

1nr replacement trees to be
mitigate for the loss of the
two Birch trees on the access
to the development

Proposed native hedgerow to
define the boundaries of the
residents garden

Care to be taken when installing stepping
stones in root zones. Mechanical diggers must
not be used for excavations in these areas

No-dig construction for
footpath over root zones with
permeable surface finish

Residents
PatioUP

FALL

C6

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

C10

C9

Play Area

2

Ambulance Station

8

9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
2

3
4 5 6

7

1

10

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

34
35

36
37

38

39
Timber pergola
walkway with climbers

Police station
entrance

Boundary fence behind the
red line with gravel infill

Landscaping by others

Proposed Parking Bays
To be surfaced in a bitmac surface with white lining to
delineate bays

Proposed Black Bitmac surface
(Road and pedestrian walkway)
To engineers specification)

Proposed Block Paving (Circulation Paths)
Product: Omega Driveway Block Paving
OM50
Plan Size:200 x 100 x 50mm
Colour: Brindle
Laying Bond: Running Bond
Supplier: Brett Landscaping and Building
Products

Proposed Self Binding Gravel
Colour: Buff

Proposed Large Trees
To be 18-20cm girth, Advanced
Nursery Stock, 4-5m high trees set in
soft landscaping

Proposed Ornamental Planting
Proposed shrubs and flowering herbaceous to be
planted as 3-5L pots at 3-5 per sq.m. and enhanced by
feature specimens in 10-20L pots. Planting beds to
receive 75mm depth ornamental bark mulch.

Existing Trees and Hedges to be Retained
Trees to be retained and protected in line with
BS5837:2012. Please refer to Arboricultural Survey for
more information.

SOFT LANDSCAPE

Existing Trees and Hedges to be Removed
To avoid disturbance to breeding birds, any
woody vegetation will be removed prior to the
bird-breeding season (March to August inclusive). If
this is not possible, the site will be checked prior to
removal or other ground works that may disturb
breeding species (e.g. dunnocks in hedgerows) by an
experienced ecologist. If active nests are found, areas
will be left untouched and suitably buffered from
works until all birds have fledged. Specific advice will
be provided prior to undertaking the clearance.

FEATURES
Proposed Table and Chair Set
Rattan Furniture.

Proposed Pergola with Living Roof

Proposed Timber Sleeper Planter
2.4m long, 1.075m wide, 0.675 high.
Specified by others. Planted by residents.

Proposed Timber Bench
With arm and back rest.Proposed  Evergreen Hedge

Evergreen hedge, 100-120cm high, to be
planted in 10L containers at 3nr plants per lin.m.

Proposed Replacement Tree
To be 20-25cm girth, Semi-Mature, 4-5m high
replacement Birch trees to mitigate for the loss of
the two trees near the development entrance

Proposed small ornamental tree
Large shrub/ small trees, multi-stems in 75L containers
with minimum 3 leaders.

Proposed Native Low Shrub Mix
Bare root stock, 60-80cm, planted at 2m2, in groups
of 3-5. Plants to be protected with spiral guards
where necessary.

Proposed Grass
To be turf.

Proposed Woodland Bulbs
To provide seasonal interest.

Proposed Native Hedgerow
Native hedgerows to be planted as bare root or 3L
containers in a double staggered row.

Proposed  Evergreen Low Hedge
Evergreen hedge, 0.5m high, to be
planted in 10L containers at 3nr plants per lin.m.

HARD LANDSCAPE

Proposed Pergola and Festoon Lighting
Timber pergola size - 2.35x2.35m. Pergola to
have climbers planted at the base.
Please refer to architect's drawing for details.

Proposed Flag Paving
Material: Broadway Economy Garden
Paving, BER03. Dimensions: 450 x 450 x
32mm
Colour: Buff
Supplier: Brett Landscaping and Building
Products

Proposed No-Dig Construction
Area of no-dig above root zone of existing
trees. Area to be surfaced with a
permeable block paving using a no dig
construction base

Proposed stepping stones
Footpath beneath existing trees. Stepping
stones incorporated to mimise impact on
existing tree roots
Proposed BBQ

Close boarded timber fence - 1.8m High
To Architects Details

BOUNDARY TREATMENTS

V Mesh Security Fence - 1.8m High
To Architects Details

Powder coated bow top metal railings - 1.8m
High
To Architects Details

Scale @ A1

Status

Description

Drawing number

Drawn Checked

Client

Project

4296

1:200

For Approval

AL

NO-2859-03-LA-4296-101

DC

Landscape Layout

McCarthy and Stone

address: 4th Floor Studio 10 Little Lever St Manchester M1 1HR
tel: 0161 235 0600   fax 0601    email info@tpmlandscape.co.uk

chartered landscape architects

Date

13.12.22
Job number

N

Rev By Description Date
REVISION  NOTESGENERAL  NOTES

1. This drawing is the copyright of TPM Landscape Ltd and
cannot be reproduced in any form without the consent of
the company.

2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with detail
landscape drawings, details and specification.

3. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant
Architects', Engineer's, Specialists, Bills of Quantities and
Specifications.

4. The insertion of any firm or proprietary brand on this
drawing is an indication of the class or quality required and
does not exclude the use of alternative materials that are
equal in performance, quality and appearance, provided
that they have been approved in writing by the Landscape
Architect.

5. The Contractor is responsible for accurately ascertaining the
position of underground services and responding to all
relevant service easement requirements.

6. All dimensions are in millimetres unless stated otherwise,
for the purposes of construction this drawing must not be
scaled and only written dimensions used. Written and scaled
dimensions to be checked on site, any discrepancies
reported prior to work commencing. IF IN DOUBT PLEASE
ASK.

7. All work and materials are to be in accordance with the
relevant British Standards and Code of Practice.

8. All Proprietary products are to be used strictly in accordance
with the manufacturer's instructions and details.

Retirement Living Apartment, Wilmslow

Rev

G

C TS 19.07.24Updated in line with revised layout
on 19-07-24

D TS 22.07.24Added BNG Calculation

E TS 24.07.24Updated in line with the latest layout on
24-07-24

F EO 09.09.24Updated in line with the latest layout on
09-09-24

G EO 11.09.24Minor amendments

P
age 72



1

10

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

General Notes:

McCarthy Stone Red Line Boundary

Existing building position - demolition

1:1250

1:100

1:200

1000 3000 5000

1:500 5 15 25

10 30 50 70

M

mm

mm

M

5000 8000

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

Scale Bars TO BE USED ONLY AS GUIDANCE

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
9

As indicated

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

Proposed Site Plan

For Information

Planning

N
O

-2
8
5

9
-3

-A
C

-0
5
0

5

JFS

BR

S2

22/07/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

02/04/2024

MCS

AEW Internal Ref Number: 13889

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 23/07/24 Initial Issue JFS BR

P02 24/07/24 Updated in line with MCS
comments

JFS BR

P03 06/08/24 Revised car parking layout JFS BR

P04 06/08/24 Revised car parking JFS BR

P05 06/08/24 Treescape revised JFS BR

P06 07/08/24 Access to neighbouring
development revised

JFS BR

P07 05/09/24 Site layout updated to suit
received MCS site plan
04.09.24

RB BR

P08 09/09/24 Red line boundary revised as
MCS request

JFS BR

P09 09/09/24 Red line boundary revised as
MCS request

JFS BR

N

P
age 73



BE
EC

H 
LA

NE

UP

FALL

C6

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

C10

C9

BE
EC

H 
LA

NE

Drop Kerb

Cycle Store

Bin Store

Drop Kerb

8

9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
2

3
4 5 6

7SE
AT

IN
G

AR
EA

1

10

37

35

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33

34
35

36
37

38

39

BRICK WALL

GRASS

PA
VI

O
R

S

PAVIORS

BW

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

BRICK WALL

BW

BW

BW

BW

I\R
I\R

I\R

BRICK WALL

CW

BW

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

C
O

N
C

 W
AL

L

C\
B

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

CONC

CONC

BR
IC

K 
W

AL
L

BW

BW

BRICK WALL

C
\B

PAVIORS
GRASS

PAVIORS

PAVING

BRICK WALL

C
\B

CW

BW

check wall

check wall

check wall

78
.33

78
.29

78.25

78.44
78

.48

78
.52

78
.6

7

78.36

78.10

78.01

78.06

77.9077.93

77.74

77.70

77.83

77.88

77.94

78.08

78.30

78.67

78
.6

8

78
.62

78
.53

78
.48

78
.41

78.38
78.30

78.22 78.33

78
.36

78
.38

78
.43

78
.42

78
.5

3

78.40

78.11

77
.7

8

DR

FL77.83

77.68

77
.6

7

77
.6

9

77.68

77.65

77
.6

9

77.68

77
.7

0

77.72

77.95

78.29

G1.0

G1.0

G1.0

77.86

78.35

78.28

78.28

78.13

78.10

PT

CL78.01

78
.29

78
.21

77.91

77.89

77.85

77.80

77.75
77.74

77.71

77
.5

2
77

.7
0

77.78

78.24 78.28

78.30

78
.51

78
.56

BOL

BOL

BOL 78
.38

78
.29

78.54

78.4578
.4

5

CL78.32

WST

WST

FH

MH
CL77.70

MH
CL77.71

CL78.53

G0.9

DR

DR
FL77.82

DR

78.23

77.76

NP
PT

78.01

G0.6

G1.0

FL77.86

78
.71

78
.61

78
.49

78
.40

78
.31

78
.30

77.9877.9177.90
78.00 77.90 78.09

77.82

77
.5

8
77

.6
3

77.75
77.85

77
.6

6
77

.6
8

77
.6

2

77
.7

4

77.73

77.70
77.67

77
.6

2

77.54

77.46

77.43

78
.18

78.21

78.19

PT

G0.8

LP

77.76

G1.0

MH
CL77.72

77
.5

1

77.61
77.66 77.66

77
.5

8

77.42 DR

DR

77.44

77.29

77.27

FL77.61

77.58
77.5677.65 77.67

77.61
77.60

77
.6

0

77
.5

3

77.52
77.49

77.48

DR

77.58

77.50

77.63

77
.6

5

77
.6

9

77.69

77.67 DR

PTPT

77
.5

8

77.58
77.56

77.60 77
.5

9

77
.5

2

77.47

BOL
BOL

BOL
BOL

BOL
CL77.65

PT

DR

77.57

77.68

77.50

77.59

77.76

DR77.45

77.42
77.55

77.55

MH

MH

CL77.43

CL77.44

DR

FL77.82
FL77.90

77.60

77.52
77.62

77.68
77.57

77.50

77.56

77.51

77
.4

8

77
.3

7

LPDR 77.56

77.51

77
.4

8

77.34
77.31

77.21

77.10

77.04

77.09

77.24

77.31

77.36
77.38

77.34

77.29

77.21

77
.18

77
.17

77
.17

77.05

76.98
76.90

76
.8

4
76

.7
8

76.69

76.7576.86

76.82

76
.8

9

76
.9

4

77.00
77.09

77.16

77
.30

77
.27

77
.27

77.30

77.39

77.45
77.48

77.46

77.41

77.34

77.20

77.14

77.20

77.31
77.41 77.49

77
.5

8

77.61
77.65

G1.0G0.8
SAP

77.04 77.08
77.21

77.29

77.36

77.16 77.19 77.19
77.45 77.43

FL77.38

FL77.56

DR

DR

DR

77.55

77.64

DR

FL77.57

FL77.70

FL77.85
77.71

DR

DR

DR
DR MH

CL77.63

77.65

77.27

77.00

76.96

76.75

76.77

76.81

76.81

76.81

76.75

76.97

77.20

77.25

77.34

77.47

77.57

77.20

77.18

77.02

77.11

76.97

77.12

77.19

77.16

77.18

77.18

77.23

77.19

MH
CL77.33

DR

DR

DR

DR

FL77.76

FL77.75

77.44

77
.7

3

77
.4

7

77
.4

4
77

.5
1CB

77.46
77.45

77.41 77.69

77
.4

8

77
.4

5

77.24

77.35

77.13

77.01

77.09

77.43

77.47

77
.4

7

MG

G0.7
77.21

LP

MH
CL77.12

DR

LP
G0.8

G0.7

MH
CL77.13

MH
CL77.18

LP DR

MH

MH

MH

MH

CL76.71

CL76.72

CL76.72

CL76.71

DR

G
76.74

MH
CL76.81

CL76.76

LP

76
.9

7

77
.0

1

76
.8

7

76
.9

3

G

G

76.98

76.93

77.24

77.25

77.00

77.15

77.16

76.93

77.34

77.34

77.11

77.24

77.25

77.07

76.92

76.90

76.77

76.77

77.01

76.88

76.88
77.00

76.76

76
.8

2
76

.8
1

76.81

76.83

76
.8

6

76
.8

4

76
.8

7

76.87

76.79

76
.7

8

77
.1

5

77.28

DR

LP

PT

PT

PT

77
.3

6

77
.2

8

77.37

77.44

77.48

76
.9

8

G0.8

76.99

76.95

76.92

76
.9

2
76

.9
1

76
.7

6

76
.7

6

76
.7

7

76
.7

7

76.75

76
.8

0

76.81

76.75

76.76

76.80

76
.8

0

76.77

76
.7

7

G

G

G

76.76

76.79

76.80

LP

77.15

76.89

76.78

76.78

76.78

76.78

76.90

77.16

77.25

77.00

76.87

76.89
76.89

76.87

77.01

77.25

77.1677
.1

4

77
.1

4

77.42 FL77.44MH
CL77.43

77.42

77.21
77.05

76.74

77.41

77.20

77
.2

0

77
.1

7
77

.1
7

77
.1

8
77

.1
9

77
.1

9

77
.2

0

77.27

77.73

77.73 77.74 77.72

77.70

77.71

77.71

77
.7

1

77.69

77.71

77.70

77
.7

1

77
.7

1

77.70

77.7277
.7

1

77
.7

0
77

.6
9

77.69

77
.7

0

77.71

77
.7

1

77
.7

177.70

77.68

77
.6

5

77
.6

4

77.71

77.68

77.71

77.64

77.57

77
.5

7

77
.4

9

77.38

77.43

77.70

77.49

DR

FL77.19

DR

FL77.23

OP
0.0Ø

OP
0.0Ø

IL77.18

IL77.12
ER

CL77.08

77.43

MH
CL77.19

7.000OFFSET

BEARING

7.000OFFSET

BEARING

Z

Z

Z

Z

77.67

77
.7

5

77.67

77.68

77.69

77.36

77
.2

2

77.34

77.34

77
.3

1

FL77.26

77.67

77.68

77.68

77.70

DR

DR

DR

DR

CB
CB

CBCB
CBCBCB

MH
CL77.72

CL77.74

CL77.73

MH
CL77.73

77.80

77.77

77.69

77.72

77.65

77.68

77.6977
.5

6

LP

CB

CB

FL77.83
DR

DR

DR
CL77.72

CL77.71

CL77.72

CL77.73

MH
CL77.69

77.72

CB

CL77.71

CB

77
.6

9

77.70DR

KM3

KM4

KM4A

KM4B

KM5

KM6

KM7

KM7A

MH010

MH011

MH012

MH013

MH001

MH002

MH003

MH016

MH017

MH009

MH004
MH005

MH006

MH007

MH008

MH014

IL76.72

MH27

MH26

MH25

MH23

MH24

MH22

MH21
MH20

MH19

MH18

MH15

IL75.56

IL75.54

IL75.88

SUMP74.97

SUMP74.88

SUMP74.87

IL76.78

IL76.13

IL76.50

IL76.93

IL75.83

IL76.76

IL61.26

IL76.70
IL76.65

IL76.52

IL76.82 IL76.51

IL76.43

IL76.32

30m

6.
5m

PROPOSED PUBLIC
SEWER INVERT LEVEL AT

THIS POINT IS 75.62m
AOD. PROPOSED SW PIPE

WORK TO PASS ABOVE.

S1
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.700

S2
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.294

S4 - CP
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.150S5

CL: 77.800
IL: 76.091

S6-CP
CL: 77.573
IL: 76.274
10mm OP

S7
CL: 77.720
IL: 76.021

S8-CP
CL: 77.398
IL: 76.173
10mm OP

S9-CP
CL: 77.700
IL: 75.934

S10-CP
CL: 77.600
IL: 75.663

S11-CP
CL: 77.240
IL: 76.343
10mm OP

S12-CP
CL: 77.090
IL: 76.312
30mm OP

S13
CL: 76.700
IL: 76.100

S14-CP
CL: 77.100
IL: 75.829

S15-CP
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.450

FCC: 5 l/s
CL: 77.400
IL: 75.615

REFER TO SEPARATE
DRAWING REF:

1-21608-CCL-XX-XX-D-C-550
FOR DRAINAGE THROUGH

NEW POLICE STATION
DEMISE

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

PP1

PP2

PP3

PP4

PP5

REFER TO SEPARATE
DRAWING REF:

1-21608-CCL-XX-XX-D-C-500
FOR PROPOSED SEWER

DIVERSION

POLYPIPE PSM1
CELLULAR STORAGE

30mx6.5mx0.8m

HYDRO-BRAKE FLOW CONTROL.
DESIGN HEAD 0.9m

MAX DR 5 l/s
REF: CTL-SHE-0107-5000-0900-5000

+
IL: 75.650

+
IL: 75.750

RWP

225mm VC @ 1:170

22
5m

m
 V

C
 @

 1
:1

70

225mm VC @ 1:170

225mm VC @ 1:170

225mm VC @ 1:170

150m
m

 VC
 @

 1:60

150mm PP @ 1:100

150m
m

 VC
 @

 1:60

150mm PP @ 1:100

45
0m

m
 C

O
N

C
@

 1
:3

00

450mm CONC@ 1:300

450mm CONC@ 1:300

15
0m

m
 V

C
@

 1
:6

0

225mm VC @ 1:170

150mm VC @ 1:60

150m
m

 VC
 @

 1:60

225mm PP @ 1:170

150mm PP @ 1:100

150mm PP @ 1:100

RE

RE

RE

RE

RE

225mm VC @ 1:170

DUE TO RESTRICTED OUTFALL INVERT
LEVELS AND PROPOSED GROUND LEVELS,
COVER DEPTH ABOVE TANK IS  600mm AT
WESTERN SIDE AND 1087mm AT EASTERN

SIDE. MANUFACTURERS DESIGN TO
CONSIDER LOADING AND PROTECTION

REQUIREMENTS AS REQUIRED.

CAR PARK AISLES TO
DISCHARGE SURFACE

RUN-OFF ONTO PERMEABLE
PARKING BAYS.

FOUL DRAINAGE BELOW SLAB
APPROXIMATE ONLY AND TBC

FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF
ARCHITECTS/MEP POP UP POSITIONS.

BELOW SLAB DRAINAGE TO BE
CO-ORDINATED WITH PROPOSED

BUILDING FOUNDATIONS.

F1
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.800

F5
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.033

F7
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.800

F14
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.206

150mm VC @ 1:80

15
0m

m
 V

C
 @

 1
:8

0

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP SVP

SVP

SVP

WG

F2

F3

F4
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.300

F6
CL: 77.800
IL: 75.950

F9

F10

F11

F12

F13

150mm VC @ 1:80

150mm VC @ 1:80

F15
CL: 77.800
IL: 75.710

150mmØ UNRESTRICTED FOUL
CONNECTION TO PUBLIC SEWER

VIA POLICE STATION CHAMBER PS2.
FOUL FLOWS TBC.

PS2
CL: 78.300
IL: 75.563 (TBC)
TAKEN FROM
McC&S-HS-W-DEV-100-005-C

150mm VC @ 1:70

150mm VC @ 1:32

F2, F3, F3A, F8-F13
CL: 77.800
IL: 76.800

PS2

EXISTING
WATERCOURSE

TO EXISTING
COMBINED

SEWER

225mm VC @ 1:80

2 X
PGs

DIVERSION AND EASEMENT
ARRANGEMENT AGREED

WITH UU

SVP
SVP

SVP

SVP
SVP

FFL:
77.950m AOD

SVP
SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP
SVP

SVP

RWP

F3a

30
0m

m
 V

C
 @

 1
:2

40

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

SHOWER GULLIES AND
CONNECTION TO BE

CONFIRMED.

KEY:

RETIREMENT LIVING DEVELOPMENT
SITE BOUNDARY

PROPOSED DIVERTED SEWER

POLICE STATION PUMPED DRAINAGE
IN DEVELOPMENT SITE

PROPOSED SW DRAINAGE THROUGH
POLICE STATION DEMISE

PROPOSED SW DRAINAGE

PROPOSED FW DRAINAGE

PROPOSED PERMEABLE PAVING

PROPOSED PERFORATED PIPE
IN LINED TRENCH

PROPOSED ATTENUATION

PROPOSED RAIN WATER PIPE
AND 100mm CONNECTION

PROPOED SOIL VENT PIPE
AND 150mm CONNECTION

PROPOSED SHOWER GULLY
AND 100mm CONNECTION

PROPOSED WASH DOWN GULLY
AND 100mm CONNECTION

PROPOSED GULLY AND 150mm
CONNECTION

PROPOSED LINEAR CHANNEL
TYPE AND SIZE TBC. OUTLET
AND ACCESS BOXES REQUIRED
TO EACH END. OUTLET PIPE SIZE
TBC.

SVP

SG

WG

RWP

PG

PERFORATED PIPE TO BE WRAPPED IN
GEOTEXTILE MEMBRANE. TERRAM O.S.A

END OF INLET PIPE TO BE WRAPPED IN
GEOTEXTILE MEMBRANE. TERRAM O.S.A.
PIPE OUTLET ALSO TO BE WRAPPED IN
GEOTEXTILE MEMBRANE TO PREVENT
INGRESS OF STONE.

SURFACE FINISHES AND LAYING COURSE

COURSE GRADED AGGREGATE REQUIRED FOR
ATTENUATION WITH 30% VOIDS

LINED PIPE TRENCH DETAIL BELOW
PERMEABLE SURFACING

FORMATION LEVEL

IMPERMEABLE MEMBRANE.

80mm PERMEABLE PAVING BLOCK
(OR SIMILAR APPROVED)

50mm PERMEABLE LAYING COURSE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH BS7533-13, TABLE A.2

350mm MIN COURSE GRADED AGGREGATE TO
BS7533-13, 4/20, WITH MIN 30% VOIDS

ON 150mm CAPPING

PERMEABLE PAVING
CAR PARK BAYS

IMPERMEABLE MEMBRANE.

ALL PERMEABLE SPECIFICATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO DETAILED DESIGN.

FORMATION LEVEL

MIN DEPTH 450mm

Scale @ A1 Status

Type

www.clancy.co.uk

OriginatorJob Number

Discipline

Building/Zone Level

Drawing No. Revision

Project

Office

Discipline

Client

Title

COPYRIGHT: THE COPYRIGHT OF THIS DRAWING IS VESTED IN CLANCY CONSULTING.
IT SHALL NOT BE USED WITHOUT PERMISSION BY ANYONE FOR ANY PURPOSE.
DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING ELECTRONICALLY OR MANUALLY.
WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY.
ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN MILLIMETRES UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE.
DO NOT TURN ON LAYERS THAT HAVE BEEN TURNED OFF.
DO NOT THAW LAYERS THAT HAVE BEEN FROZEN.
DRAWING MUST BE PRINTED IN BLACK AND WHITE ONLY.

Rev Date Description App.CheckBy

Bi
rm

in
gh

am
 0

12
1 

20
0 

78
00

 . 
G

la
sg

ow
  0

14
1 

22
2 

17
20

 . 
Li

ve
rp

oo
l  

01
51

 2
27

 5
30

0 
. L

on
do

n 
 0

20
 3

07
7 

09
70

 . 
M

an
ch

es
te

r  
 0

16
1 

61
3 

60
00

 . 
N

ew
ca

st
le

  0
19

1 
22

1 
07

02
 . 

N
or

w
ic

h 
 0

16
03

 3
05

19
0 

. P
re

st
w

ic
k 

 0
12

92
 4

75
37

5 
. R

ea
di

ng
  0

11
8 

94
1 

78
88

McCARTHY STONE

WILMSLOW

ALTRINCHAM

CIVIL

RETIREMENT LIVING DEVELOPEMENT
PROPOSED DRAINAGE LAYOUT

1:200 STAGE 3

CCL1-21608

C

XX

D

XX

520 P03

P01 06.10.23 STAGE 3 CD JP JP

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL
RELEVANT  ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS DRAWINGS AND
SPECIFICATIONS.

2. ALL ADOPTABLE DRAINAGE WORKS INCLUDING WORKS TO
EXISTING PUBLIC SEWERS TO BE UNDERTAKEN IN
ACCORDANCE WITH "SEWERS FOR ADOPTION 7th EDITION" AND
"CIVIL ENGINEERING SPECIFICATION FOR THE WATER INDUSTRY
7th EDITION" AND CONSTRUCTED TO THE RELEVANT
STATUTORY UNDERTAKERS DETAILS.

3. ALL PRIVATE DRAINAGE WORKS TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
"CIVIL ENGINEERING SPECIFICATION FOR THE WATER INDUSTRY
7th EDITION", BS EN 752 2017 'DRAIN AND SEWER SYSTEMS
OUTSIDE BUILDINGS' AND THE BUILDING REGULATIONS
APPROVED 'DOCUMENT H'.

4. DO NOT SCALE THIS DRAWING. ANY AMBIGUITIES, OMISSIONS
AND ERRORS  ON DRAWINGS SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
ENGINEERS ATTENTION  IMMEDIATELY. ALL DIMENSIONS MUST
BE CHECKED / VERIFIED ON SITE.

5. DESIGN BASED ON TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY AND
INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT THE TIME OF THE DESIGN.

6. OUTFALL CONNECTION(S) SUBJECT TO AGREEMENT WITH THE
APPROVING AUTHORITY.

7. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES AND LEVELS IN METRES
ABOVE ORDNANCE DATUM UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

8. COVER LEVELS AND BUILDINGS LOCATION ARE APPROXIMATE
AND SHALL BE CONFIRMED BY ARCHITECT. CONTRACTOR TO
ALLOW FOR ADJUSTMENT TO SUIT AGREED POSITIONS AND
FINISHED LEVELS, AND CONFIRM ALL COVER LEVELS ON SITE.

9. INVERT LEVELS AT MANHOLES/ INSPECTION CHAMBERS TO BE
USED TO SET OUT PIPEWORK. PIPE GRADIENTS ARE SHOWN
INDICATIVELY ONLY.

10. ALL PIPE DIAMETERS GIVEN ARE NOMINAL INTERNAL PIPE
DIAMETERS.

11. ALL SEWERS, UNLESS AGREED OTHERWISE STATED, SHALL BE:
· 100mm to 300mm DIA TO BE VITRIFIED CLAY.
· 375mm DIA AND GREATER TO BE CLASS 120 CONCRETE PIPES.

12. AS AN ALTERNATIVE THE CONTRACTOR MAY USE AN APPROVED
UNPLASTICISED POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVCU) WITH APPROVAL
FROM THE ENGINEER.

13. SEWER PIPES TO BE LAID IN MAXIMUM 3 METRE LENGTHS
UNLESS THERE IS A SPECIFIC OPERATIONAL NEED TO LAY
LONGER LENGTHS.

14. THE FIRST PIPE OUT OF MANHOLES TO BE AS SHORT AS
PRACTICABLE SO AS TO PROVIDE A FLEXIBLE JOINT AS CLOSE
AS POSSIBLE TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF THE CONCRETE
SURROUND AND CONNECTED TO A LENGTH OF ROCKER PIPE.

15. ALL NEW CONNECTIONS INTO EXISTING MANHOLES (OR INTO
EXISTING SEWERS) TO BE 'SOFFITS LEVEL' UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

16. ALL PRIVATE DRAINAGE PIPES WITH A COVER OF LESS THAN
600mm IN NON-TRAFFICKED AREAS AND LESS THAN 1200mm IN
TRAFFICKED AREAS TO BE BEDDED AND SURROUNDED IN
CONCRETE (CLASS Z). COMPRESSIBLE MATERIAL SHALL BE
PROVIDED AT EVERY PIPE JOINT.  WHERE COVER EXCEEDS
THIS DEPTH, PIPES ARE TYPICALLY BEDDED AND SURROUNDED
IN CLASS S. REFER TO PIPE EMBEDMENT DETAILS DRAWING
FOR SPECIFIC TYPES.

17. WHERE FOUL SEWERS RUN ABOVE SURFACE SEWERS,
CONCRETE PROTECTION MAY BE REQUIRED AT CROSSOVERS
TO PREVENT ANY POTENTIAL CONTAMINATION.

18. THE CHAMBER SIZE OF MANHOLES WITH MORE THAN ONE
CONNECTION MAY NEED TO BE INCREASED TO ACCOMMODATE
THE CONNECTIONS AND BENDS.

19. ALL MANHOLE COVERS IN BLOCK/SLAB AND EXTERNAL PAVING
AREAS TO HAVE RECESSED COVERS OF THE APPROPRIATE
GRADE TO ACCEPT ARCHITECT'S PAVING PROPOSAL.
ARCHITECT TO CONFIRM.

20. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE IN THE MANHOLE SCHEDULE, ALL
MANHOLE, GULLY AND CHANNEL COVERS (IRONWORK) SHOULD
BE THE FOLLOWING SPECIFICATION:

· B125 LOAD CLASS IN PEDESTRIAN AREAS
· D400 LOAD CLASS IN VEHICULAR AREAS.

22. ALL PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS TO BE INSTALLED IN STRICT
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURERS REQUIREMENTS,
INSTRUCTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

23. PROPOSED RETIREMENT LIVING DEVELOPMENT DRAINAGE TO
BE CO-ORDINATED WITH PROPOSED POLICE STATION DESIGN
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

24. CONFIRMATION OF CONSENTS TO DISCHARGE TO RECEIVING
WATERCOURSE OR SEWER REQUIRED.

25. CELLULAR STORAGE TO BE DESIGNED BY MANUFACTURER.
CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN DESIGN. COVER REQUIRES AND
LOADING TO BE CONSIDERED.

26. GROUND WATER LEVELS TO BE CONFIRMED TO ALLOW
FLOATATION CHECKS TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE CELLULAR
STORAGE. ANCHORAGE OR CONCRETE SLAB MAYBE REQUIRED
TO PREVENT SYSTEM BECOMING BUOYANT.

DRAWINGS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION

· SURVEY OPERATIONS TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY AND UTILITIES
SURVEY - 21L044/001

· UNITED UTILITIES SEWER RECORDS
· SITE LAYOUTS PROVIDED BY McCARTHY STONE

-13889-AEW-SI-00-DR-A-0505-S2-P07-Proposed Site Plan (DRAINAGE
POSITION TAKEN FROM THIS)

DRAINAGE DESIGN SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL FROM THE LEAD LOCAL

FLOOD AUTHORITY AND UNITED UTILITIES.

P02 22.07.24 UPDATED FOR PLANNING CD JP JP
P03 06.09.24 UPDATED LAYOUT AND BOUDNARY CD JP JP

P
age 74

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
381000N

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
381050N



BT

B
E

E
C

H
 L

A
N

E

UP

F
A

L
L

C6

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

C10

C9

RL 201
01

RL 201
02

RL 201
03

RL 201
05

RL 201
06

RL 201
07

RL 103 R
11

RL 103 R
10

RL 103 R
09

RL 104 R
04

RL 201
08

Communal

Entrance
Scooter

Plant

Guest Room

LiftStore

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
5

1 : 200

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

For Information

Feasibility

1
3

8
8

9
-A

E
W

-X
X

-0
0
-D

R
-A

-0
0

0
2

KS

BR

S2

05/04/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

Date

Name/Company

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 05/04/24 Initial Drawing Issue KS BR

P02 09/04/24 Updates to site KS BR

P03 15/04/24 Updates to site and ground floor
layout

KS BR

P04 18/04/24 Updates to site and ground floor
layout

KS BR

P05 08/07/24 Elevations and Plans Updated
Following Comments from LPA

NN KS

Scale @  1 : 200

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

0 10m

Scale @ 1:200

8642

P
age 75



BT

B
E

E
C

H
 L

A
N

E

UP

RL 104 R
12

RL 201
13

RL 201
14

RL 201
15

RL 201
20

RL 201
21

RL 201
22

RL 103 R
23

RL 103 R
24

RL 103 R
25

RL 103 R
26

RL 201
18

RL 103 R
19

RL 201
16

RL 104 R
17

LiftStore

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
4

1 : 200

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

Proposed First Floor Plan

For Information

Feasibility

1
3

8
8

9
-A

E
W

-X
X

-0
1
-D

R
-A

-0
0

0
3

KS

BR

S2

05/04/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

Date

Name/Company

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 05/04/24 Initial Drawing Issue KS BR

P02 09/04/24 Updates to site KS BR

P03 18/04/24 Updates to site and ground floor
layout

KS BR

P04 08/07/24 Elevations and Plans Updated
Following Comments from LPA

NN KS

Scale @  1 : 200

Proposed First Floor Plan

0 10m

Scale @ 1:200

8642

P
age 76



BT

B
E

E
C

H
 L

A
N

E

UP

RL 104 R
27

RL 201
29

RL 201
30

RL 201
31

RL 201
35

RL 201
36

RL 201
37

RL 103 R
38

RL 103 R
39

RL 103 R
40

RL 103 R
41

RL 202
33

RL 103 R
34

RL 104 R
32

RL 201
28

LiftStore

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
4

1 : 200

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

Proposed Second Floor Plan

For Information

Feasibility

1
3

8
8

9
-A

E
W

-X
X

-0
2
-D

R
-A

-0
0

0
4

KS

BR

S2

05/04/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

Date

Name/Company

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 05/04/24 Initial Drawing Issue KS BR

P02 09/04/24 Updates to site KS BR

P03 18/04/24 Updates to site and ground floor
layout

KS BR

P04 08/07/24 Elevations and Plans Updated
Following Comments from LPA

NN KS

Scale @  1 : 200

Proposed Second Floor Plan

0 10m

Scale @ 1:200

8642

P
age 77



BT

B
E

E
C

H
 L

A
N

E

UP

RL 104 R
42

RL 21 SB
43

RL 21 SB
44

RL 21 SB
45

RL 21 SB
46

RL 104 R
47

RL 201
48

RL 21 SB
49

RL 13R SB
51

RL 13R SB
52

LiftStore

RL 21 SB
50

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
5

1 : 200

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

Proposed Third Floor Plan

For Information

Feasibility

1
3

8
8

9
-A

E
W

-X
X

-0
3
-D

R
-A

-0
0

0
5

KS

BR

S2

05/04/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

Date

Name/Company

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 05/04/24 Initial Drawing Issue KS BR

P02 09/04/24 Updates to site KS BR

P03 18/04/24 Updates to site and ground floor
layout

KS BR

P04 08/07/24 Elevations and Plans Updated
Following Comments from LPA

NN KS

P05 08/07/24 Update to client comments NN RB

Scale @  1 : 200

Proposed Third Floor Plan

0 10m

Scale @ 1:200

8642

P
age 78



BT

B
E

E
C

H
 L

A
N

E

UP

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
2

1 : 200

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

Proposed Roof Plan

For Information

Feasibility

1
3

8
8

9
-A

E
W

-X
X

-R
F

-D
R

-A
-0

0
0
7

KS

BR

S2

18/04/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

Date

Name/Company

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 18/04/24 Initial Drawing Issue KS BR

P02 08/07/24 Update to client comments NN RB

Scale @  1 : 200

Proposed Roof Plan

0 10m

Scale @ 1:200

8642

P
age 79



1 2 1

1

34

8

10 567 89 2

122 21 13 84

Materials Key:

1. Facing brickwork - Red Brick
2. Facing brickwork - Light Red Brick
3. Slate roof treatment 
4. UPVC Windows to be Black 
5. Juliette balcony - Metal Black
6. Double soldier course brick detail to roof 

rake - facing brick
7. Single soldier course brick detail - facing 

brick
8. 25mm projecting brick snap header detail
9. Stone effect cill detail 
10. Railings to projecting balconies -metal 

black

South

West

1:1250

1:100

1:200

1000 3000 5000

1:500 5 15 25

10 30 50 70

M

mm

mm

M

5000 8000

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

Scale Bars TO BE USED ONLY AS GUIDANCE

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
2

As indicated

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

South & West Elevations

For Information

Planning

N
O

-2
8
5

9
-3

-A
C

-0
5
1

3

JFS

BR

S2

22/07/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

02/04/2024

MCS

AEW Internal Ref Number: 13889

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 23/07/24 Initial Issue JFS BR

P02 24/07/24 Updated in line with MCS
comments

JFS BR

Scale @  1 : 100

Proposed South Elevation

Scale @  1 : 100

Proposed West Elevation

P
age 80



1 221 35 8104 6 789

1 2138 4 9 7 6

Materials Key:

1. Facing brickwork - Red Brick
2. Facing brickwork - Light Red Brick
3. Slate roof treatment 
4. UPVC Windows to be Black 
5. Juliette balcony - Metal Black
6. Double soldier course brick detail to roof 

rake - facing brick
7. Single soldier course brick detail - facing 

brick
8. 25mm projecting brick snap header detail
9. Stone effect cill detail 
10. Railings to projecting balconies -metal 

black

North

East

1:1250

1:100

1:200

1000 3000 5000

1:500 5 15 25

10 30 50 70

M

mm

mm

M

5000 8000

drawing stage

Purpose of Issue

client

project

drawing title

D
w

g
 N

o
R

e
v

date

scale 

drawn

checked

Status

• All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site.

• Any discrepancies are to be reported to the architect 
before any work commences

• This drawing shall not be scaled to ascertain any 
dimensions. Work to figured dimensions only.

• This drawing shall not be reproduced without express 
written permission from AEW.

• Title overlay drawings and ownership boundaries are 
produced using all reasonable endeavors. AEW cannot 
be responsible for the accuracy or scale discrepancy of 
base plans supplied to them.

• All works are to be undertaken in accordance with 
Building Regulations and the latest British Standards.

• All proprietary materials and products are to be used 
strictly in accordance with the manufacturers 
recommendations. 

This drawing contains the following model files: -

CDM 2015

Unless noted below, all known hazards have been 
highlighted on the drawing:

Client notified of duties:

Principal Designer:

a
e

w
 a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

0
1

6
1

 2
1

4
 4

3
7

0
w

w
w

.a
e

w
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

.c
o

m

Scale Bars TO BE USED ONLY AS GUIDANCE

         @ A1

NOTES

P
0
2

As indicated

MCS

Wilmslow, Beech Lane

North & East Elevations

For Information

Planning

N
O

-2
8
5

9
-3

-A
C

-0
5
1

2

JFS

BR

S2

22/07/24

113889-AEW-XX-XX-M3-A-0001

02/04/2024

MCS

AEW Internal Ref Number: 13889

Rev Date Description Drawn
by

Checked
By

P01 23/07/24 Initial Issue JFS BR

P02 24/07/24 Updated in line with MCS
comments

JFS BR

Scale @  1 : 100

Proposed North Elevation

Scale @  1 : 100

Proposed East Elevation

P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



P
age 84



P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
OFFICIAL 

 
   Application No: 24/0962M 

 
   Location: OAKLANDS, WILMSLOW ROAD, ALDERLEY EDGE, CHESHIRE, SK9 

7QW 
 

   Proposal: Detailed planning application for the demolition of the existing dwellings 
and the construction of 14 no. apartments with associated access, 
parking, landscaping and infrastructure 
 

   Applicant: 
 

Mr Brian Spencer, North East Cheshire Developments Ltd 

   Expiry Date: 
 

28-Jun-2024 

 
 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The application lies within Alderley Edge, which is identified as a Local 
Service Centre where the principle of residential development on the site is 
acceptable. The site is sustainably located and is within walking distance of 
the town centre, public transport, services and facilities within Wilmslow. The 
developments accords with Policies SD 1, SD 2, PG 2 and SE 2 of the CELPS 
in this regard.  
 
The scheme presents an acceptable design that will not unduly harm the 
character or appearance of the surrounding area, nor with the amenity of 
existing or future occupants be adversely affected.  
 
The proposals will support the provision of 14 units of accommodation which 
also contributes to the Councils housing supply and is an efficient use of land.  
 
Economic benefits of the scheme comprise the spending power of future 
residents in the local shops and services and the short-term economic 
benefits derived from the creation of construction jobs.  
 
The proposed level of parking would be satisfactory to accommodate the 
likely demand for parking spaces generated by the development and 
evidence from the applicant regarding trip generation is accepted and is 
unlikely to lead to an unacceptable impact on highway safety or through 
cumulative impacts, lead to congestion on the road network. 
 
The proposals will not result in a loss of biodiversity or harm protected 
species nor increase flood risk or concerns regarding noise and air pollution.  
The proposals are considered to have an acceptable impact on trees within 
and adjacent the site.   
 

Page 87 Agenda Item 7



 
OFFICIAL 

The proposal is therefore a sustainable development, and accordingly, the 
application is recommended for approval subject to a s106 agreement and 
conditions. 
 
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to conditions and subject to a S106 agreement to secure 
financial contributions towards the provision of play and amenity (POS), 
outdoor sports (ROS), allotments and green infrastructure (GI) and affordable 
housing. 
 

 
REASON FOR REFERRAL 
 
This application has been called-in to the Northern Planning Committee by the local ward 
member, Councillor Browne, for the following reasons: 
“This application is for a significant development proposal at a key gateway site to Alderley 
Edge and as such, would benefit from further scrutiny and consideration by the members of 
Northern Planning Committee particularly with respect to: 

 CELPS Policy SC4 (residential housing mix - the proposal is for one and two-bed units 
only). 

 SADPD Policy INF3 (highway safety and access arrangements - the proposal is to 
provide access via an unadopted road). 

 AENP Policy AE2 (residential housing mix - the proposal is for one and two-bed units 
only). 

 AENP Policy AE4 (back garden & back land development - the development proposals 
represent back land development). 

 AENP Policy AE14 (sustainable travel routes - there is no safe footway or point of exit 
onto Wilmslow Road).” 

 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The site currently comprises 2no. large, detached dwellings known as Oaklands, Wilmslow 
Road and The Old Coach House, Horseshoe Lane. The site currently contains separate access 
points onto Horseshoe Lane and Wilmslow Road. The site is located to the north of the centre 
of Alderley Edge and is located in a residential area within the settlement boundary, as defined 
in the Local Plan. 
 
The application site covers approx. 0.2 hectares and is set on an incline with the lowest point 
onto Wilmslow Road and the highest point along Horseshoe Lane. Oaklands is a Victorian villa 
which suffered from extensive fire damage in 2022 and has since been derelict and vacant. 
Internally the building comprises three floors including a basement level. The Old Coach House 
was constructed in the 1950’s and is currently used as a family dwelling with two internal floors. 
 
The site is bounded by two nursing homes, The Belvedere and Cavendish Court with several 
apartment buildings nearby. Currently the dwellings located on site are centrally positioned 
within each plot with planted boundaries and mature trees.  
 
 

Page 88



 
OFFICIAL 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the 2no dwellings on the 
site and erection of 14no. apartments, car parking and landscaping. Comprising 2 no. 1-
bedroom, 10no. 2-bedroom and 2no. 3-bedroom apartments. Access would be taken from 
Horseshoe Lane to the east of the site with the apartment building located centrally within the 
plot on the Oaklands side with parking and landscaping to the east. 

 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
69912P Two Storey Extension (Coach House) 
Approved 1992 
 
40289P Change of Use to Private Dwelling (Coach House) 
Approved 1985 
 
39738P Change of Use to Private Nursing Home (Oaklands) 
Approved 1985 
 
36164P Conversion of Existing Two Storey Outbuilding into Dwellinghouse; Restoration 

of Main Property from Four Flats To Single Residence (Oaklands) 
Approved 1984 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
 
Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2010-2030 (CELPS) 
MP1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
PG1 Overall Development Strategy 
PG2 Settlement hierarchy 
PG7 Spatial Distribution of Development 
SD1 Sustainable Development in Cheshire East 
SD2 Sustainable Development Principles 
SC1 Leisure and Recreation  
SC2 Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities 
SC3 Health and Well-being 
SC4 Residential Mix 
SC5 Affordable Homes 
SE1 Design 
SE2 Efficient Use of Land 
SE3 Biodiversity and geodiversity  
SE4 The Landscape  
SE5 Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland 
SE6 Green Infrastructure 
SE8 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 
SE12 Pollution, Land contamination and land instability 
SE13 Flood risk and water management 
CO1 Sustainable Travel and Transport 
CO4 Travel Plans and Transport Assessments 
 

Page 89



 
OFFICIAL 

Appendix C – Parking standards 
 
Cheshire East Site Allocations and Development Policies Document (SADPD) 
PG9 Settlement Boundaries 
GEN1 Design principles 
ENV2 Ecological implementation 
ENV5 Landscaping 
ENV6 Trees, hedgerows and woodland implementation 
ENV7 Climate Change 
ENV12 Air quality 
ENV14 Light pollution 
ENV15 New development and existing uses 
ENV16 Surface water management and flood risk 
ENV17 Protecting water resources 
HOU1 Housing Mix 
HOU 2 Specialist Housing Provision 
HOU 6 Accessibility space, accessibility and wheelchair housing standards 
HOU12 Amenity 
HOU 13 Residential Standards 
HOU 12 Housing Density 
HOU 15 Housing Delivery  
INF1 Cycleways, bridleways and footpaths 
INF3 Highways safety and access 
INF6 Protection of existing and proposed infrastructure 
INF9 Utilities 
REC 2 Indoor sport and Recreation Implementation 
REC3 Open space implementation 
 
Alderley Edge Neighbourhood Plan 2021-2030 
AE1 – Alderley Edge Development Strategy 
AE2 – Design, Scale and Type of New Housing 
AE3 – Sustainable Housing Design 
AE4 – Rear Garden and Backland Development 
 
Other material policy considerations 
Housing Supplementary Planning Document July 2022 
National Planning Policy Framework (2021)  
National Planning Policy Guidance 
Cheshire East Design Guide 
 
CONSULTATIONS (External to Planning) 
 
Highways (CEC) – No objections  
 
Environmental Protection (CEC) – No objection subject to conditions regarding 
contamination, soil importing, EV charging and low emission boilers, contaminated land, 
submission of travel information pack and informatives regarding hours of construction works, 
piling, dust management and floor floating.   
 

Page 90



 
OFFICIAL 

Local Lead Flood Authority (CEC) – No objection in principle to the proposals subject to 
condition regarding a revised drainage plan.  
 
Ansa Greenspace: no objections, subject to contributions 
 
Strategic Housing (CEC) – no objections, subject to contributions 
 
Alderley Edge Parish Council – “The Parish Council recommends refusal on the grounds of 
overdevelopment and requests that this is called in to Northern Planning for reasons of over 
development, access and backland development. From the plans it cannot be determined what 
if any building line shall be observed.” 
 
OTHER REPRESENTATIONS  
 
Representations have been received from 14 addresses, 13 objections and one letter of 
support, and are summarised below; 
 
General 

- Lack of affordable housing information. 
 

Highway matters 
- Concerns regarding safety of highway for construction traffic 
- Additional traffic to busy road 
- Visitor parking is insufficient 
- The additional traffic would have a detrimental impact on the road surface of Horseshoe 

Lane 
- Would lead to increased traffic on Lynton Lane 

 
Design 

- Overdevelopment  
- Bulk and mass not in keeping with the surrounding area. 
- Out of scale 

 
Amenity 

- The proposal will cause unacceptable overlooking of existing properties by reason of its 
overdevelopment. 
 

Other issues 
- If consent is issued, would there be maintenance of Horseshoe Road? 

 
Support 

- Design looks great. 
 
 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 

 
Principle of development 
Section 5 of the NPPF seeks to significantly boost the supply of homes.  Paragraph 70 of the 
NPPF states that small and medium sized sites can make an important contribution to meeting 

Page 91



 
OFFICIAL 

the housing requirement of an area and are often built out quickly. To promote the development 
of a good mix of sites local planning authorities should amongst other things ‘support the 
development of windfall sites through their policies and decisions – giving great weight to the 
benefits of using suitable sites within existing settlements for homes’. 
 
Alderley Edge is identified as one of the ‘Local Service Centres’ in Cheshire East where CELPS 
Policy PG 2 states that “small scale development to meet needs and priorities will be supported 
where they contribute to the creation and maintenance of sustainable communities.” 
 
As a windfall site, CELPS Policy SE 2 states that development should; 

 Consider the landscape and townscape character of the surrounding area when 
determining the character and density of development 

 Build upon existing concentrations of activities and existing infrastructure 

 Not require major investment in new infrastructure 

 Consider the consequences of the proposal for sustainable development having regard 
to Policies SD 1 and SD 2. 
 

Policy SC4 of the Cheshire East Local Plan states that “New residential development should 
maintain, provide or contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help support the 
creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities.” AENP policy AE2 repeats this aim with 
the additional statement that “Development must contribute towards a mix of house types, sizes 
and tenures and meet local housing needs as identified in the most up to date local housing 
needs assessment. Proposals must demonstrate how they have sought to deliver the 
necessary housing mix which, for sites of sufficient size, should include the provision of 
• 35% 1-2 bedrooms  
• 60% 3 bedrooms  
• 5% 4 + bedrooms”. 
 
The mix and type of one, two and three bed apartments located within a residential area here 
would contribute to the mix of housing sizes and types and would complement the existing 
provision within the area.  The proposal does not meet the specific percentage of dwelling sizes 
set out in the policy, but it does clearly provide smaller house types which appears to be the 
preference of the policy.  
 
In accordance with these policies, there is no objection in principle to new residential 
development in this location, subject to compliance with the other relevant development plan 
policies. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 
Policy SC 5 of the CELPS sets out the thresholds for affordable housing in the borough. In 
residential developments, affordable housing will be provided as follows: -  

i. In developments of 15 or more dwellings (or 0.4 hectares) in the Principal Towns and 
Key Service Centres at least 30% of all units are to be affordable;  

i. In developments of 11 or more dwellings (or have a maximum combined gross 
floorspace of more than 1,000 sqm) in Local Service Centres and all other locations 
at least 30% of all units are to be affordable;  

Page 92



 
OFFICIAL 

ii. In future, where Cheshire East Council evidence, such as housing needs studies or 
housing market assessments, indicate a change in the borough’s housing need the 
above thresholds and percentage requirements may be varied;  
 

The CELPS states in the justification text of Policy SC5 that the Housing Development Study 
shows that there is the objectively assessed need for affordable housing for a minimum of 7,100 
dwellings over the plan period, which equates to an average of 355 dwellings per year across 
the borough. This figure should be taken as a minimum. 
 
In developments of 11 or more dwellings in Local Service Centres at least 30% of all units are 
to be affordable; This is a proposed development of 14 apartments in a Local Service Centre, 
therefore, in order to meet the Council’s Policy on Affordable Housing there is a requirement 
for 5 (4.2) dwellings to be provided as affordable homes. 
 
Point 3 of policy SC5 notes that the affordable homes provided must be of a tenure, size and 
type to help meet identified housing needs and contribute to the creation of mixed, balanced 
and inclusive communities where people can live independently longer. Policy SC5 confirms 
that the Council would currently expect a ratio of 65/35 between social rented and intermediate 
affordable housing. On this basis, 3 units should be provided as affordable/social rent and 2 
units as intermediate tenure.  
 
Policy SC5 of the CELPS requires affordable housing to be provided on-site, however, in 
exceptional circumstances, where it can be proven that on-site delivery is not possible, as a 
first alternative, off-site provision of affordable housing will be accepted; as a second alternative 
a financial contribution may be accepted, where justified, and on a site-by-site basis, in lieu of 
on-site provision. This provision is viewed under the policy as a last resort option, as opposed 
to an alternative method of affordable housing. The desire to have all affordable provision on-
site is in line with government guidance to encourage the development of mixed and balanced 
communities. 

 
Where a financial contribution is offered, the amount of such contribution will normally be 
expected to reflect the cost necessary to facilitate an equivalent amount of affordable housing 
as would have been provided on-site. 

 
Consultation between the agent and Registered Providers (RPs) within the locale confirmed 
that there would be little interest from RPs in the units on site due to the leasehold status and 
the additional charges which would render the affordable units ‘unaffordable’. 
 
Following this, in line with CELP Policy SC 5, point 8, there were no alternate sites for off-site 
provision, hence a commuted sum in-lieu of the affordable units was proposed. 
 
In line with CEC policy, the commuted sum amount was determined by obtaining open market 
values for the units and offers from RP’s.  As per policy, the difference between the combined 
open market values and the combined RP offer provides the commuted sum amount of 
£246,500.  This amount has been accepted by Strategic Housing at CEC, who raises no 
objections to the proposal.  The proposal is therefore considered to comply with policy SC5. 
 
 
 

Page 93



 
OFFICIAL 

Public Open Space 
 
Policy SC2 of the CELPS requires major residential development to contribute to sport facilities 
where the development will increase demand and/or there is a recognized shortage in the 
locality that would be exacerbated. Policy SE6 of the Cheshire East Local Plan requires 65 
square meters per dwelling for the provision of public open space contributions to outdoor sport 
facilities in line with SC2.   
 
It appears that this cannot be provided on site, due to the space available, and therefore 
financial contributions would be required for offsite provision in line with policy SE6 of the 
Cheshire East Local Plan.  
 
ANSA have advised a financial contribution of £95,241.44 would be required comprising 
£61,017.18 towards improved off-site amenity and play improvements and £21,903.56 towards. 
off-site sports facilities. The contribution will be used to make additions, improvements and 
enhancements of the play and amenity facilities in Alderley Park, just a short walk from the site. 
 
In the absence of onsite allotment provision, a commuted sum of £4,106.90 will be required for 
offsite provision, on commencement of development. The sum will be used on the Alderley 
allotments to make improvements, additions and enhancements. 
 
The application includes the provision of onsite private amenity space but does not include 
green infrastructure (GI). As such a com sum of £8,213.80 will be required on commencement 
of development to be used on GI projects in Alderley Edge. 
 
The policy requirement for such contributions is set out within policies SC2, SE6 and SD1 of 
the CELPS and the contribution amount has been calculated using a formula within the councils 
adopted SPD on Developer Contributions 
 
Character and Design  
 
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF seeks to ensure that developments function well and add to the 
overall quality of the area, be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and history, while not preventing or 
discouraging appropriate innovation or change; establish or maintain a strong sense of place, 
and create attractive and distinctive places to live, work and visit. The potential of a site should 
be optimised to accommodate an appropriate mix and amount of development whilst creating 
safe, inclusive and accessible places with a high standard of amenity for existing and future 
users.  
 
Paragraph 134 notes that permission should be refused for development that is not well 
designed.    
 
CELPS Policy SE 1 states that development proposals should make a positive contribution to 
their surroundings. It seeks to ensure design solutions achieve a sense of place by protecting 
and enhancing the quality, distinctiveness and character of settlements. It should also respect 
the pattern, character and form of the surroundings.  
 

Page 94



 
OFFICIAL 

Amongst other criteria, Policy SD 2 of the CELPS also expects all development to contribute 
positively to an area’s character and identity, creating or reinforcing local distinctiveness in 
terms of height, scale, massing, form and grouping in addition to the relationship to 
neighbouring properties, materials, design features and green infrastructure. SADPD Policy 
GEN 1 requires proposals to create high quality development reflecting local character and 
design. SADPD policy HOU 14 advises that in determining appropriate density for a site, the 
character of the surrounding site and area, along with the mix and type of development, nature 
setting, and scale, amenity, availability and capacity of local services and viability should be 
taken into account.  
 
AENP Policy AE2 requires new housing development to deliver high quality design through 
meeting the following key principles: 

A. Respect the grain and character of adjoining areas;  
B. Use architectural detailing that contributes to the character of the village;  
C. Use materials relevant to the particular area as set out in the Design Codes; and  
D. Follow the movement principles and hierarchy set out in the Design Codes. 

 
Objections have been received on the grounds of non-compliance with AENP policy AE4 which 
seeks to prevent residential development in rear gardens and backlands where there would be 
an unacceptable impact on the character of the local area in terms of loss of openness, mature 
trees, hedges and shrubbery, and a substantial increase in the density of built form. Although 
this development would fill a much greater proportion of the plots that the dwellings occupy, 
this is an amalgamation of plots to create apartment living with communal garden and seeks to 
retain some open garden space, mature trees and landscaping.  

 
Wilmslow Road displays a variety of sizes and styles of properties with the two adjoining 
properties comprising large residential buildings. The property to the north, The Oaks, is a large 
apartment building with the two adjoining properties to the south, The Belvadere and Cavendish 
Court, both large residential care homes.  
 
The proposal seeks the erection of an apartment block displaying 5 storeys from the Wilmslow 
Road elevation and 4 storeys from the Horseshoe Lane elevation arranged in a single 
rectangular block. The footprint of the block is considerably larger than the two dwellings it 
replaces. The building is positioned in line with the existing front building lines of the buildings 
along Wilmslow Road with a large setback from Horseshoe Lane. 
 
During discussions with the Council’s Design Officer concerns were raised with regard to the 
scale of the development. However, the height of the proposal would bridge the heights of the 
adjoining properties when viewed from both Horseshoe Lane and Wilmslow Road, being lower 
than The Belvadere and Cavendish to the south and taller than The Oaks to the north and 
would therefore appear at an appropriate scale within the street scene. It is demonstrated within 
the contextual street scene submitted that the proposals provide for an appropriate transition 
between the two large blocks of apartments on either side, by stepping down in scale. 
 
To the rear the opposite side of Horseshoe Lane contains a smaller residential scale than 
Wilmslow Road, which is characterised by large villas in large plots. The large setback of the 
building from Horseshoe Lane would reduce the prominence of the development from this angle 
and the natural screening to Wilmslow Road would also reduce the prominence of the proposed 
building from Wilmslow Road. 

Page 95



 
OFFICIAL 

 
The proposed development makes efficient use of land by providing a density of 70 dwellings 
per hectare where currently the density is 5 dwellings per hectare. Furthermore, the 
development proposes to regenerate a derelict, dangerous site in a prominent location. 
 
The proposal provides for large landscaped communal gardens and the application is 
supported by a comprehensive hard and soft landscaping scheme.  
 
A landscaped parking area would be located to the rear fronting onto Horseshoe Lane and 
relatively modest communal garden area at the front. The parking area would benefit from more 
tree planting to soften and screen the development and a condition will be included for an 
updated landscaping scheme to be submitted.  
 
The increased scale of the proposed development would not be to the detriment of the character 
and appearance of the street scene. Overall, it is considered that the proposals would contribute 
positively to the character of the area. As such the proposals comply with Section 12 of the 
NPPF, policies SE1 and SD2 of the CELPS, the requirements of AENP policy AE2 and SADPD 
policies GEN 1 and HOU 14.  
 
Living conditions  
 
CELPS policy SE1 seeks to ensure appropriate levels of privacy for new and existing residential 
properties. Policy SD 2 also expects all development to contribute positively to an area’s 
character and identity, creating or reinforcing local distinctiveness in terms of its relationship to 
neighbouring properties.  
 
SADPD policy HOU 12 seeks to ensure development does not cause unacceptable harm to 
the amenities of adjoining or nearby occupiers of residential properties, sensitive uses, or future 
occupiers of the proposed development due to:  
1. loss of privacy;  
2. loss of sunlight and daylight;  
3. the overbearing and dominating effect of new buildings;  
4. environmental disturbance or pollution; or  
5. traffic generation, access and parking. 
 
SADPD Policy HOU 13 (table 8.2) and the Cheshire East Design Guide set out the standards 
for space between buildings and advises for a three-storey building that 18m is required 
between principal habitable windows front to front, and 21m between principal habitable 
windows back to back. For a habitable room facing a non-habitable room this reduces to 16.5m. 
 
This is required to maintain an adequate standard of privacy and amenity between residential 
properties. 
 
All of the apartments meet the Nationally Described Space Standard in terms of internal 
accommodation provided.  
 
The adjoining properties do not contain habitable windows facing onto the application site and 
there is good boundary screening between the properties to ensure there would be no conflict 
with the neighbours in terms of privacy. 

Page 96



 
OFFICIAL 

 
The front and rear proposed balconies would not cause significant overlooking issues due to 
the positioning of the building, slightly forward of the adjoining buildings to the front and further 
back than The Oaks to the rear with only the car park to this property within view. The position 
of the building in relation to Cavendish Court ensures no habitable windows would be visible 
from the rear balconies. 
 
The building is close to neighbouring development and will be appreciably higher than the 
existing properties. However, existing planting, which could be supplemented through 
additional landscaping, would reduce the increased presence of the building.    
 
Residents are also concerned about the increase in the number of units on site and the increase 
in noise and activity as a result. However, the site is within the settlement boundary and close 
to busy roads and on street parking bays where noise and activity is expected. Additional 
comings and goings to the site are acceptable in a residential environment such as this one.  
 
The proposals are considered to comply with the provisions of CELPS local plan policies SD2 
and SE1, SADPD policies HOU 12 and HOU 13 and advice within the Cheshire East design 
guide, which all seek to safeguard residential amenity.    
 
Highways/Accessibility 
CELPS Policy CO 1 deals with sustainable travel and transport. It supports a shift from car 
travel to public transport and seeks to guide development to sustainable and accessible 
locations. Policy CO2 of the CELPS details that for new residential development, where there 
is a clear and compelling justification that it is necessary to manage the road network, proposals 
should adhere to the current adopted Cheshire East Parking Standards for Cars and Bicycles 
set out in Appendix C (Parking Standards). Policy SD1 of the CELPS refers to sustainable 
development and point 7 advises that development should, wherever possible provide sufficient 
car parking in accordance with adopted highways standards. Policy AE17 of the AENP requires 
that applications demonstrate they have met parking standards as per CELPS appendix C and 
that parking should avoid impacting or protruding onto surrounding streets. SADPD policy INF3 
requires that amongst other things, proposals provide safe access to and from the site for all 
highway users and incorporate safe internal movement in the site to meet the requirements of 
servicing and emergency vehicles. Development traffic should be satisfactorily assimilated into 
the operation of the existing highway network so that it would not have an unacceptable impact 
on highway safety, incorporating measures to assist access to, from and within the site by 
pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users and meets the needs of people with disabilities. 
 
Appendix C of the CELPS sets out the parking standards for the area which will only apply 
where there is clear and compelling justification that it is necessary to manage the road network. 
It indicates that the standards can be varied on a site-by-site basis with reference to evidence 
obtained locally or from a suitable data source (e.g. TRICS). 
 
As a Local service centre, it is accepted that Alderley Edge is a suitably accessible location for 
additional housing. The village centre is within 400m of the site which is considered to be within 
a sustainable location. Based on the proposals for 14 dwellings comprising of 2 no. 1-bedroom, 
10no. 2-bedroom and 2no. 3-bedroom units, appendix C of the CELPS recommends the on-
site parking requirement would be 29 spaces (for a C3 use) which is met by the proposal.  
 

Page 97



 
OFFICIAL 

Access to the site will be taken from Horseshoe Lane. Bin stores are located within the building.  
 
Concerns have been raised by the Town Council and residents regarding the suitability of the 
site access and the additional pressures on the local highway network. However, the CEC 
Highway officer has confirmed that there are no objections to the proposals and raise no 
concerns in this regard.  Having regard to the evidence outlined above, adequate parking is 
considered to be provided to serve the proposed development. 
 
As such it is considered that the proposals are in accordance with SD1 and CO2 of the CELPS, 
SADPD Policy INF3, policy AE17 of the AENP and Appendix C of the CELPS in this regard. 
 
Trees 
CELPS Policy SE5 seeks to ensure the sustainable management of trees, woodland and 
hedgerows including provision of new planting to provide local distinctiveness within the 
landscape, enable climate adaptation resilience, and support biodiversity. Furthermore, the 
planting and sustainable growth of large trees within new development as part of a structured 
landscape scheme is encouraged in order to retain and improve tree canopy cover within the 
borough as a whole. Similarly, SADPD policy ENV 6 requires proposals to retain and protect 
trees, woodland and hedgerows. Proposals should include measures to secure the long-term 
maintenance of newly planted trees.  
 
Tree Preservation Orders and Conservation Area 
Trees within and immediately adjacent to the site are not currently protected by a Tree 
Preservation Order. The site does not lie within a designated Conservation Area. Trees are a 
matter of planning policy and therefore a material consideration. 
 
Veteran Trees  
The Woodland Trust maintains an inventory of trees which includes records of some ancient 
and veteran trees.  The database currently shows there are no records of ancient or veteran 
trees on the site. 
 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA)  
In accordance with Policy ENV6 (SADPD) the application is supported by an Arboricultural 
Impact Assessment which has identified four individual trees, three tree groups and one 
hedgerow, within and immediately adjacent to the site. Two individual trees and two groups 
have been assessed as Moderate (B) category specimens. The remaining trees are deemed 
to be low (C) category and are not regarded as principal landscape assets or contribute 
significantly to the wider amenity of the area. 
 
Tree Removals 
The AIA identifies one individual moderate (B) category tree will require removal to 
accommodate the centralising of the access from Horseshoe Lane. A further two moderate (B) 
category groups and one low (C) category group are proposed for removal for the apartments 
and associated car parking.  
It is noted that the AIA does not provide a comment on the impact of the tree removals both 
visually and on the wider landscape and character of the area. It is however evident that the 
visual amenity afforded by the trees is restricted to the site and immediate surroundings. 
Consequently, it is considered that the loss of these trees will not have a significant adverse 
impact on the wider amenity of the area. 

Page 98



 
OFFICIAL 

 
Root Protection Areas (RPA) 
The proposed building and car parking encroaches within the root protection area of an offsite 
Ash tree (T2). The extent of encroachment has not been assessed by the AIA but the draft 
protection drawing suggest encroachment is minimal and the use of geotextiles is not required. 
This appears to conflict with Table 1 of the AIA that implies the use of geotextiles construction 
methodologies for the provision of new hard surfacing affecting tree T2. 
 
If planning consent is granted it is recommended a condition be included to include provision 
for a method statement for construction of the car park as part of the tree protection scheme 
 
Mitigation 
Where adverse impacts on trees that provide a significant contribution to the amenity, 
biodiversity, landscape character or historic character of the surrounding area are unavoidable 
such impacts must satisfactorily demonstrate a net environmental gain by appropriate 
mitigation, compensation or offsetting.  
 
Para 7.1 (Table 1) of the AIA states compensation for the loss of trees can be provided by 
replacement planting as part of a detailed landscape scheme. The AIA at para 5.3 suggests 
that the proposed areas for landscaping in terms of canopy cover will be broadly neutral. 
However as noted by the Council’s Nature Conservation Officer, the applicant has submitted a 
report of an assessment undertaken using the Defra biodiversity ‘metric’ methodology on the 
losses and gains to biodiversity which concludes in a net gain for area-based habitats and 
hedgerows. 
 
A proposed landscape scheme has been provided in support of this application which provides 
for the planting of six trees (comprising of Rowan and Oak) located within the landscaped area 
to the west of the site. Although a further landscape plan will be conditioned to include additional 
planting to the rear it is considered that the proposed planting provides the required 
compensation for under Policy SE 5.  
 
Overall, having regard to the above details, the proposals are considered to comply with the 
requirements of CELPS policy SE5 and SADPD policy ENV 6 in this regard. 
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Section 15 of the NPPF considers the conservation and enhancement of the natural 
environment. Local Plan Policy SE 3(5) requires all developments to aim to positively contribute 
to the conservation of biodiversity. AENP policy AE3 supports proposals which conserve, 
protect and, where possible, enhance wildlife and biodiversity. SADPD policy ENV 2 requires 
all development to demonstrate a net gain in biodiversity.  
 
The submitted ecological survey suggested that bat activity surveys are undertaken to establish 
the presence/absence of roosting bats. Following further bat surveys, no evidence was found 
of roosting bats and the site was considered not to have suitable foraging or commuting habitat 
for bats. The Council’s ecologist considers that no further bat surveys are required.  
 
This planning application provides an opportunity to incorporate features to increase the 
biodiversity value of the final development in accordance with local plan policy. The Council’s 

Page 99



 
OFFICIAL 

ecologist recommends that an ecological enhancement strategy is requested via condition, and 
avoidance of bird nesting season.  
 
Subject to appropriate conditions, the proposals are considered to be in accordance with 
CELPS policy SE3, AENP Policy AE3 and SADPD policy ENV 2 in this regard. 
 
Contaminated Land / Air Quality 
 
Environmental Health have not raised any issue with the proposals and suggest conditions 
which require submission of additional information to demonstrate that the site is free of 
contaminants, and soil importing and that an EV charging scheme is provided. It is considered 
that an EV charging scheme, travel plan and low emission boiler conditions are not reasonably 
required for this development as other legislation covers this and the site is considered in a 
sustainable location for residential development, very close to the village centre.  
 
It is therefore considered that subject to such conditions the proposed development would 
comply with Policy SE12 of CELP and the NPPF in this regard.   
 
Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
Policy SE13 of the CELPS states that developments must integrate measures for sustainable 
water management to reduce flood risk, avoid an adverse impact on water quality and quantity 
within the borough and provide opportunities to enhance biodiversity, health and recreation. 
 
The site is located within Flood Zone 1, indicating that the site is not at risk from fluvial or tidal 
sources according to the Flood Map for Planning.  
 
The Lead Local Flood Authority have commented on the application and raised no objections 
to the proposals subject to conditions relating to detailed drainage design. No objections have 
been received from United Utilities. 
 
It is considered that conditions could appropriately deal with drainage design and management 
at the site and that the proposals accord with policy SE13 of the CELPS and the NPPF in this 
regard. 
 
Heads of Terms 
 
In the event of approval, a S106 agreement will be required to secure the following: 

 A financial contribution of £95,241.44 for the provision of play and amenity (POS), 
outdoor sports (ROS), allotments and green infrastructure (GI);  

 A financial contribution of £246,500 to be spent towards the provision of off-site 
affordable housing. 

 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 
 
In order to comply with the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 it is 
necessary for planning applications with legal agreements to consider the issue of whether the 
requirements within the S106 satisfy the following: 
(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

Page 100



 
OFFICIAL 

(b) directly related to the development; and 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 
The scheme, via planning policy triggers the requirement to provide 5 affordable units and a 
financial contribution for the provision of play and amenity (POS), outdoor sports (ROS), 
allotments and green infrastructure (GI). 
 
As these provisions relate to either policy provision and / or identified need, it is considered that 
these requirements are necessary, fair and reasonable in relation to the development. The 
S106 recommendation is therefore considered to be compliant with the CIL Regulations 2010. 
 
 
CONCLUSIONS  
 
The application lies within Alderley Edge, which is identified as a Local Service Centre where 
the principle of residential development on the site is acceptable. The site is sustainably located 
and is within walking distance of the town centre, public transport, services and facilities within 
Alderley Edge. The developments accords with Policies SD 1, SD 2, PG 2 and SE 2 of the 
CELPS in this regard.  
 
The scheme presents an acceptable design that will not unduly harm the character or 
appearance of the surrounding area, and the amenity of existing or future occupants will not be 
adversely affected.  
 
The proposals will support the provision of 14 units of accommodation which also contributes 
to the Council’s housing supply and is an efficient use of land.  
 
Economic benefits of the scheme comprise the spending power of future residents in the local 
shops and services and the short-term economic benefits derived from the creation of 
construction jobs.  
 
The proposed level of parking would be satisfactory to accommodate the likely demand for 
parking spaces generated by the development and evidence from the applicant regarding trip 
generation is accepted and is unlikely to lead to an unacceptable impact on highway safety or 
through cumulative impacts, lead to congestion on the road network. 
 
The proposals will not result in a loss of biodiversity or harm protected species nor increase 
flood risk or concerns regarding noise and air pollution.  The proposals are considered to have 
an acceptable impact on trees within and adjacent the site.   
 
The proposal is therefore a sustainable development, and accordingly, the application is 
recommended for approval subject to a s106 agreement and conditions. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approve subject to a S106 agreement to secure: 
 

 A financial contribution of £95,241.44 for the provision of play and amenity (POS), 
outdoor sports (ROS), allotments and green infrastructure (GI);  

Page 101



 
OFFICIAL 

 A financial contribution of £246,500 be spent towards the provision of off-site affordable 
housing. 

 
And the following conditions: 

 
1. 3-year Time Limit 
1. Development in accord with approved plans 
2. Material samples to be submitted 
3. Construction Management Plan (highways) to be submitted 
4. Method statement required for construction of car park (trees) 
5. Submission of existing and proposed levels   
6. Bird nesting season avoidance  
7. Biodiversity enhancement scheme to be submitted 
8. Materials to be stored on pallets for the protection of hedgehogs 
9. Landscaping scheme to be submitted 
10. Landscaping details and maintenance to be submitted 
11. Boundary treatment plan to be submitted 
12. Drainage scheme to be submitted prior to commencement  
13. Contamination risk assessments to be submitted 
14. Verification and remediation (contamination) to be submitted   
15. Testing of soil to be imported 
16. Reporting of unexpected contamination 
 
 
In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee’s decision (such as 
to delete, vary or add Conditions and/or Informatives or reasons for approval prior to the 
decision being issued, the Head of Planning has delegated authority to do so in consultation 
with the Chair of the Northern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed 
the substantive nature of the Committee’s decision. 
 
 
 
  

Page 102



 
OFFICIAL 

 
 

N 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

24/0962M 

OAKLANDS,  

WILMSLOW ROAD,  

ALDERLEY EDGE,  

WILMSLOW,  

SK9 7QW 

P
age 105



Th
e 

O
ld

Oaklands
The Oaks

77.1m
The Spinney

Avonmore

9

4
Co

ac
h 

Ho
us

e

Alder House

HO
RS

ES
HO

E 
LA

NE

5

(Nursing Home)

15

10

Cavendish

The Belvedere

16

3

Amalfi Cottage

The Pines

1 
to

 9

(Nursing Home)
Court

Brampton

6

Long Acre

Posts

78

Hyggelig

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Th
e 

O
ld

Oaklands
The Oaks

77.1m
The Spinney

Avonmore

9

4

Co
ac

h 
Ho

us
e

Alder House

HO
RS

ES
HO

E 
LA

NE

5

(Nursing Home)

15

10

Cavendish

The Belvedere

16

3

Amalfi Cottage

The Pines

1 
to

 9

(Nursing Home)
Court

Brampton

6

Long Acre

Posts

78

Hyggelig

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

NORTH

LOCATION PLAN  1 : 1250

BLOCK PLAN  1 : 500
rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

BLOCK AND LOCATION PLANS

1:500&1250/A1     12 JAN 24             MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

L01

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

P
age 106



Location Plan
Site Address: Easting: 384319 Northing: 378904

Date Produced: 12-Mar-2024 Scale: 1:1250 @A4

Planning Portal Reference: PP-12874648v1

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 OS 100042766

P
age 107



The Oaks

77.1m The Spinney

Avonmore

9

4

Alder House

HO
RS

ES
HO

E 
LA

NE

5

(Nursing Home)

15

10

Cavendish

The Belvedere

16

3

Amalfi Cottage

The Pines

1 
to

 9

(Nursing Home)
Court

Brampton

6

Long Acre

Posts

78

Hyggelig

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

NORTH

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN  1 : 500
rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

1:500/A1     04 AUG 24             MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewoodarchitects

PB1

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

P
age 108



GY

GYGY

GY

Eave

Eave Eave

Eave

Eave

Eave
Eave

Eave

EaveEave

Eave

Eave

Eave

Eave

Eave

RidgRidg

RidgRidg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

RidgRidg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

Ridg

TP

ZP01
80.966

ZP01A
80.208

ZP03
81.066

ZP04

ZP09
79.113

ZP10
78.723

ZP11
79.122

378875N

384275E

384300E

384300E

384325E

384325E

384350E

384375E

81
.4

7
81

.2
6

80
.9

8
80

.9
1

81
.19

81
.3

0
81

.0
9

81.46

81
.4

781
.3

3

81.4
6

81.4
081.37

81.33

81.12

81.12

81
.16

81
.15

81
.18

80
.76

80.93

80
.9

0
81

.11

81.18

81.03

89.65

89.62 89.65

92.58
92.58

91.82

81.04
81.04

81.07

81.26

81.00 81.05

81.15

81
.3

8

80.97
80.90

80.79

92.52

85.99

80.9880
.2

3
80

.2
4

80.07

81.0080.74
80.82

88.40

84.43

88.42

85.83
85.83

85.88

86.74

86.75

89.2689.26

89.25

86.77

79.73
80.62

92.23

90.05

90.04

90.02

80
.0

5
80

.2
2

80.09

80.22

93.88

79.96
79.95

80.10

80.07

79
.16

79
.12

79.08

79.07
79.4379

.4
8

79.93

79.5479.1878.98
79.54

79
.9

5

79.57

79.01

78.8678.86
78.80

79.31
79.31

79.23

79.32
79.48

78.8778.8778.8978.69
79.13

79.2179.21

79.45
79.46

78.7678.6578.5378.34
78.88

77.98

78.5578.4077.80
77.3277.8777.6077.28

77.90 77.70
77.88

78.03
78.10
78.29 78.75

79.16

78.71

79.06

77.52

77
.6

1
77

.6
677.32

77.57

77.66

77.19

77.94
77.95

77.96

78.18 78.22

77.36

77.89

77.47
77.71

78.09

78
.2

1

77
.7

4
77

.8
178

.28

78.12
78.07

78.12

77.5277.50

77.49

78
.2

8
78

.7
5

78
.9

0
79

.19

78.46 78.69

78.77

78
.82

78
.91

78
.89

78.92 78.84
78.77

78.59

78.20

78
.07

77
.99

77
.90

77.
87

77.79

77.68
77.5378.08 78.09

78.17
78.29

77.61

77.
75

77
.8

3
77

.7
7 77.88

78
.9

6

79.0779.13

79.11
79.11

79.19 79.76
79.9079.92

79.13

79.14

78.70

86.75

88.40

90.02

93.87

CP
SMTMT

BUSH

MT
BUSH

EXT 3.8
PD63MT

CONTAINER

CP
S

5.
15

 T
L TL

Unmade

80.35

80.74
80.8280.62

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

EXISTING SITE LAYOUT

1 : 200/A1         13 FEB 24        MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

EXS01

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

EXISTING SITE LAYOUT

P
age 109



Ent Lobby

GY
GY

Eave

Eave

Ridg

ZP01
80.966

ZP03
81.066

ZP04

CP
S

5.
15

 T
L TL

Unmade

Store

Ent Lobby

+78.00

Store

Services

Ent Lobby

Ent Lobby

Store

Store

Store
Ent Lobby

Bedroom 02

Lift
Store

Lift

Services

Bedroom 02

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks Store

Kitchen

Store

Store

Store

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

Pantry

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks

Kitchen

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

Pantry

En Ste

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

En Ste

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS LEVEL -01

1:100/A1            24 APR 24       MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

L-01

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

FLOOR PLANS LEVEL -01

P
age 110



Living

Dining

Kitchen

Pantry

Lift

En Ste

Ent
Lobby

Bedroom 02

Store

Ent Lobby

Bedroom 03

Utility

Store

obscured fixed

Kitchen

Store

Bedroom 01

Utility

En Ste

Pantry

Store

Living

Dining

Services
Store

LiftLift

Ent
Lobby

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks Store

Kitchen

Store
Ent Lobby

Store

Store

Bedroom 01

obscured fixed

obscured fixed

obscured fixed

En Ste Dressing

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

Pantry

Bedroom 02

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks

Kitchen

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

Pantry

En Ste

En Ste

high lvl high lvl

clks En Ste
Bedroom 01Store

clks En Ste
Bedroom 02Store

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 01

1:100/A1           23 APR 24       MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

L01

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 01

P
age 111



Living

Dining

Kitchen

Pantry

Lift

En Ste

Ent
Lobby

Bedroom 02

Store

Ent Lobby

Bedroom 03

Utility

Store

obscured fixed

Kitchen

Store

Bedroom 01

Utility

En Ste

Pantry

Store

Living

Dining

Services
Store

LiftLift

Ent
Lobby

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks Store

Kitchen

Store
Ent Lobby

Store

Store

Bedroom 01

obscured fixed

obscured fixed

obscured fixed

En Ste Dressing

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

Pantry

Bedroom 02

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks

Kitchen

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

Pantry

En Ste

En Ste

high lvl high lvl

clks En Ste
Bedroom 01Store

clks En Ste
Bedroom 02Store

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 02

1:100/A1           19 APR 24       MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

L02

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 02

P
age 112



Ent Lobby

Bedroom 01

Bedroom 02

Ent Lobby

Bedroom 02

Bedroom 02

Living

Dining

Kitchen

Pantry

LiftServices LiftLift

En Ste

Utility

CloaksStudy

Store

Coats

En Ste Dressing

Store Store

En Ste

Living

Dining

Kitchen

Pantry

Utility

Cloaks

Study

Store

En Ste

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 03

1:100/A1           24 APR 24       MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

L03

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 03

P
age 113



Ent Lobby

GY
GY

Eave

Ridg

ZP04

Store

Ent Lobby

Bedroom 02

14
 N

o 
Bi

ke
 ra

ck
s 

01 02 03 04 05

+81.00

+81.00

BIN STORE

Lift
Store

Lift

Services

06 07 08 09
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 V

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 V V

vent

vent vent

vent vent

high lvl

Recycle

Recycle

Recycle
General
Waste

General
Waste

General
Waste

Bedroom 02

Store

Fire Refuge
Area

BIN COLLECTION

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks Store

Kitchen

Store

Store

Store

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

Pantry

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks

Kitchen

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

Pantry

En Ste

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

En Ste

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 0

1:100/A1          24 APR 24       MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

L0

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

FLOOR PLANS LEVEL 0

P
age 114



willacy horsewood architects www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

CONTEXTUAL STREET SCENES

client

job

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

MR BRIAN SPENCER

revdrawing no.

title

scale date job no.

CONTEXTUAL STREET SCENES

N.T.S.A1            16 APR 24       MSW 148   CT01

PROPOSED ELEVATION FACING WEST TOWARDS WILMSLOW ROADTHE OAKS THE BELVEDERE NURSING HOME

CAVENDISH COURT NURSING HOME THE OAKS

PROPOSED ELEVATION FACING EAST TOWARDS HORSESHOE LANE

P
age 115



WILMSLOW ROAD

HORSESHOE LANE

willacy horsewood architects www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 01

client

job

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

MR BRIAN SPENCER

revdrawing no.

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 01

1:100/A1            24 APR 24       MSW 148   EL01

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION FACING NORTH

PROPOSED ELEVATION FACING WEST TOWARDS WILMSLOW ROAD

P
age 116



WILMSLOW ROAD

HORSESHOE LANE

00

01

02

03

willacy horsewood architects www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 02

client

job

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

MR BRIAN SPENCER

revdrawing no.

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 02

1:100/A1           24 APR 24       MSW 148   EL02

PROPOSED ELEVATION FACING EAST TOWARDS HORSESHOE LANE

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION FACING SOUTH

CAVENDISH COURT FACING TOWARDS HORSESHOE LANE THE OAKS FACING TOWARDS HORSESHOE LANE

P
age 117



Ent Lobby

GY
GY

Eave

Ridg

ZP04

Bedroom 03

Store

Ent Lobby

Bedroom 03

14
 N

o 
Bi

ke
 ra

ck
s 

01 02 03 04 05

+81.00

+81.00

BIN STORE

Lift
Store

Lift

Services

06 07 08 09
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 V

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 V V

vent

vent vent

vent vent

high lvl

Recycle

Recycle

Recycle
General
Waste

General
Waste

General
Waste

Bedroom 03

Store

Bedroom 03

EMERGENCY FIRE
REFUGE AREA

Fire Refuge
Area

with emergency
access gates 
to highway

BIN COLLECTION

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks Store

Kitchen

Store

Store

Store

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

Pantry

Living

Dining

Utility
Cloaks

Kitchen

Bedroom 01

En Ste Dressing

Pantry

En Ste

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

En Ste

w
ar

dr
ob

es
w

ar
dr

ob
es

rev

client

drawing no.

job

title

scale date job no.

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT OF OAKLANDS AND THE OLD COACH
HOUSE,  WILMSLOW ROAD, WILMSLOW

PROPOSED HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING

NTS/A1            19 APR 24       MSW 148

MR BRIAN SPENCER

willacy horsewood architects

   LS0

www.willacyhorsewood.co.uk
Tel: 01244 853891 07973 322 953      E-Mail: mark@willacyhorsewood.co.uk

Penmon House 76, Hoole Road, Hoole, Chester CH2 6NL

PROPOSED HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING

GRASSCRETE PAVING

PLANTING KEY

No peat based compost should be used during planting ( although some shrubs may arrive in peat base )
Chemicals should be used sparingly and if only absolutely necessary

BORDER / SHRUB PLANTING   pot size height Specification

Calluna Vulgaris - heather 9cm 10-20cm Bushy
Erica cinerea - heather 9cm 10-20cm Bushy
Vaccinium myrtillus - bilberry 2ltr 60-80cm Bushy - 2 breaks
Cotoneaster frigidus 3ltr 40-60cm Branched - 2 breaks
Berberis darwinii 3ltr 30-40cm Bushy - 4 breaks
Vibernum bodnantense 3ltr 40-60cm Branched - 3 breaks
Mahonia sp 3ltr 40-60cm Bushy - 2 breaks
Pyracantha 3ltr 40-60cm leader with several laterals : 4 breaks

PORCELAIN PAVING

PORCELAIN PAVING SEMI PERMEABLE PAVERS GRASSCRETE PAVING

existing boundary wall 
retained & repaired

NEW BRICK PILLAR ENTRANCE GATES
SOFT LANDSCAPE LAWNED AREA

Q QUERCUS RUBER
10L POT 150 - 200CM

SORBUS AUCUPARIA
10L POT 150 - 180CM

ENGLISH OAK

ROWAN ASH
R

R

R

R

Q

Q

Q

FIRE HYDRANT - LOCATION 
TO BE AGREED WITH LOCAL
FIRE BRIGADE 

F

FF

P
age 118


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 24/1544M - Mac Multi Activity Centre, Goodall Street, Macclesfield SK11 7BD: Demolition of existing buildings and the construction of a care home (Class C2), with associated parking, landscaping, and infrastructure for Rigby, Cairnwell Developments
	24 1544M Key Plans
	FRONT SHEET 24 1544M
	4BE8CD2002DF11EF926C0050568BEA92
	F1660B466F6511EF92FE0050568B3695
	181DBF8A6F6611EF92FE0050568B3695
	4BE8CE4C02DF11EF926C0050568BEA92
	523BAF3C02DF11EF926C0050568BEA92
	0332C2106F6611EF92FE0050568B3695
	9101 - Site Sections

	523BAED802DF11EF926C0050568BEA92
	523BB13002DF11EF926C0050568BEA92
	523BB0CC02DF11EF926C0050568BEA92
	523BB06802DF11EF926C0050568BEA92


	6 23/0657M - Wilmslow Police Station, Hawthorn Street, Wilmslow, SK9 5HQ: Erection of Retirement Living housing (Category II type accommodation), communal facilities, landscaping and car parking following the demolition of the existing building for Chris McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Ltd
	23 0657M Key Plans
	FRONT SHEET 23 0657M
	Letter
	484C583BAEDF11EDA86D00224840EE26
	Sheets and Views
	Wilmslow Planning 12-01-23-0001 Site


	148762E17A6B11EF930C0050568B6307
	Sheets and Views
	100-01 Rev E


	BE493C9671AB11EF93050050568BF209
	241D01AB7A6B11EF930C0050568B6307
	Sheets and Views
	TPP250@A1


	AC942A2C71AB11EF93050050568BF209
	Sheets and Views
	101


	850D747B71AB11EF93050050568BF209
	Sheets
	0505 - Proposed Site Plan


	3F8E33BC71AB11EF93050050568BF209
	Sheets and Views
	500


	BE05E6EE435D11EF92C50050568B3978
	Sheets
	0002 - Proposed Ground Floor Plan


	762D09F1435D11EF92C50050568B3978
	Sheets
	0003 - Proposed First Floor Plan


	BE05E6EC435D11EF92C50050568B3978
	Sheets
	0004 - Proposed Second Floor Plan


	901D1B29435E11EF92C50050568B3978
	Sheets
	0005 - Proposed Third Floor Plan


	C2737792435E11EF92C50050568B3978
	Sheets
	0007 - Proposed Roof Plan


	3F7340C44E7211EF92D10050568B3695
	Sheets
	0513 - South & West Elevations


	2D8757EE4E7211EF92D10050568B3695
	Sheets
	0512 - North & East Elevations


	519542704E7211EF92D10050568B3695
	4EF07FF3767611EF93070050568B3695
	6A0F8F5C767611EF93070050568B3695
	34A03E4D767611EF93070050568B3695


	7 24/0962M - Oaklands, Wilmslow Road, Alderley Edge SK9 7QW: Detailed planning application for the demolition of the existing dwellings and the construction of 14 no. apartments with associated access, parking, landscaping and infrastructure for Mr Brian Spencer, North East Cheshire Developments Ltd
	24 0962M Key Plans
	FRONT SHEET 24 0962M
	7A775DA0061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	LOCATION


	07900E16E08A11EE923E0050568BEA92
	75D791F6703111EF92FE0050568B6307
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	B52934A1061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	EXISTING SITE


	FCE7F6A8061511EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	LEVEL -01


	45C04095061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	LEVEL 01


	609ECCE7061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	LEVEL 02


	9EAAB3CE061511EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	LEVEL 03


	1A37748E061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	LEVEL 00


	9D02E94D061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	CONTEXTUAL


	F0FE1F4D061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	ELEVS 01


	DCC7AAAC061511EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	ELEVS 02


	D3C1A14E061611EF926F0050568BA7B9
	Sheets and Views
	HARD AND SOFT LANDSC







